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Dear Madam/Sir,

Sub: Notice of Book Closure, payment of Dividend, Cut-off date and Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31st
March 2021.

The Nineteenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is scheduled to be held on Saturday, 18™ September, 2021 at 2.00
p.m. IST through Video Conferencing ("VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means("OAVM"), in accordance with the circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India ("Circulars").

In compliance with the Circulars, the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21, comprising the Notice of the 19th AGM and the
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2020-21, along with Board's Report, Auditors' Report and
other documents required to be attached thereto, will be sent to all the members of the Company whose email addresses are
registered with the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent - KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

The details such as manner of (i) registering / updating email addresses (ii) casting vote through e-voting and (iii) attending the
AGM through VC/OAVM have been set out in the Notice of the AGM.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8" September, 2021 to Saturday, 18" September, 2021
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of AGM and in order to determine the Members entitled to receive proposed Dividend of Rs.
2.70 per share of face value Rs. 10/- each for the year ended 31st March 2021. Dividend, if declared at the AGM, will be paid on or
before Monday, October 18, 2021.

The Company has fixed Saturday, September 11, 2021 as the Cut-off Date for the purpose of determining the Members eligible to
vote on the resolutions set out in the Notice of AGM or to attend the AGM.

Please inform your members accordingly and display this Notice on your Notice Boards
Thanking you,

For Shyam Metalicé' A
S
Y

Enclosed: As Above

SHYAM METALICS AND ENERGY LIMITED
Trinity Tower, 7" Floor, 83, Topsia Road, Kolkata - 700 046 (India)
- 19133 4016 4001 1 +9133 4016 4025 selimt@shyamgroup.com
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At Shyam Metalics, we have always enjoyed
adversities as opportunities. In the process, we
demonstrated our ability to stay the course, realise
our vision and uphold the faith of our
stakeholders. 2020-21 was no apart. Despite the
Covid-19 pandemic, we were doing the same,
what we had been doing for years. We realigned
our operational efficiencies, we integrated and
expanded.

We successfully came out with our maiden Initial
Public Offer (IPO) and got listed at BSE and NSE.
We are now looking towards the future with
greater confidence, a stronger balance sheet and
heightened optimism.

The strength and durability of
our products are an indicator of
our resolve to withstand, today
and tomorrow.

2



India continues to
be one of the fastest
growing economies
of the world. Since
the opening of the
economy during the
early 1990's the
country has
witnessed steel
revolution. Today,
although the per
capita consumjption
of steel remains low
iIn comparison to
global peers, itis a
barometer of the
prosperity of the
country.
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Shyam Metalics and
Energy Limited continues |
to play a pivotal role in |
this context. Our
competitive strengths —
raw material security,
| operational excellence,
" various integration

| measures, strong
A distribution network and
o expanding footprints
positions us well to meet
India’s long-term socio
economic priorities.
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Shyam Metalics is not just any other Iron &

Steel Company.

It is one of the most competitive in the

domestic landscape.

The Company enjoys an extensive presence in
the country's steel value chain.

From the manufacture of pellets at one end to
the manufacture of finished rolled products at

the other.

Today, the Company is progressively de-risked
and is working at the specialised end of its

business.

[@;ﬂ Vision

Founded with the vision of providing
strength to infrastructure &
construction industry, Shyam
Metalics and Energy Limited through
an integrated system of tools,
technigues and training constantly
thrives to achieve and maintain the
highest quality parameters.

4 | Annual Report 2020-21

255 Mission

The mission of our Company is to
empower the dominance of the
organisation in the local market
thereby expanding and
developing a strong presence
across the country.



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Shyam Metalics at a glance

Shyam Metalics and Power Limited, founded by first generation entrepreneurs Mr. Mahabir Prasad
Agarwal and Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal is one of the leading and fastest growing steel manufacturers in
India. We have a diverse product mix comprising Pellets, Sponge Iron, Billets, Captive Power, TMT bars and
structural products, such as Joists, Angles, Channels and Beams. We are fully integrated across the value

chain and have our manufacturing facilities at Sambalpur in Odisha and and Jamuria & Mangalpur in West
Bengal.

Key Facts

1,394

Crore EBIDTAin Average Capacity
FY 2020-21 Utilisation Lac Tonne Steel sold
I
| ] |
?843 6’063 ?1 1 ,809
Crore PAT in . EBIDTA per Tonne
EY 2020-21 Direct Employees of Steel Sold
I A I

92,

—_—__—TEE ————
Crore Revenue From Lac Tonne
Operations in Countries Export Footprint Crude Steel
FY 2020-21 Production
[ [ —
T

12
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How we have grown

over the years

Operational Performance
Crude Steel Production (Lac MT)

Pellet Production (Lac MT)

Balance Sheet
Total Capital Employed

20.76% 20%

LEIII
57—

Ferro Alloys Production (Lac MT)

21.60% 129%

20/ [/ 1056)
| Pyfo///538

Net Power Generation (Lac Kwh)

18.26% 8%

GETMIIA A
(7 s
(T aser

Shareholder's Fund

4.37% 1%

REIN 2222222
GirzzZzZ—=2e3
a8/  n

Long Steel Sales (Lac MT)

12.93% 16%

GESII22=:%=
Eiiiiz7zZ24
Wil

Upstream and Intermediates (Lac MT)

21.85% 29%

e
777

L7z

Key Ratios
Return on Average Capital Employed (%)

42.74% 103%

FY-21

TN
Y19/ 332

H /4 o]
| Y48 480

6.37

Pellet Sales (Lac MT)

1.78% 36%

Iz~ ==
iiizzzzZzZZm
g7 7.78]

Ferro Alloys Sales (Lac MT)

32.18% 151%

GESWEL

[WizzZzZ X

Return on Net Worth (%)

29.44% 78%
Fv20'/ /[ 553]

Gtz
B/ sEL
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Key Ratios Financial Performance Profit & Loss Statement

Book Value {In INR Rs) Net revenue from operations EBIDTA

21.85% 29% 21.25% 44% 38.56% 119%
GESWIzz2Z: %"= FY-39 [/ 36289 Fv20 / // 63651

Bz

(izzZ =%
FiiE/—ssasas

N s

571 B2 arasa ]
Debt Equity Ratio Profit before Tax Net profit

69.54% 257% 64.34% 148%
Fvad [/ 835 FY-20/ /// 29536 | Y30/ /340,251

7 s

7 e

LhizzzzzZZZ==4
el 51851

a7 015 B17_7530 | L
Debtors Turnaover (in days) PAT MARGIN EBIDTA MARGIN
35.53% 72% 14.27% 52%
FY-70/ /1340 Fy-20/ /[ 2788 ISz =
RV /3689 CliiyzZ—ex\ | CliilizzZ—

LT
=

Current Ratio

[

Cash Eps (in Rs.)

7= 1808
[

Basic and Diluted EPS (in Rs.)

FY-21 1.92

GESWII 2222
LriciyzZzZ—Z—=atd
a7 132

32.23% 80%

Y20/ /[ a5655

.

19.11% 148%
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Annual Report2020-21 | 7



™

ORE TO METAL

Chairman’s Message

L Lt

The year gone by has been a year of immense learning and
earning for our Company. The year started with the Lockdown
imposed along with a lot of uncertainty. Then as time elapsed
we saw the collective efforts of humanity in their own unique
ways finding a solution to the imminent problems at hand. It
was a year wherein adaptation to technology by getting used
to meetings virtually rather than physically became a norm
and looking after family and adopting to health insurance also
increased by leaps and bounds. As we continue to navigate
the unprecedented challenges posed by the pandemic, |
hope you are safe and healthy along with your family. | would
like to take this opportunity to thank each one of you for
having faith and confidencein the Company.

Macro Environment

As FY 2020-21 progressed, one could see a clear divide
between the earlier and the latter quarters. This was led by a
strong government stance to balance both lives and
livelihoods, with lockdowns to protect public health, while
adopting much-needed fiscal and monetary policy measures
to infuse liquidity into the system. We also witnessed the
corporate and non-profit sectors contributing actively to help
the nation and its people, together with healthcare workers
and others. The current external environment is characterised
by cautious optimism, led by the lifting of lockdowns during
the second half of the year, a renewed focus on business
activity, concerted action, and most importantly, the

8 | Annual Report 2020-21

discovery of multiple COVID-19 vaccines. However, a second
wave of infections towards the end of the financial year and
consequent lockdowns has threatened this recovery. At an
output level, the global GDP is expected to rise by 6.0% in the
coming year, whereas for India, this figure is estimated to be
double the global average (Source: April 2021 World
Economic Outlook, IMF). This reinforces the fact that India is
inherently resilient and while the short-term uncertainties
continue, our long-term growth drivers remainintact.

Despite disruption caused by COVID-19 pandemic, your
Company achieved atop-line growth of 44% (Y-O-Y) driven by
best-ever production of TMT, Structural and Pipes, Iron pellets,
Ferroalloys, Steel Billets and Sponge Iron, mix enrichment and
improved market conditions, especially in H2 FY 2020-21.
Strong operational turnaround translated into robust bottom
line performance as well.

Your Company's EBITDA touched "1393.80 crore and a net
profit of "843.6 crore vis-a-vis net profit of "340.2 crore in FY
2019-20. Your Company focussed aggressively on cashflow
management.

| feel privileged to report that your Company has always
believed in low leverage and during these difficult times of
business environment we are made to understand the
benefits of the pains taken and abiding by the disciplines
incorporated as mantras to live by in the organization. We took
a stance to repay Rs. 342 Crore of our Working Capital Loans at the
beginning of the year.

Your Company's Gross Debt to Equity stood at 0.22X,
compared to 0.45x as on 31st March, 2020, one of the lowest
gearing amongst Steel Companies and Net Debt to Equity
stood at0.7x, compared to 0.38x as on 31st March, 2020.

Getting future-ready

Sustainability remains a core issue for the steel industry and is
a key pivot for our strategy. Your Company is continuously
working to strengthen its safety practices and accelerate the
pace of the technological and digital journey with required
investments. We are also developing a culture of customer
obsession, agility and innovation as our key priorities. These
would enable your Company to become future-ready not just
structurally andfinancially, but culturally as well.

Conclusion

As | conclude, | would like to thank all our shareholders who
have believed in Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited and
what it stands for. | would also like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to all our employees for their relentless focus,
commitment and dedication to help us serve our customers
intheirhour of need.lam hopeful that the concerted efforts of
the government authorities and medical fraternity will help us
tide this phase and usher in the next phase of India's growth
story.

Warm regards,
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal

Chairman
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Review by the
Managing Director

Brij Bhushan Agarwal, Vice Chairman and
Managing Director, analyses performance of the
Company in a challenging scenario

The year gone by has been a year to cherish for the
organisation as we were successful in implementing the
maiden public offering of our company which received the
love, affection and blessings of the institutions and the public
at large. Our family size has catapulted from 15000 members
tomore than 2,50,000 members and our responsibility too has
grown manifolds.

The Olympics has just concluded finding many new winners
in their respective categories. They are a reminder of what the
human mind and body is capable of accomplishing. They also
exhibit the human spirit in the best possible manner. It
showcases the perseverance of athletes over the last 4 years
wherein you compete with the best in the skill and all your
hard work, patience is rewarded in the form of medals and
laurels that you achieve foryourselfand your country.

When we look at the Olympics and delve deep into the work
ethics of the medal winners, we always find that the winners
have always put in more efforts and hours practicing and
honing their skills. The best of the best have been mentored
by a coach who monitors their progress and identifies the
areas for improvement. This again is a constant process which

is done day in and day out. The WINNERS are disciplined,
focused, hardworking, ethical and they go about doing their
processes without distraction. They are best prepared to
handle any adverse conditions and are great at handling
pressure.

We at Shyam too have been inculcating these winning habits
within our organization, its systems and processes. We like to
analyse the risks associated with any business decisions we
make in the context of finances, environment and people. For
us "EXCELLENCE IS BEATEN BY IMPROVEMENT WHEN
IMPROVEMENT IS CONTINUAL".

We are Committed to delivering time-tested and quality-
proven products and are now focussed on building on our
brand reach. Our long products in the form of TMT Rebars and
sold under the Brand “SEL” have been very well accepted. In
our expansion plan we are focussed on increasing our
downstream facilities.

Our Company is undergoing capacity expansion from existing
5.71 MTPA to 11.54 MTPA, target for the expansion plan is
projected between FY 22 and FY 25.Total capex Cost would be
aggregating to '2960 crores. During FY 22 itself the Company
planstoincur Capexof” 850 crores.

We have always believed in a steady growth whichis executed
in a phased manner. In the last 3 years we have grown our
capacities ata CAGR 0f23.94%. We are now ready to grow both
organically through a combination of increase in capacities in
both upstream and downstream businesses and diversify our
product portfolio by also getting into another metal business
of Aluminium foils. We also have planned to implement pig
iron capacities as backward integration to feed and meet our
SMS plantrequirements and also meet the requirements of DI
pipes.

Our endeavor is to drive scale and future growth, de-risk the
business through diversification, strengthen the balance
sheet furtherand generate operational synergies.

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank the
unstinted support of our Distributors and Dealers who
facilitate in our reach, our technicians and product
manufacturing people who prepare the best of products, our
Board of Directors in providing guidance and mentorship, our
Bankers who are always there for us always and every member
of the Shyam Family who is growing and improving daily and
are the strong foundation on which the growth of the
organizationis secured.

With Best Wishes

BrijBhushan Agarwal
VC & Managing Director

Annual Report 2020-21 | 9
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Seven things you should know
about Shyam Metalics

We are a new entrant in the
Metal Space with a history of
17 years and have recently
listed on NSE & BSE with
effectfrom 24" June 2021.

Shyam Metalics and Energy an
integrated ore to metal company
present across the steel value chain
in both Non Alloy Steel and Alloy
Steel.

We are one amongst the largest | - We are CRISIL AA rated company, a feat
Ferro Alloy producers in the | i achieved rarely in our industry with one
country, the 4" Largest Sponge of the lowest gearing ratios amongst our
Iron producer and amongst the Peers. Our Debt to Equity has always
largest pellet producers. remained below 0.5x to our Equity in the
history of our company.

Our diversified product profile, our unique business model, our cost leadership both in terms of
Capex and Opex have facilitated us in maintaining consistency. We are amongst the only metal or
steel companies who has reported a positive PAT in each of the last 15 years of our existence.

We have had a phenomenal CAGR growth. Revenue Growth has been 22%, EBIDTA Growth has
been 34% and growth in terms of capacities has been 31%owver the past 17 years. Sticking to
what has worked for us in the past, we already have expansion plans in place to grow organically
and diversify our product basket in the metal space. Our expansion plans are brownfield in
nature and are coming up in our strategically located existing plants.

We are an operating cash flow positive company and our Capex |s under taken through
our internal accruals

10 | Annual Report 2020-21
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Key Mantras
Innovative Business Model

Integration for our downstream products.

Financial Statements

Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited is an integrated ore to metal company present across the steel sector value chain in
both Non Alloy Steel and Alloy Steel. Our business model is based on the premise of backward and forward integration.
While initially what we produce as upstream products are sold in the market as B2B products. We set up forward
integration facilities for value added products so that the same upstream products are now used for captive consumption

While all that we produce has the scope to be exported we are shielded from the threat of imports. We are only

in the long product segment of the steel industry and have not seen any imports in the country for products

manufactured by us and segments catered by us in the past.

Value chain

* Raw Materials
R o

LN
7

Char/Flu gases
-

s Iron Ore
! Fines

Manganese

Manganese/
Chrome Ore

. Point of Sale
- Proposed Expansion

Electricity %

(Captive consumption)

Channel

Ductile Pipe

Ferro Alloy
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% Balancing

We follow a model of Waste to Value in designing the
modules and have always believed in creating a fine balance
in capacities which have further led to consistency of
performance and assisted in the steady growth of our
company.

We have captive power plants majorly based on waste heat
recovery from our DRI Kilns. The low cost of Power is majorly
used to supportand meet the requirements of our Ferro Alloy
plants making us one of the least cost producers of ferro
alloys in the country.

Waste heat and flu gases generated from the sponge iron
plant are captured in the waste heat recovery boilers to
produce electricity. One tonne of steel requires 953 KWH of
electricity where as one tonne of ferro alloy’s required about 3861
KWH of power. In line with our mantra of balancing, we have
put up ferro alloy plants which not only diversifies our
product portfolio but also has access to cheapest source of
power thereby increasing delta.

Our model is a Swadeshi model wherein all raw materials
required to manufacture our diversified portfolio of products
are abundantly available in close vicinity of our plants. The
products that we manufacture have widespread demand
both domestically and are also exported.

Diversified product portfolio

- " - 3
YR f . ‘
& ® B
- -, 1:"-1 ? 1 '-,
SPONGE IRON BILLETS t
« Capacity of 2.4 MTPA « Capacity of 1.39 MTPA « Capacity of 0.89 MTPA
* Among the top 3 +15:2830': 2012 licensed

manufacturers in India

TMT BARS STRUCTURAL STEEL

« Capacity of 0.27 MTPA « Capacity of 0.12 MTPA tons « Capacity of 0.40 MTPA
«1S:1786: 2008 licensed «1S:2062 : 2011 licensed
(for HSDS TMT Bars)

-

o
FERRO ALLOYS ALUMINIUM FOIL
« 227 MW Captive Power « Capacity of 0.20 MTPA « Capacity of 0.04 MTPA
Plant « Largest manufacturerin
India at group level
12 | Annual Report 2020-21

@ Diversification

We have diversity in terms of product mix.

Pellets
Sponge Iron
Billets

TMT Bar Rod
Angles

Beams
Channels
Wire Rods

Ms round coils
Ferro chrome

Ferro Managanese

<~ < < < < < < < =< < =< =<
< < < < < < < < =< < =< <
.

< < <

Silico Manganese

We cater to institutions, corporates and retail customers. We are
also diversified in terms of geographical reach. We cater to both
domestic and international clients.

We export our products to international clients in United States,
Italy, Dubai, Oman, South Korea, Taiwan, China, Vietnam,
Bangladesh, Nepal, Myanmar etc.

The company prides itself for the global network it shares and
always strives to deliver the best to them.
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Cost effective
Strategically Located - Supported by Infrastucture

42 distributors stock
and sell the finished

products across 1 3
states and

1 Union Territory

L
|

We sell 70% of our
products within the

vicinity of 500 km

"
M1 Plant Location
from our plants

é Captive Railway

& Ports [
Raw Material Sources are within 250 kms

Ports are within 600 Kms

Plants are in close proximity to National Highways 16 & 19

Sambalpur & Jamuria Plants have captive Railway sidings

Key Raw Material Source

Iron ore / Iron ore fines PP Mine owners located in Odisha

Chrome ore » Long term linkages with Odisha Mining Corporation Limited, other owners and imports
Manganese ore » MIOL, other mine owners and imports

Coal » Fuel supply agreements entered into with Mahanadi Coalfields Limited, Central Coalfields

Limited and South Eastern Coalfields Limited

Strategic Plant Locations

-

66 do

When it comes to safety the leader stands tall
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Cost Effective

The location for a steel company has to be close to the source of raw materials as approximately three tonnes of raw
materials are required to produce one tonne of finished steel. To reduce cost of transportation the plants also need to be
closer to the markets giving them a cost arbitrage. We have strategically located plants on the highway with captive railway
sidings.

We have 1T manufacturing plant located in Sambalpur, Odisha and 1 manufacturing in Jamuria in West Bengal with aggregate
installed capacity of 5.61 MTPA comprising of intermediate and final products. We also have small plant in Manglpur, West
Bengal with aggregate capacity of 0.1 MTPA. These plants also include captive power plants with an aggregate installed
capacity of 227 MW.

We are situated on the bed of raw materials and all raw materials are abundantly available in close vicinity, facilitating cost
leadership for us.

We have over the years invested in world class infrastructure and upgraded our technology from time to time which have
reflected in better financial performance. We have Private Railway Sidings in two of our major Plants. In both the plants we
have two track Railway Sidings.

(0 1/ 1

Reduces Reduces
Transportation Time Taken for Theft Minimized Increase in Efficiency
Cost Transportation

N NS S
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@ Brownfield expansion leading to Lowest Capex in the Industry

Our expansion has been planned in our existing Sambalpur Plant in Odisha and Our Jamuria Plant in West Bengal.
Our Company has ample land available for expansion for the next 5 years.

Brownfield capacity expansion expected to increase aggregate installed metal capacity (comprising of
intermediate and final products) from 5.71 MTPA to 11.60 MTPA and captive power plants aggregate installed
capacity from227 MW to 357 MW. These proposed expansions are expected to become operational between
Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2025

We are in the process of commissioning an Aluminum foil rolling mill at Pakuria in West Bengal with a proposed
installed capacity of 0.04 MTPA, which is expected to become operational in Fiscal 2022. The Capex envisaged for
the project is Rs. 360 Crores.

*In Million Tonnes

b 4 b 4 h. 4 h. 4 h. 4 h. 4 h. 4 h. AN 4
Existing Capacities 240 0.20 1.39 = 0.89 0.82 = 3.10 5.70
Additions 1.20 0.01 150 0.60 1.10 1.20 0.20 460 5.81
Post Expansion 3.60 0.21 2.89 0.60 1.99 2.02 0.20 7.70 11,51
Existing 177 0.14 033 - 024 0.64 - 121 3.12
Expected 264 0.08 134 0.38 - 178 0.10 3.60 6.32

Post Expansion

Iron Pellets (MTPA) Steel Products (MTPA) Ferro Alloys (MTPA) Captice Power Plant (MW)
] 1 60 Crs. ?2,01 OCrs. ?30 Crs. ?400 Crs.

0.21 0.22
3.10
.

Current Capacity Post Expansion Current Capacity Post Expansion Current Capacity Post Expansion

3.70

Current Sale  Post Expansion Sale Current Sale  Post Expansion Sale Current Sale  Post Expansion Sale

* All volume figures are in Million Tonnes per Annum
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We have always started with a small facility, understood the nitty gritties and the challenges, formulated firm
policies to overcome these challenges and then expanded.

We have augmented and implemented our capacities in phases leading to effective utilisation of Capital,
Manpower and resources which has also resulted in higher Return on equity.

The entire Capex aggregating to Rs. 2960 Crores is proposed to be met through internal cash accruals.

In case of present expansion plans more than 85% of expansion is in the form of organic expansion. It
has taken us 17 Years to achieve a Steel Sales of 12.05 Lac Tonnes and in another 4 Years we hope to
achieve 36.0 Lac Tonnes of Steel Sales growing at a CAGR of 31.47%.

Our disciplined capital allocation policy of implementing Capex through internal accruals and take recourse to
borrowings to meet our working capital needs have helped us deal with four rough cycles and carnage faced
by our industry over the past two decades with our heads held high. In the last 5 Years we have invested Rs.
1516 crore which has been spent in growth for forward/backward integration, Rs. 18.90 crore on dividend and
the rest Rs. 642 crore being 30.30 % has remained or has been kept as liquidity to meet any unforeseen events.

Our model has led to consistency in terms of EBIDTA Margins, strong cash flows leading to funding of Capex and
Growth in capacities. Adherence to mantras like phased capex in smaller modules have resulted in steady growth
and consistent returns on equity.

We have adopted the triple bottom line approach, which includes environment and social responsibility, to
evaluate our performance and value creation. We are relentlessly looking for revolutionary and innovative solutions
to reduce our environmental footprint, enhance sustainability into our operations and make prosperity scalable for
all.

We have a comprehensive Environmental Policy in place, which guides and fortifies our efforts to reduce our
environmental impact. We have committed ourselves to Science Based Targets and align our actions to meet the
goals which India has committed in Paris Agreement further cementing our commitment to the care for the
environment.

Over the years, we have laid our focus on expanding our renewable energy generation portfolio. Because of our
pioneering initiatives and consistent ramp up, our waste heat recovery based power generation capacity is one
of the highest in the steel industry in terms of meeting the power requirements at the palnt. 80% of the power
required is met through captive sources of power.

We have expanded our focus and are now working on building capacity in waste heat Recovery space. Our
proportion of consumption of clean energy to our total energy consumption is amongst the highest in the
industry. This is helping us reduce our carbon footprint.

Enthusiasm is common Endurance is rare
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« Inour expansion plan of 130 MW, we shall add 90 MW of power through the waste heat recovery boiler route
which shall further reduce our carbon footprints and increase the ratio of renewables in our total energy
consumption.

* We are constantly experimenting with new concepts to minimize our ecological footprint whilst keeping a
balance with profitability. Our Thermal based power plants generate a lot of Fly Ash which can be used as raw
material for cement plant. Our company has been on a continued mode of expansion and lot of boundary walls
need to be raised. To meet this requirement at our plants we have started manufacturing of Fly ash Bricks which
are manufactured from various industrial wastes such as fly ash, sand, stone, dust and cement, are used globally
nowadays over clay bricks and traditional red bricks. Fly ash bricks are also known for being highly durable, less
permeable and environment-friendly as they are manufactured from waste materials that generate from the
combustion of coal in thermal power plants.

« We have over the years built a very strong risk management system which has been formulated by an
experienced Board and Senior Management Team. For eg. Power, we also felt the need to be connected to the
grid to manage the risk of any breakdowns which are unforeseen and could happen to any of the plants
supplying power.To mitigate the same we have always followed model of meeting 20% of our power
requirements through the grid.

» We also have a comprehensive water conservation policy and have captive water reservoirs in two of our plants
supplemented with rain water harvesting system.

66

The essentials of risk management lies in maximizing the areas where we have some control over
the outcome while minimising the areas where we have absolutely no control over the outcome
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A Powerful Brand Reputation

As a leading integrated metal producing company based in India with a diverse range of intermediate and finished products
across the steel value chain, we are poised to make the best of both current and future demands. With our two “Ore to metal”
integrated steel manufacturing plants (in Odisha's Sambalpur and West Bengal's Jamuria) at the core of our booming business
with domestic and international clients, we are at the cusp of achieving sustainable growth through a balance between resource
utilisation and asset generation. We use various industry leading technologies and have one of the lowest conversion costs
primarily due to efficient operations, high productivity, strategic location of our facilities and state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities. Our facilities are well connected to rail, road and port for logistics support, which provide a natural competitive
advantage in the form of reliable and cost efficient supply of raw materials and delivery of finished steel to the market.

E
Quality and consistency Consumer friendly solutions (in terms of E%
of products. portfolio basket, services and experiences) Digital First Culture.
[ [ [

® We keep the customers at the core of our business strategy. Our ambition is to achieve one of the most extensive steel

retailing footprints in India and getting closer to them to cater to their needs. We have a wide reach across 18 states
through a robust network of distributors and dealers. We cover almost 4000+ exclusive and multi-brand retail outlets
across geographies; with an expansion plan of doubling reach within next 2 years. While prices will be determined by
external demand-supply forces, our ability to remain nimble-footed and stay closer to the customer and cater to their
specific needs will determine our success. We recognise the need to possess distinctive digital capabilities to win the
future. We are pursuing an accelerated journey to build a “FutureTech”enterprise by embracing cutting-edge digital
technologies to shape a new paradigm of competitiveness, create innovation in business models and new emerging
opportunities. New frontiers are being explored across the entire value chain ecosystem to add significant impetus to
digital marketing, e-commerce and Phygital services and solutions.

* Our marketing strategy is based on customer segmentation which has helped us gain deeper understanding of our
existing and potential customers. We aim to engage deeply with consumers to understand emerging trends in real-time in
order to launch our basket of products, services and solutions and creatively engage with consumers. In order to generate
greater awareness and differentiate our Long products, the company has embarked on a Brand Transition journey. We have
developed an extensive marketing campaign with a leading celebrity endorser to differentiate our brand offering. The
campaign intends to strengthen our brand recall and position our unique offering, both to our customers and end-users.
We believe the key to our brand journey is to stay relevant to the emergent needs of the consumer at every moment of
delivery.

e Inthe past 5 years we have grown at a CAGR of 42.74% in terms of volume growth of our value-added products. In
the future we anticipate to grow at a CAGR of 36.33% in next 4 years based on the current expansion under
implementation.
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Embracing Technology

THE KEY LEVERS Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited is

committed to its mission of Industry 4.0.
The company has identified key levers like
Digitization, 10T, Less paper, Skill
Development, Operation Excellence
Program based on principles of KAIZEN,
55, Lean, TPMand TOM to achieveits goals.

The company has upgraded its ERP
platform from SAP ECC to SAP S4 HANA
2020 and also is committed to improve
the delivery by implementing FIORI and
upgrade the capabilities to mobility.

The company is also committed to transparency and visibility and to further the cause rides the SAP ARIBA as its e-sourcing tool
and is aggressively working to integrate the SAP S4 HANA engine to the e-sourcing engine. To achieve the end goal currently
the company is working inimproving its material management practices with PILOG and improve the backend infrastructure so
that by the end of the FY 2021-22 the entire indent to material receipt cycle should become hands-free and hassle free, with
and hassle free, with quality governance.

The company s currently engaged in 2 Operational Excellence Programs inits plants in Bengal and Odisha for a period of 26 to 30
weeks with BCG and Renoir. The objective is to introduce the best in class shop floor practices in our work areas.

The Company as follow up to these exercises is working on setting up its data Analytics platform by Nov-2021 and introduce
multilevel focussed Dashboard program to improve the decision making quality and process across all functions. The company
is also on track to implement its mobility platform so that the decision making from desks can be shifted to palm.

The company also is engaging and investing into the best in market tools to improve and manage its business processes with
The company also is engaging and investing into the best in market tools to improve and manage its business processes

, : WHERE ARE WE ?
The company is also committed and on

course to introduce highest levels of real
time digitization integrating L1, L2, L3 e :
and L4 Automation and setup a platform e ¥

to achieve consistency across the
operation landscape.

MANALTIMENT SYEEMN

| BOCUMENT

The company in its endeavour to be the
bestin businessis also partnering with the
very best in the world for introducing
knowledge and technology into various
spheres of work

OFERATIONAL
EXCHLLENCE
PERFORMANCE
ASRSESSMENT

CHL TR NG

SEA &
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Caring

20

% :

Rural Health .

Yearly Eye & Medical Camp foe Villagers.

Free Ambulance & Drinking water Services for
Villagers.

New Health center & Homoeopathy Clinics

FREE Medicine & Spectacles and Blood Donation
Camp

Rural Education

FREE Coaching Center for Economic backward section
Computer Training Center at Dhasnavillage
School bag and Cycle distribution

SHYAM Scholarship for Meritorious students of Economic Backwards

Social Infrastructure

:

Development .

Temples

Village Sanitation

Teacher’s Training & Remuneration
Village Handcraft's - Skill development
Sports Football Coaching

Gau Daan (care for Animals)
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* HApad safety Carnpaign SAFE DRVE SAVE LIFE
PRturg-atll = Soclo Emdronment Awareness
Fenass
« [Disrlbution of Helmet for Safe Drive Save Life
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66 . 49

A Company's long-term growth is intrinsically intertwined
with the progress of the communities it operates in
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To
The Members,

Your Directors have the pleasure to present you the Nineteenth Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited Annual
Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. Management Discussion & Analysis has been incorporated into this
report.

BNANCIAL RESULTS
The summarized financial results as compared to previous year are furnished below: ( in Crores)
Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Total Revenue 6,320.79 4,388.18 3,073.96 2,115.71
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 1417.51 677.92 717.85 316.68
Less: Interest (Finance Cost) 62.46 85.89 38.72 56.75
Profit before Depreciation/amortization and taxes (PBDAT) 1,355.05 592.03 679.13 25993
Less: Depreciation and amortization 300.36 296.68 149.66 15945
Profit before tax(PBT) 1,054.69 295.35 52947 10048
Adjustments for taxation
Current Tax 266.56 5745 115.82 21.00
Deferred Tax (55.16) (102.31) (25.25) (25.87)
Profit after tax(PAT) 843.56 340.23 43890 10535
Other comprehensive income for the year 5.15 043 3.50 134
Total comprehensive earning for the year 848.71 340.66 44240 106.69

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing value added products including Ferro Chrome, Ferro Manganese,
Silico Manganese, Pig Iron, Angle, Channel, Beam, TMT Bars, H.T. Billet, Special Steel Billet, M.S. Billets, Sponge Iron and Iron Pellet.
In addition, the company generates power mainly for captive use.

The Gross revenue has increased from ¥ 4402.05 Crores in the FY 2019-20to T 6352.29 Crores in the FY 2020-21 representing
the growth of 44.30%. The PBT also increased from¥ 295.37 Crores for the FY 2019-20 to¥ 1054.32 Crores in the current year.
PAT increased from ¥ 340.24 Crores in 2019-2020 to Rs 842.85 Crores in FY 2020-21.

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 % change Remarks

Operating Profit Margin 22.1% 15.2% 6.9% No Significant change

(without other income) (%)

Net Profit Margin (%) 13.4% 7.8% 56% No Significant change

Return on Net worth (%) 23.1% 12.0% 11.1% No Significant Change

Interest Coverage Ratio 17.51 430 1321% Improved due to higher operating profit

and reduction in interest cost

Debtor Turnover (days) 31 13 138% Increased due to trouble in collection
owing to covid related disruptions.

Inventory Turnover (days) 60 124 5161% Owing to lot of mines going for auctions

in the first quarter and expectation
of supply related disruption, and for
mitigating the same higher inventory
was invested upon which reached
normal levels at the end of the year.
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Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 % change Remarks
Current Ratio (Times) 1.92 1,62 18.52% Reduction in Working capital
Requirements
Debt — Equity Ratio (Times) 022 037 40.54% Improved due to reduction of short
term debts
PRODUCT WISE SALES PERFORMANCE
Product Group Qty. (InTon) Rsin Cr.
Iron Pellet 17,69,996 1,496.18
Sponge lron 3,25,644 68244
Billets 2,40,949 74367
Long Product 6,13,670 2,249.14
Ferro Product 1,39,842 966.12
Grand Total 30,90,101 6,137.56

®  Gross Debt to Equity stood at 0.22x, compared to 0.45x as on 31st March 2020, one of the lowest gearing amongst steel
Companies

e  Net Debt to Equity stood at 0.07x, compared to 0.38x as on 31st March 2020

®  Return on Capital Employed (RoCE) increased by 1,485 basis points to 25.3%

®  Return on Equity (RoE) increased by 1,120 basis points to 23.2%

e  Working Capital Days have reduced by 20 days from 89 days March 2020 to 69 days in March 2021
Key highlights of the year (Consolidated Basis):

e Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited is the fourth largest player in the Sponge Iron industry in terms of sponge iron industry
capacity in India and one of the leading players in terms of pellet capacity (Source: CRISIL Report).

Sale volume (Pellets, Steel & Ferro Products) witnessed an increase of 34% to 31.15 Lac tons in 2020-21 from 23.18 Lac tons
of steel products in the previous year. This is despite COVID-19 impacting the sale volumes in the early part of the year.
Increase in volume was observed across all regions where Company operates. However, increase in pellet sales went up
significantly from 9.93 Lac tons to 17.7 Lac tons.

® Increase in sales volumes led to Revenue from operations growing by 44% from ¥ 4376 crore to T 6297 crores. Company’s
continued focus on raising share of its value added products along with continuous efforts to position its brands led to
maintaining price realisation.

e  Key Cost components: Company has a sustained program to drive efficiency and mitigate cost headwinds across various
cost items which has made it one of the lowest cost steel producers in the country.

(@ Raw material: On account of continued optimisation in our iron ore and higher in-house production of pellets helped
mitigate the increase in cost of production. As a result, raw material cost remained at the same level of previous year.
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(b) Power & Fuel: Increase in share of low cost renewable energy and efficient energy management practices helped the
Company reduce its power cost during the year. Company’s pro-active procurement strategy and use of multiple fuels
coupled with increased usage of alternative fuels helped Company keep fuel cost static despite increasing prices of coal /
anthracite coke in international markets.

() LogisticCost: Logistics and transportation costincreased mainly on account of increase in diesel prices. Company continues
to work on efficiency improvement initiatives, rationalising routes and lead distances, enhancing direct dispatches and
raising use of technological tools in supply management etc. to keep the cost under check.

Finance Cost: Finance cost came down by 27% from ¥ 85.89 crore to ¥ 62.46 crore on account of repayment of short-term
borrowings and efficient working capital management.

e  Earnings Before Interest Depreciation and Tax (EBIDTA) rose to ¥ 1394 crore by 109% compared to ¥ 666 crore of previous
year on account of growth in volumes, higher share of value added products and cost optimisation measures.

During the year under review Company has paid interim Dividend @ 18.50% (Rs 1.85/- per share) on 23,36,10,100 equity shares
of the Company during the year 2020-21.

The Board has also recommended final dividend @ 27% (Rs. 2.70/- per share) subject to approval of Shareholders at the ensuing
Annual General meeting.

In terms of the provisions of the Finance Act, 2020, Dividend shall be taxed in the hands of shareholders and the company shall
withhold tax at source at the applicable rates. The total Dividend for the year amounts to ¥ 112.09 Crore.

During the year 2020-2021 an amount of ¥ 807.60 crores was transferred to General Reserves.
. I-.:I_-'Z_I '3 | 5

CONTINUE TO INCREASE OUR MANUFACTURING CAPACITIES

We intend to strengthen our leading market position in India and achieve better economies of scale by expanding our existing
manufacturing capacities and setting up additional manufacturing plants. We have, over the years, consistently grown our
manufacturing capabilities. We have recently undertaken various expansions of our manufacturing plants. For instance, (i) at
our Sambalpur manufacturing plant, we installed (a) two iron pellet plants of 300,000 TPA and 600,000 TPA, sponge iron plant of
165,000 TPA, TMT plant of 60,000 TPA, wire rod plant of 200,000 TPA and a captive power plant of 33 MW in Fiscal 2020; and (b)
a billet plant of 63,360 TPA in Fiscal 2019; and (i) at our Jamuria manufacturing plant, we installed (a) a 115,500 TPA sponge iron
plant and 95,040 TPA billet in the nine months ended December 31, 2020; (b) an iron pellet plant of 600,000 TPA, a sponge iron
plant of 99,000 TPA, a billet plant of 168,960 TPA, a TMT plant of 106,992 TPA, a wire rod plant of 200,000 TPA and a captive power
plant of 30 MW in Fiscal 2020; and (c) a ferro alloy plant of 14,000 TPA in Fiscal 2019.

Consistent with past practice, we will look to add capacity in a phased manner to ensure that we utilize our capacity at optimal
levels.

We are in the process of increasing the capacities of our existing manufacturing plants and captive power plants.

As a result of our proposed capacity expansion plans, our aggregate installed metal capacity (comprising of intermediate and
final products) and captive power plants installed capacity are proposed to be increased from 5.71 MTPA, as of December 31,
2020, to 11.60 MTPA, and 227 MW, as of December 31, 2020, to 357 MW, respectively. These proposed expansions are expected
to become operational between Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2025. These proposed expansion plans are expected to be undertaken on
the existing land on which our Sambalpur and Jamuria manufacturing plants are located and will help us in lowering the overall
cost of our proposed expansions.
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World output contracted sharply In 2020 as the health risks, restrictions on mobllity and economic activity due to Covid-19
Impacted both sentiment and demand. Accarding to the IMF, global outpurt fell by 3.3% In 2020, which Is unprecedented not
Just In terms of the skze of the decline, but also In termns of Its spread across the world,

India alsa registered a steep decline in output during the year. According to the Central Statistics Office {0S0), India's Gross
Damestic Product (GDP} is estimated to have contracted by 7.3% in 2020-21, cornpared to a 4% growth in the previous year.
Bath industry and services output dedined sharply by 7.09 and 8.4% respectively in 2020-21. In contrast, agriculture registered
a growth of 3,69, mitigating some of the impact.

Governments rasponded with strong fiscal and other measuras ta deal with the Impact of the pandemic. Flscal and monetary
easing, pollcy support and Initlatives by Governments and Central Banks ensured that business activity picked up at a faster pace
In the secand half of the year. IMF now estmates that the degrowth In 2020 was over 1% lower than the projectlon made In
October, 2020, Economles rebounded as lockdowns eased and businesses adapted to new ways of working.

Even as the chzllenges pasad by Cavid-19 continue — with countries, Including India, facing frash waves of Infection — averall
risks seem ta have receded somewhat with avallability of mult’ple vaccines and with the world having adapted to pandemlc
life. Strong pollcy support by governments acoss the world have also Improved the outiook. Consldering these, the IMF has
projected that global output will bounce back sharply to grow at 8% In 2021 and 4.4% In 2022 India, too, Is expected to register
a strong rebound 'n GDP growth, which 's estimated at 9.5% in 2021-22 by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} in 'ts Monetary Pollcy
Report released on June 4, 2021.
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Global econormy Is now on much firmer graund but high uncertalnty still persists. Much will depend upon how the spread of the
virus s contalned and how speedlly vaccines are made avallable. IMF estimates that world economy will grow at 63 and 4.4%
in 2021 and 2022 respectively.

Cornmadity prices have recavered globally from their record low levels a year ago, nudging nflation higher in rany countries.
IMF expects Inflation pressures to remalin containad golng farward.

The accelerating rollout of COVID-19 vaccines in many advanced ecanomies has set the stage for rapid recovery in the second
half of this year and into 2022. Advanced economies will remain less affected by the virus this year and beyond, with low-income
countries and emerging markets suffering more which 1s a carntrast to 2009. While, the global economy is expected to recover
to its pre-pandemic level of output in 2022, the emerging-market and developing economies are expected to take until 2023
to recover to the pre-pandemic level Policy rates in the United States, Eurazone, United Kingdom, and Japan will remain near
zero, well beyond 2021. Emerging market and developing economies may tale until 2023 to recover to the pre-pandemic level.
Irtermittent resurge in QOVID cases with different variants and pace of vaccination would drive the divergent recovery paths and
are likely to create wider gaps in living standards across courriries compared to pre-pandemic expeciations.

For Indig, the year 2020-2021 started with the worst business contraction caused by the Covid induced complete lockdown.
The pandermic hit an economy that was already under a slowdown. GDP fell by 249 in first quarter and 7.3% in second quarter
leading to a GDP contraction of 15.7% in the first half of 2020-2021.

Agriculture was the only sector to record growth In the first half of the year and cont/nued the positive growth In the second half.
Services sector, which Includes contact based activities, took the worst hi.

The Governmerrt and Reserve Bank of India (RB) responded with sirong measures to help the common man and businesses tide
over the unprecedented situation brought about by the pandemic, among which was the Rs 20 [akh crore Atmanirbhar Bharat
package.

RBI reduced the repo rate by 115 basls polnts from February, 2020 to 49 In May, 2020, which helped to lower the cast of funds
for businesses. CAR ratic was cut by 1% leaving banks with more Funds to lend, The Insolvency and bankruptcy code (IBC) was
suspended for a perfod of & months 1o provide rellef to businesses Irnpacted by unfavorable cash flows,

Economy recovered sharply in the second half aided by such measures and phasing out of lockdowns, beating growth projections
made after the first quarter GDP numbers were published. In October 2020, petrol and diesal consumption reached the same
leval as the previous year. Increase in Government expenditure in the second half of 2020-2021 aided the economic recovery.
The recovery was sharp prompting upgrades to GDP growth by global rating agencies as well as by RBI.

Third Quarter of 2020-2021, GDP recorded a marginal growth of 0.49% over third quarter of 2019-2020, helping the economy aut
of a technical recession, after 2 consecutive quarters of degrowth. While agricuhwral sector maintained fts growth, manufacturing
and financlal services retumed to growth. Service sector was stll In negative terrtory underin/ng the fact that contact-based
sactors will need to welt for a longer period to return to normalcy.

The GDP growth for the fourth quarter of 2020-2021 was better than estimated at 1.6%, powered by Government spending.
The crucial services sector finally tumed pasitive with a 1.5% growth in fourth quarter of 2020-2021, though some segments like
hotels and transport were still reflecting negative growth. The full year GDP contraction is at 7.3% (provisional), which is better
than Governmentk zarlier estimate of 8% contraction. RBI has now revised downwards the financial year 2022 GDP growth
forecast to 9.5% from its earlier 10.5%, factoring lower growth in first quarter of 2021-2022.

At the end of financial year 2021, Indla emerged out of the first Covid wave better than was estimated In the beginning of the
year, with growth topping earler estimates. The finandal systern was resllient, Balance sheet of banks are In a better position
to handle stress, having withstood the moratordum ghven for repayment of loans and the suspension of the IBC. Indla attracted
record forelgn fund Inflows last year, Forex reserves Improved by more than $ 100 Bn In financlal year 2020-2021 while forelgn
direct Investrnent was 5 81 Bn, 10% higher than the previous year, Indlan economny revealed a resillent soreak In the pandemic hit
year. Budget 2021 Is of far reaching significance for the Indlan economy, Infrastructure spending, majorly road Infrastructure, has
got a big boost, The fiscal defich target for the year at 6.8% Indlcates that the Govemment will not shy away from spending. The
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higher Government spending should have a positive impact on demand and manufacturing. Other measures in the budget like
setting up of the Asset Reconstruction Company for taking over stressed assets and privatizing two Public sector Banks and an
Insurance Company are positive measures, besides signaling a deeper role for the private sector in the economy.

While the economy is facing headwinds from the second Covid wave, prices are going up. Inflation is increasing as evidenced
by the Wholesale price index (WPI) in April, 2021 which increased by 10.4%, the highest in 11 years. The surge is due to higher
oil price and commodity prices which were low during the corresponding period last year. The combination of high oil and
commodity prices are resulting in higher end consumer prices. One hopes that this is a transitory phase and that RBI would keep
interest rates benign so as to sustain economic recovery.

GLOBAL STEEL INDUSTRY
Global Steel production in FY 2020 was 1864 Mnt, a drop of 0.9% from 1880 Mnt in FY 2019 (Source: World Steel Association).
Steel demand fell by 0.2% to 1771.8 Mnt in FY 2020 from 1775 Mnt in FY 2019.

The pricing of the Steel has remained buoyant since the Last Quarter of FY 2021, which has witnessed highs not seen in over a
decade. In FY 2020 the average global steel price was about 582/tonne in Dollar terms which however jumped to 883/tonne in
Dollar terms in the first five months of the Calendar Year starting 2021.

China’s crude steel production in 2020 reached 1,053.0 Mt, up by 5.2% on 2019’ level. China’s share of global crude steel
production increased from 53.3% in 2019 to 56.5% in 2020.

China, the largest steel making country, is limiting production, restricting exports, encouraging import of semi- finished steel
and is focusing on domestic consumption. Similarly, across the World the low investment scenario for the past several years on
infrastructure is now an opportunity to stimulate economic activity with huge fiscal stimulus on infrastructure. This will help the
industry sustain and grow in the coming years. In the light of this, steel demand and pricing are expected to remain firm in the
near to medium term with obvious short hiccups.

The domestic steel sector has witnessed a strong revival in third quarter of FY 2020-21 regaining the pre COVID19 level because
of a combination of factors such as strong retail demand emanating from a thriving rural economy, and green shoots of recovery
in white goods and the automobile sector, especially from tractors, passenger vehicles and two-wheelers.

This spree of high demand is likely to continue in FY22 backed by an uptick in the overall consumption; government’s efforts
to improve infrastructure, coupled with the ‘Atmanirbhar Bharat’ policy and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) initiative.
Government route for investment on infrastructure and projects such as affordable housing, railway line, metro rail, shipbuilding,
oil & gas distribution pipeline projects, etc, should boost steel consumption. Additionally, the government’s focus on rural
infrastructure projects will also give an impetus to the steel demand. The auto component sector has seen a recovery in the last
two quarters on the back of the increased affinity for personal mobility amid the pandemic, and the demand outlook for the next
fiscal year remains upbeat after two years of prolonged slowdown.

Steel prices are likely to stay firm as China is not expected to export large volumes owing to a better balance in their domestic
market, and there being no other significant exporter in the world market. The margin of large integrated players could further
improve on self-sufficiency of iron ore, lower coking coal costs and better fixed cost absorption due to near-normal utilization
rates.

PROJECTED GROWTH IN TOP 10 STEEL CONSUMING MARKETS Y-O-Y GROWTH RATES L70)

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements
Report
Countries 2020 2021 2022
South Korea -8.0 52 25
Russia -23 3.0 3.0
Germany -116 93 53
Turkey 13.0 18.7 5.7
Vietnam -4.2 5.0 7.6
Mexico -11.8 7.5 55

Countries 2020 2021 2022
China 9.1 3.0 1.0
India -13.7 19.8 59
United States -180 8.1 43
Japan -16.8 6.5 50
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India could end up producing 93-94 million tonne (MnT) of finished steel in FY 2021, a 10% decline compared to last year’s
production. In the current fiscal, the domestic steel demand is expected to contract by 9-11 per cent on account of the nationwide
lockdowns through April-May 2020 and slower-than-desirable ramp-up in manufacturing activities post that. The demand for
steel plunged 55% in the first quarter as the pan-India lockdown brought construction and manufacturing to a near standstill.

However, it has recovered sharply since then, with the demand decline limited to only 17 per cent in the first 9 months of FY
2020-21.The government’s support to rural income, festive season, has helped in substantial demand recovery for consumption-
driven manufacturing goods in the second half. With gradual relaxations in the lockdown measures and pent-up demand from
auto & construction sector, mills ramped up capacity utilization to over 90-95% towards year end from the level of 30-40% in
April 2020. While economic activity and hence steel demand has picked up from the third quarter, the huge blow suffered in the
first two quarters is likely to weigh heavy on the full year’s data. Steel demand was already under stress as the pandemic marched
in, causing stress across downstream segments.

Post fiscal 2020-21, steel demand will drive its growth trajectory to 15 per cent, led by numerous government led initiatives on
infrastructure and housing, as well as the automotive sector.

Union Cabinet approves Production-linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme for Specialty Steel

® Incentives worth ¥ 6,322 crores to be provided over five years for manufacturing of these products in India;
e  Scheme to attract an additional investment of about ¥ 40,000 crore;

®  Scheme estimated to generate more than 68,000 direct employment opportunities in the next 5 years;

®  The scheme will give employment to about 5,25,000 people of which 68,000 will be direct employment;

Specialty steel has been chosen as the target segment by Government of India because out of the production of 102 MT steel
in India in FY 2020-21, only 18 MT have been value added/specialty steel. Apart from this out of the 6.7 MT of imports in same
year, approx 4 MT import was of specialty steel along resulting in FOREX outgo of approximately Rs. 30,000 Crore. Government
of India plans to become “Atmanirbhar”in producing specialty steel which would help minimize this import and its huge bill.

The Five categories of specialty steel which have been chosen in the PLI scheme are:
e  Coated/Plated Steel Products

®  High Strength/Wear resistant steel

®  Specialty Rails

e  Alloy Steel Products and Steel wires[]

® Electrical Steel
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Indlan Sponge/Direct Reduced Iron (DR)) Industry: indla 1s the world's langest producer of Spenge Iron (or DR) and has over 400
ranufacturing units, Sponge Iron Is produced from Iron ore 2nd used In steel makdng prmarily through the secondary route,
Based on Joint Plant Comrnittee repart, Indla has produced =32 MnT of Sponge Ivan in FY 2020-21 as agalnst 37 MnT In FY 2019-
20 and witnessed e de-growth of 145 Of the totzl DRI production in Indls, large portion Is used for captive consumption by the
major producers. As far as merchant DRI demand is concermed, market was weak in Q1 and Q2 FY 2020-21 due to pandemic
Impeasing lockdown and supply chaln disruptions across many parts of country. Q3 and Q4 have been perlod of good recovery
for DRI Industry on account of Increesed consumpdon by steel units. DRI market In FY22 Is likely to bounce back on the strong
Government push towards construction & Infrestructure,

Billets comsumption has largely moved in conjunction with long steel production at around 2.59% to 3% CAGR during past five
year period from 2014 to 201510 2019 to 2020, Healthy infrastructure dermand coupled with modest growth in housing segment
drave long steel demand and thereby billets consumption.
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Goling ahead, CRISIL expects Indlas billet consurnption to rise approximately 43 through Fiscel 2025 prirarily led by:
» Strong growth In Bullding & Corstruction sector:

For the next five years, steel dermand from building and construction segment is esxpected to grow at a CAGR of 49 to 5% driven
by Government's focus towands affordable housing along with robust increase in rural and urban housing.

& |rfrastructure:

Infrastructure dermand has grown at @ mpld pace over the last few years and Is expected to cutpace overall steel dernand In
the longer run led by mads and rilways being key focus areas of the government. Further, urban Infra Is also expected to grow
primarlly by metro mil canstruction along with the Irrigation segment likely to witness Imestments In central, south and east

regions
s Auto:

Automoblle sector has been withessing de-growth since twa fiscals due o weak demnand and the Impact of the pandemic
However, the sector Is expected t revive In the long run and support blllets demand.

Pellets are normally praduced in the forrm of Glabules from very fine iron ore {normmally -1 00 mesh) and mostly used for production
of sponge iron in gas besed plants, though they are also used in blast flirmaces in some countries in place of sized iron ome.
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Pellet productian has risen at a rebust pace led by healthy domeste dermand along with exceptianal stride [n expart volumes
Share of exports In overall production has Increased from 1.59 In Fscal 2016 to around 18% in Fiscal 2020, Domestic sales of
pellets is estimated to have grown at 9% CAGR against 13% CAGR growth in exports from Fiscal 2017 to Fiscal 2020. Subdued
domestic demand owing to pandemic related lockdown In the Hi Ascal 2021 resulted In exports reaching appreximately 10
million tonnes dll Decernber In Rscal 2020.
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Gelng forward, CRISIL foresees the pellet demand to rise 2t 6% CAGR through Flscal 2025 primarfly ked by:
»  Revival in steel production growth thereby yialding an upward bias for pellet demand.

e High preference and usage of pellets led by better efficiency In BF units.

»  Ease of mansportadon.

®»  Increase in pellet production capacity by appraximately 28 million tonnes proposed bry major ISPs.

Over the medium term the rising domestic demand (s expected ta push cpadty utlibztion of peliet production to 80% from
76% in Fiscal 2020.

Ferm alleys ane alloys of inon with a high proportion of ane or mane than one other elerment eg: chromium, manganese or silicon.
In India, the primary demand of ferro alloys comes from steel making where It ls usad as an additive for the purpose of efther
de-oxIdation or to Impart special mechanical propertes to steel. Depending upon the process of steel making and the type of
steel belng produced, the requirement of ferro alloys varies wide, Typically, ferro alloys constitute around one percent of tatel
raw materialy used for steelmaking but are vital In Imparting special englneering properties like hardness, corraslon redsiance,
tersile strength, abrasion resistance, etc. The growth of the ferro alloy industry Is, thus, linked with the prospects of the steel and
stainless-steel irdustries.

There are two major graups of allays.

1. Bulkalkays conslstng of ferro alloys of Manganese, Chromlumn, Nicke! and Sllicon which are added In larger proportion to
steels,

2 Noble ferro alloys which are used In much smaller proportion in spedal and alloy steels for addition of vanadium,
molybdenum, Tungsten, Arconlurn, Thanlurn, Boron, Magneslum Sllicon and extra Low Carbon Fermo Chrome.
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Chrome alloys

Majarity of the femo chiome alloys are used In sainless steal produchon The average chrome cantent in stainless sheel is 16%
o 129 These are abo used to manufacture carbon steal and spedial alloy steel There are teo types of chmorne alloy- (@) chage
chrame- which B exciushvely Bsed In manuReauning of samieds steed and (h) fero chrome- which ha varied applications sich
a8 In the manufactunng of carbon steed @Mmmunition, drills, hand toolg, makbille cranes and mining equiprment, stainless stea
and also in the foundry Industry.

Manganese aloys

Manganese alloys are used In the steel making procsss to Inoeess s toughness and reduce s malleabiity. It 15 abo added
beause of Ity sulfur fedng, decaddizing 2nd other alloying propertes These alloys 2re used In varying proportions In manufacturing
almaost all types of steel. The average corsurmgtion of manganese alloy i 7 to 10 kg per tonne of steel produced. Manganese
alkoys are further Griegorized into Farmo manganess and slico manganese.

Ferro manganese, when added during the sieeHmaking process, helps In lowering the meling poirt of steel. it 1s made by
heating the mbaure of manganese mdde and ferric oxdde with crbon In a blast or dearl arc fumace

Sico manganess s used a5 a de-mddam, sulfide former and alloying element In the sizel Industry, or In the production of
other manganese alloys. In the case of sainless seel, itk 2lpo used @ substinne epensive nickel In some ausEnidc grades. ks
produced from manganese-rich skag - @ by-product from femo manganese producion.

Demand Review
Chrome Alloy

Damestic demand growth of chrame alioys i estimated @ have grown at 7% betoesn 2015 t 2016 and 2019 @ 2020 This
wirt lad by stong growth In siainless neel production, approodmntely % CAGR during the same perod, which oconattes
approodmntaly 70% of chrome elloy demand, Apart from sizinless stee|, chrome alloys alse find application In casting and ather
smaller 1pgmerm=
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Manganese Alloy

During Flscal 201 7 to Real 2020, manganese elloy dermand posied a2 4.0% CAGR, mimoring the growth In off-zke from aarbon
sieel manufacurens and other endusers such 23 sinless sieel, Estings and other elloy steel, which together aocoured for
Bbout 56% of menganese alloy consumption.
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Demand Outank

Domestic Fermo Chrome demand i sopectad to dedine by 8% m 11% 1n Fscal 2121 due m stepp fall In demand from Archiecture,
Bullding and Construction and automathe, iyt and trangport wsgmants fram sainkec stesd Indugry which corstiume
appraximataly 70% of end Lsa Industry damand smid GOVID-19 crids. Dermand from castings {constitutes approodrmately 10% of
the Dl demand] and ather slloys {constiunes approodmately 20% of tve demand) 2re Expected ta fall dgnificanty by 10% to
1256 and 9% 1o 11% resperthvely. Demand 1s expeacted to pick Up In Fliecel 2022 with 2% to 10% growth with Improwed deaviand
from stalnlesx sel Industry and castings segrment.
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Ferromanganese demand has witnessed a muted grown by approsimately 0.19% In Ascal 2020 due to weak domestic steel
dernand We expect ferromanganese consumptlion to further to decline by 5% to 796 In Aiscal 2021 as qude steel production to
declime by 2% te 4% In Ascal 2021 (production dedined by 33% an-year In April to July of Ascal 2021) due to steep fall (n steal
dernand due to weak autornobile and construction activity amid COMD pandermic. Going forward, the demand to pick up by 73
to 9% In Ascal 2022 as the crude steel production to Improve on back of healthy steel demand.

Mangaaese =lloy demand from enc-uger sectors
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Oemand Forecast for Ferro Alloys;
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Cormpanyk risk management proces k designed to Identify and mitigate risis that have the patentfal to materially Impact
I business objecthwes and maintalns 2 balance between managing risk and making mast of the oppartunides. The Board Is
resporgble for gverseeing the ovenall risk menagernent frarmework of the Company, The Chalmman and Imternal Auditor of
the Compary, keeps an eye on execution of the risk management plan of the Company and advises the management on
strengthening mitigating measures wherever required The actual 'dentlfication, assessment and mitigatdon of risks are however
done by key exacutives of the Company In a systematic manner through regular meetdngs and dlalogue and engagerment
/ consultation with relevant stakeholders. The risks are prioridsed according to significance and Ikellhood. Risks having high
likelhood and high significance are classified as ey sk’
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The key risks 1dentlfied by the Cornpary 2nd thelr mitigation measures are as under:

a

b)

Z 49

o)

Loss of any of our suppllers or a fallure by aur suppliers to deltver some of our primary raw materials such as Iron ore, Iron
ore fines, coal, chroma are and manganese ore may have an adverse impact on our abllty to continue our manufacturing
process withaut interruption and our ability to manufacture and deliver the products to our customers without any delay.
Further, restrictions on import of raw materials and an incnease in shipment cost may adversely impact our business and
results of operations.

Our success depends on stable and rellable loglstcs and transportation Infresmucture, Disruption of logistcs and
transportation services could Impalr the abllity of our suppllers to deliver rw materials or our ability to deliver products o
our custorners and/ or Increase our transportation costs, which may adversely affect our operations.

The dermand end priding in the steel industry is volatile and are sensitive to the cydical nature of the industries it serves. A
decrease in steel prices may have a materiel adverse effect on our business, results of operations, prospects and finandal
condftion.

The COMD-19 pandemic and resulting deterloradon of general economic conditions has Impacted our business and resufts
of operations In the past and the extent to which it will Impact our future business and results of operations will depend on
future developments, which are difficult to predict

The steel industry is chamacterized by volatility In the prices of mw materlals 2nd energy which could adversaly affect our
profitability. We may be negathvely affected by signifiant price volatility, particularly In the event of excess preduction
cEpadty in the global steel market, and [ncur eperating losses as a result.

Our manufacuring plants and sources of our raw materials are primarlly concentrated In eastern Indfa and any adverse
developments affecting this reglon could have an adverse effect an aur busihess, results of operations and finandal
condition.

Our business Is subsntizlly affected by prevalling ecanamic, polltical and other prevailing condltons In Indfa and globally.

A certaln amount of our revenue Is generated from certaln key customers, and the loss of one or more such customers, the
deterioration of their finandial condition or prospects, or a reduction in their demand for our producis could adversely affect
our business, results of operations, finandal condition and cash flows.

Our Campany has 2pplled for registration of the tradernark In relatien to aur name and comporate bga. Undl such
registretdons are gramed, we may not be able to prevent unauthorised use of such tredemaria by third parties, which may
lead to the dilution of our goodwill snd adversely affect our business, An Inabllity to protect, strengthen and enhance our
existing brand for our products could adversely affect our business prospects and financlal performance,

Our business is seasonal in neture and therefore our results of operations for any quarter in a given year may not, therefore,
be comparable with other quarters in that year.

A reducdon In Import dudes on steel products In Indla may lead to Increased competdan from forelgn companles, reduce
our market share and reduce margins on our products.

We derive a portion of our revenues from exports to g limited number of markets and any adverse developments in these
merkets or Inabllity to enter Into new markets could adversely affect our business.

Curency exchange rate fluctuadons may have an adverse effect on our results of operatons and value of the Equity Shares.

|Fther= is any change In laws or regulations, Induding taxetion lews, or thelr Interpretation, such changes may significantly
affect our finandal statements.

If mflation were to rfse In Indla, we might not be able to Increase the prices of our services at a proportional rate In order
pass costs on ta our clients thereby reducing our margins,
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RNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Company has put in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size of operations. Company’s internal
control systems include policies and procedures, IT systems, delegation of authority, segregation of duties, internal audit and
review framework, etc. Company has laid down internal financial controls and systems with regard to adherence to Company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The framework is in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company periodically assesses design as well as operational effectiveness of its internal controls
across multiple functions and locations through extensive internal audit exercises. Based on the assessment of internal audit
function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas, and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant
audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board
on periodical basis. The Audit and Risk Management Committee evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial
control systems periodically.

IUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

In today's fiercely competitive business environment, attracting, retaining and nurturing the best talent is key to attaining the
strategic objective of the Company. In this respect, the Company continues to take necessary measures and create a conducive
atmosphere for the same. Major initiatives taken during the year were: -

1. Ollineto Online:  The process of talent acquisition and learning was made online after the outbreak of COVID-19 induced
lockdown in April, 2020. The Company used Webex and Zoom, etc,, platforms to deliver live training programs and for
interaction with employees. The interview and selection process which used to be conducted in person have shifted to
online platforms and was successfully managed even when volumes increased.

2. Focus on automation: There has been an increased focus on automation. Multiple HR processes have been automated,
thereby bringing in a significant reduction in cycle time and incidence of errors. The focus was HR - One an app internally
developed by the IT team with inputs from HR. It is a one stop solution for all employee queries, leave balance, attendance
management, policy related solutions and a lot more. These solutions have been extremely well received within the
organisation, and the team is working towards improving it further based on the feedback received.

3. Health & Wellness: As important as it is in all times, the year gone by showed how important health and wellness of
employees are. Company conducted programs on holistic health and wellness, staying fit at home, mental health, yoga by
industry experts etc. The in-house coach also conducted virtual exercise classes encouraging people to stay fit. The efforts
were well appreciated when the Company was recognised as a winner in the Health and Wellness category by Society of
Human Resource Management, India. Company also rolled out free vaccination program for the employees and their family
members as part of the Health and Wellness program.

4. Occupational Health and Safety - Following a ‘Safety First’ approach, health and safety is a top priority area of the
Company. To institutionalise the organisation-wide focus on Occupational Health and Safety, Company has built a robust
safety management system.

5. Industrial Relations - Employee relations remained cordial during the year. This has enabled Company to build healthy
relationship and resolve issues through dialogue and discussions.

Total number of employees as on March 31, 2021 were 11,676 comprising of 6,063 permanent employees and 5,616 contract
employees for our operations.

~ARDORATE (~WERN AN
ORPORATE GOVERMNANC

Your Directors reaffirm their continued commitment to good corporate governance practices. During the year under review,
Company was in compliance with the provisions relating to corporate governance as provided under the Securities Exchange
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Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended). The compliance report is
provided in the Corporate Governance section of this Annual Report. The Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance is
enclosed at Annexure - 1.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

As part of its triple bottom-line approach to its business, Company has always considered the community as its key stakeholder.
It believes that the community around its operations should also grow and prosper in the same manner as does its own business.
Accordingly, Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of the Company’s business philosophy. In order to oversee
all its CSR initiatives and activities, the Company has constituted a Board level Committee - “Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee” (CSR Committee). The major thrust areas of the Company include healthcare, education, women empowerment,
infrastructure support, integrated rural development, etc. which are aligned to the areas specified under Schedule VIl to the
Companies Act, 2013. The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2020-21 with requisite details in the specified format as required
under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is enclosed at Annexure-2 and forms part
of this report. The CSR Policy of the Company may be accessed on website of the Company at link https://www.shyammetalics.
com csr-policy.pdf.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES

As on 31st March 2021, your Company has 5 direct subsidiaries and 7 Second layer Subsidiaries.
Direct Subsidiaries :

1. Shyam Sel and Power Ltd,

2. Damodar Aluminium Pvt. Ltd,

3. Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited,

4.  Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited
5

Kalinga Infra Project Ltd

2nd layer subsidiaries (Subsidiaries of Shyam SEL & Power Ltd)
1. Meadow Housing Private Limited.

Shyam Energy Limited,,

Whispering Developers Pvt. Ltd.

Taurus Estate Pvt. Ltd.

Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Pvt Ltd ,

Nirjhar Commodities Pvt Ltd

N oA~ N

Shree Sikhar [ron and Steel Private Limited

Your Company is also having, Meghana Vyapar Pvt. Ltd, Kecons Trade Care Pvt. Ltd, and Kolhan Complex Private Limited as its
associate Companies and MJSJ Coal Limited as Joint Venture.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, state
the following:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
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b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have been made
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2021
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively;

f)  that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and
operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS / OUTGO
The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required to

be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
is set out at Annexure - 3 which forms part of this report.

oA DT~ S

ARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided at Annexure - 4.
AUDITORS AND AUIDTORS' REPORT

Statutory Audit:

Under section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder, it is mandatory to rotate the statutory Auditors. In line
with the requirements of the Act M/s. S. K Agrawal & Co Chartered Accountants LLP, was appointed as statutory Auditor of the
Company to hold the office for the period of 4 consecutive years from the conclusion of the 16th Annual General Meeting held
on 26th September, 2017 till the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting.

They are proposed to be re-appointed and their certificate towards qualification and intention were all duly received.
Auditors'Report:

Report of the auditors, read with the notes to the financial statements, is self-explanatory and needs no elaboration.
Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors proposed for re-appointed M/s Abhimanyu Nayak & Associates Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors
for the financial year ended 2021-22 and their remuneration is sought to be ratified from the shareholders at the forth coming
Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014, your company has appointed Ms DS & Associates LLP Practicing Company Secretary having
CP no. 12963 to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your company for the Financial Year, 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is annexed herewith as “Annexure-5"to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does
not contain any qualification, reservation and adverse remark
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The Audit Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Committee is responsible for the effective supervision of the financial reporting
processes to ensure accurate, timely, and proper disclosures and transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

Members of the Audit Committee

AL A'ala [ B ARr A M T KARA .
MEETING OF THE BOARD AND COMM ] e

During the year Nine (9) Board Meetings, Four (4) Audit Committee Meetings, two (2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
meeting and One (1) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of number of meetings of
Board and various committees of your Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this report.

The attendance of the Directors is mentioned here-in-after:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings Attended Last AGM Attended
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal 9 YES
Mr. Brij Bhusan Agarwal 9 YES
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 9 YES
Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal 9 YES
Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari 3 NO
Mr. Bhagwan Shaw 2 NO
Mr. Venkat Krishna Nageshwara Rao Majji 2 NO
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal 9 YES
Mr. Ajay Choudhary 7 NO
Mr. Kishan Gopal Balswa 8 YES
Mr. Yudhvir Singh Jain 5 NO
Mr. Rajni Mishra 3 NO

The Directors state that applicable secretarial standards i.e. S5-1 and SS-2 relating to the meetings of Board of Directors and
General meeting have been duly followed by the Company.

Annual Return: In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at link https//www.
shyammetalics.com/investors/shareholderinformation.

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in Notes to the standalone financial statements.

All related party transactions for the year under review were on arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There
are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel which may have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. The details of the transactions with the
related parties are disclosed in the notes to Financial Statements. A statement containing salient features of transactions with
Subsidiary/ Associate/ Joint Venture companies in Form AOC1 and Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions in AOC-2
are attached hereafter in Annexure — D (i} and D (ji).
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During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

=

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management Policy to deal with instance of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion, the Company is committed to the
high standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility. The Company has a Fraud Risk and Management Policy
to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst
dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern. A high
level Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised. The Committee reports to the Audit Committee
and the Board

Further, as on date the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company (apart
from the general market risks) which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 213
an Rule made thereunder, your company has constituted an internal Complaints Committee having designated independent
members to redress complaints regarding sexual harassment , During the year no complain regarding sexual harassment has
been reported .

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

A Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and

appointment of Board Members, KMPs and Senior Management of the Company. The composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was as follows:

1. Mr Ajay Choudhury (Independent Director)
2. Mrs. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)

3. MrYS. Jain from 25.10.2019 (Independent Director)

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report.

The Company completed its Initial Public Offering on 21/06/2021, after the closure of the reporting period, of Rs 909.00 Crores
consisting of Fresh Issue of Rs 657.00 Crores and offer for sale of Rs 252.00 Crores.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

There are no such adverse orders which has been passed by the Regulator or Court or Tribunal during the Statutory Compliance
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STATUTORY COMPLIANCI

The Managing Director, after obtaining confirmation from all the departments of the Company, makes a periodic declaration
regarding the compliance with the provisions of various statutes, applicable to the Company. An enterprise-wide digital
compliance management tool has been implemented to help monitor compliance real-time across the organization. Due
systems and processes are in place to ensure effectiveness of this tool. The Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer,
ensures compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Sources: Reports of RBI, World Steel Association (WSA/ Worldsteel) and India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF) and Team analysis
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The financial statements appearing above are in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
statements in the report which may be considered forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations, have been based upon current expectations and projection about future events. The management cannot, however,
guarantee that these forward looking statements will be realised or achieved.

There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 2020-21 the Authorised Capital of the Company was Rs 290.00 ( Rs Two hundred ninty crores only)
divided into 29,00,00,000 (Twenty nine crores ) Equity shares of Rs 10 each. The paid up equity capital as on March 31, 2021 was
Rs 2,33,61,01,000/-.( Rs Two hundred thirty three crores sixty one lacs one thousand only) divided in to 23,36,10,100 equity shares
of Rs 10 each .The Company has not issued any shares or securities with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor
sweat equity.

However, the Company completed its Initial Public Offering on 21/06/2021, after the closure of the reporting period.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

As on the reporting date, 23,36,10,100 equity shares, representing about 100% of the total paid-up capital of the Company, have
been dematerialized through the depository- National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

The Company has come out with an Initial Public Offer ( IPO) of Rs 909.00 Crores consisting of Fresh Issue of Rs 657.00 Crores
and offer for sale of Rs 252.00 Crores.

Your Company has been regular in meeting its obligation towards payment of Principal/Interest to the Banks and other
institutions. The company continues to focus on judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other
working capital parameters were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr Dev Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 02432511) and Mr Sanjay Kumar Agarwal ( DIN: 00232938) , Directors retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re appointment. The Board of Directors recommends their re-appointment.

Mrs. Rajni Mishra ( DIN : 07706571) has been appointed as an Independent Director w.ef, 11th February, 2021 and Mrs Kiran Vimal
Agarwal has resigned from the board w.ef. 12th February, 2021

Annual Report 2020-21 | 41



SHYAM
METALICS

Report

TATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

DECLERATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made there-under. They have filed their declaration with the Company at the beginning of the Financial Year 20120-21
affirming that they continue to meet the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of their position as an “Independent Director of the Company”.

The Independent Directors had a meeting on 5th March 2021 to review the performances and evaluation criterias of the Non-
Independent Directors amd communicated their findings to the Chairman of the Board.

Company’s policy on Directors appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes,
independence of Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company on recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee have adopted a criteria for determination of qualification, positive attributes and
independence of directors and Policy for Remuneration of Directors, a Policy for Remuneration of Senior Management Personnel
(including Key Management Personnel) and a Policy for Remuneration of Other Employees.

ROARD Fy/A AT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own performance
as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried
out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as composition of
the Board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, contribution at the
meetings and otherwise, independent judgment, governance issues etc.

D[ \ A " O A MM " Fan Y,
REMUNERATION POLI

In accordance with the provision of the Section 178 of the Companies Act the policy of Nomination and Remuneration
of Director s, Key managerial Personnel and Senior management of your Company may be assessed under Corporate
Governance Section.

ORI AL COWARL AINTS OWAMITT CrOIPE ANDY PO ICY

In order to provide protection against sexual harassment of women at work place and for the prevention and redressal of
complaints of sexual harassment and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto, an Internal Complaint Committee has
been formed and the policy on“Anti Sexual Harassment”as per the provisions of The Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.The following are the members of the Committee:

1. Mr. Angshuman Dutta - Chairman
2. Ms. Sampa Saha-Member
3. Mr. RK. Chakraborty -Member

Matters handled by the previous Internal Complaint Committee during the year 2020-21, are as follows:-
- Number of complaints on sexual harassment received during the year: NIL

- Number of complaints disposed o ffduring the year: N.A.

- Number of cases pending for more than 90 days: N.A.

- Nature of action taken by the Employer: N.A.
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The policy, objectives, scope and other details is contained in the Internal Complaints Committee Policy maintained by the
Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors express their sincere appreciation to the valued shareholders, employees, Business Associates, Customers, Suppliers,
Financial Institutions, bankers and clients for their support and also various Central and State Government Departments,

Organizations and Agencies especially The Government of West Bengal and Crissa for the continued help and co-operation
extended by them.

For and on behalf of the Board

O Ol B W e {
ori) pnusnan Agarwa >anjay Agarwa

Date : 8th July, 2021 VC & Managing Director . Mahaging Director
Place : Kolkata (DIN: 01125056) (DIN: 00232938)
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ANNEXURE -1 ANNEXURE -2

ERTIF EE C LIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERN F REQUIREMENT NDER SEBI (LISTING CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

BLIG IS ) DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGL ON ) . L . . N - . . i

3 : i l : ' Shyam Metalics & Energy Ltd is alive to its Corporate Social Responsibility and understands the critical role it plays in ensuring the
To, long terms sustainability of a resource based company, and it has accordingly been giving this a high priority. In compliance with
The Members of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited
"Trinity Tower" 83 Topsia Road,
7th Floor Kolkata 700046

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company have constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee which comprises of the following members:

We have examined the relevant documents and records maintained by Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited having 1. Mr.Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - Chairman
CIN: U40101WB2002PLC095491 (hereinafter referred as ‘the Company’) for certifying the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance for the year ended on 31st March, 2021, as stipulated in Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations’). However, the Company
became a listed entity upon listing of its equity shares pursuance to allotment made on 21st June, 2021 which was listed
on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on 24th June, 2021.

2. Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal - (Managing Director)
3. MrAjay Choudhury - (Independent Director)
Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR : ¥ 209 Crores

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 2 above) : ¥ 4.18 Crores

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
Financial Statements of the Company.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
a. Total amount had been spent for the financial year: ¥ 6.23 Crores

b. Amount unspent: ¥ Nil

In terms of Regulation 15(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions

¢.  Mannerin which amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the

P M M M M M M MmO E m M M M EEEEEEEEEEEEm,

SEBI Listing Regulations are applicable to a Listed Entity within six months from the date on which the Company became Sr. | CSRProject | Clause& | Sector in which Projects or Amt Amount | Cumulative |  Amount Spent:
a listed entity viz, 24th June, 2021. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations No. | orActivity | Schedule | the projectis Programs outly | spentonthe | Expenditure | Directorthrough
given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the dentiied No. covered (1)local area (budget) | projectsor upto the implementaing
above mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations to the extent applicable to it. or other project or programs repor'tlng agency
(2) Specify the programs | Subheads: period Direct |mplementing
We further state that this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or state and district wise (1) Direct Agency
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. where projects Expenditure
orprograms  wa (2) Overheads
o undertaken
(Preeti Agarwal) 1| Promoting | Clausel Eradicating Odisha 113 113 113 -
Partner Preventive | Schedule | hunger, poverty
KPA & Co. HealthCare VI & malnutrition,
Practicing Company Secretaries Firm promoting
Firm Registration No : P2019WB078600 preventing
Peer Review No : 1363/2021 health care and
FCS No : 10297 sanitation and
Date: 8th July, 2021 CP No: 22698 making available
Place: Kolkata UDIN : F010297C000680384 safe d'tinking
water;
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Sr.

No.

CSR Project
or Activity
[dentiied

Clause &
Schedule
No.

Sector in which
the project is
covered

Projec ts or
Programs
(1) local area
or other
(2) Specify the
state and district
where projects

orprograms  wag

undertaken

Amt
outlay
(budget)
project or
programs
wise

Amount
spent on the
projects or
programs
Subheads:
(1) Direct
Expenditure
(2) Overheads

Cumulative
Expenditure
upto the
reporting
period

Amount Spen t:
Direct or through
implementaing
agency

Direct |mplementing

Agency

Natural
Disaster Relief

Clause
Schedule
Vil

Eradicating
hunger, powerty
&insulation
, promoting,
preventing
health care and
sanitization and
making available
safe drinking
water

West Bengal

001

001

0.0

Promoting
Education

Clause Il
Schedule
Vil

Promoting
education,
including special
education and
employment
enhancing
vocation skills
especially
among children,
women, elderly,
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects;

Odisha

0.05

005

005 -

Protection of
Art & Cukture

Clause viii
Schedule
Vil

Protection of
Natural heritage
art & Culture
including
restoration of
building and
sites of historical
importance &
work of art,
setting up of
public library,
promotion and
development of
traditional art and

cultural

Odisha

004

004

004
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Sr. | CSRProject | Clause& | Sectorin which Projec ts or Amt Amount Cumulative Amount Spen t:
No. | orActivity | Schedule | theprojectis Programs outlay spentonthe |Expenditure | Direct orthrough
Identiied No. covered (1) local area (budget) projects or upto the implementaing
or other project or programs reporting agency
(2) Specify the programs | Subheads: period Direct |mplementing
state and district wise (1) Direct Agency
where projects Expenditure
or programs  waj (2) Overheads
undertaken
5 | Measure for Clauselll Promoting 0.13 0.13 0.13
reducing | Schedule | genderequality
inequalities Vil , empowering
faced by women setting
society and up home and
economically hostels for
backward women and
group. orphans, setting
up oldage homes,
day care centre
and facilities  for
senior citizen
, measures
for reducing
inequalities faced
by socially and
exconomically
backward group.
6 Clause IV Ensuring Odisha 064 064 064 -
Animal Schedule | environmental
Welfare VI sustainability,
ecological balance
, protection of
flora and fauna
, animal welfare
, agroforestry,
conservation of
natural resources
and maintaining
quality of soil, air
and water
7 | Promoting | Clause X Training to Odisha 035 035 035 -
Sports Schedule | promote rural
VI sports, nationally
recognised
sports, Paralympic
and Olympic
sports;
8 Rural Clause X Rural Odisha 388 388 388
Development | ScheduleVI| = Development
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ANNEXURE -3

Information in Accordance with the Provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (accounts) rules, 2014. Regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption.

48

AGY CONS ._l 1C N

The Company continued to focus on initiatives that enable improve efficiency in energy use and has deployed several
technological interventions to conserve energy.

Energy conservation was taken up as a key improvement during the year and the approach prioritises actions through a
three-pronged strategy:

1. Prevention / minimization - i.e, Preventing Wastage / minimization of energy usage by Achieve lower values of fuel /
energy consumption.

2. Improving Recovery - Deploying innovative methods of recovering higher amount of unused fuel heat in various
process exhausts / recovery system.

3. Higher Re-use / Re-cycling — studying available potential of recovered energy from various sources and doing a cost-
benefit analysis of practices required.

Steps Taken for Energy Conservation and enhancement of plant efficiency:
1. Auxiliary power consumption of CPP minimised by installationof VFD in fan and Pump motors inBoiler and Cooling
towers to optimise the power consumption. All conventional light has been replaced by energy efficient LED lights.

2. Additional Economiser coil has been installed in waste heat recovery boiler to absorb maximum waste heat from the
flue gas and increase the steam flow in DRI Kilns.

3. Steam and feed water lines interconnection has been made between the units for maximizing the plant utilization and
flexibility in operation.

4. Motorised coal feeder of AFBC boiler of unit-l has been replaced by modifying the coal feeder hopper system to
reduce power consumption.

5. Reuse of bed material has been implemented in AFBC Boiler to minimise the operational cost.

Multiple screw compressors have been replaced by higher rating of efficient centrifugal compressor to minimise the
power consumption and maintenance cost.

7. Qil based kiln heating has been replaced by producer gas plant (Indian coal based)in pellet plantto minimise the
operational cost. It has led to savings in excess of Rs. 100 crore in a year.

8. Additional MV/LV capacitor banks have been added into system to maximise the power factor. It has led to
significant reduction in monthly energy charges

9. Dual source of power has been made for SMS auxiliary power for better reliability/ availability of plant.

10. Power consumption of sponge iron feeding to steel melting shop has been reduced by 60% by making direct
conveying system from sponge iron storage silo to SMS induction furnaces.

11. Installed Hydraulic Shearing machine in CCM for billet cutting to eliminate the usage of Oxygen and LPG cylinders and
also introduced automated billet size measuring system.,

12. Installed VFD in roller conveyor motors to reduce powerconsumption. It has saved power approximately
63000KWH per month in WRM plant.

13. Induction furnace of SMS-1 has been changed to higher capacity (20MT) to optimise the operational cost and
maximise the production in SMS division and associated WRM plant.
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Hot billet rolling has been implemented in WRM, TMT, and Structure mill to save reheating fuels in the mills.
Unburned coal of PGP plant and sponge iron has been used in boiler to optimise the power generation cost.

Generated coal tar of PGP is used as fuel at various suitable heating process areas to save the cost and also meet the
environment norms,

Floating and Roof top solar plant has been under implementation to generate renewable energy capacity of 3900 KW.

Replaced steam soot Blowers to sonic blowers (air operated) to minimise the energyand enhance the life of heating tubes
in WHRB.

Steam dumping system Implementation at TG-5 to avoid wastage of steam during venting / start-up.
Hot Charging conveyors installed for conveying of billets to WRM. Thus reduction in fuel for reheating and energy.

Installation of 12MT Induction furnace having less specific power consumption with higher production rate is under
progress.

After material separation through jigging process and recovery of Ferro alloys material, rest slag was utilized for civil works.
Adopted side reel technology in Stand no 2 for rolling of ISMB sections, this has given better productivity with less rejection

Waste water treatment plant has been installed to utilise all waste water generated in process and achieved zero
discharge norms too.

Fly ash conveying system introduced for better housekeeping, minimise of vehicular moment in the plant and
elimination of fly ash emission.

Conventional air conditioning system replaced by Vapour absorption chiller machine (VAM)to reduce energy and

environment friendly operation.
Implementation of oxygen plant for optimisation of production cost and to avoid dependency of outside agency.

Using slag contaminated waste iron through the inspection of slag crusher products, which helps us to extract iron by
using the same in induction furnace which results in reduction production cost.

Waste carbonaceous material like dolochar, bag filter micron fugitive dust is used in AFBC boiler to reduce fuel costs.

Iron oxide waste sludge (Wet Scrapper) material having FeT used at pellet grinding section by using of others hematite
high Fe(T), which resulted in satisfactory finished products.

Accretion bolder having FeT 55.0% + recovered metal at SMS by processing through slag crusher enrichment.
Developing of New structure production in the mill i.e., ISA 75X75X10 and ISMB 125 with the existing setup.

16"(Inches) Roughing stand replaced by 22"(Inches) and Reduction gear box internal modified as per the new required
RPMi.e reduced from 120 to 90. This gives better rolling process for heavy sections (160*160 billets) as well as for light
sections.

Expenses on R&D:

All research & development activities being a part of operation cum projects and the expenditure are of continuous
nature, there is no separate cell for R&D activities and expenses and cost associated with such activities are grouped under
the respective heads as per pre established accounting policies.

Eforts made towards technology absorption, adaption and innovation :

To increase the consumption of Dolachar for generation of Power.
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Beneits derived as a result of above eforts:
This will result in reduction in overall cost of coal consumption.
Future plan of action

Improving the in-house R&D facilities and workforce to develop and grab the new technologies which have been used for
backward and forward integration.

Activities relating to exports, initiative to increase exports, developments of new export markets for products and services
and export plan.

The Company is making continuous efforts to increase its exports by exploring and developing new markets for its product.
This effort was shows up in the current year (i.e. 2020-21) Total Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo.

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Earning: Export * 80648 421.11
Outgo : Import 32266 281.86
QOutgo :Expenditure in Foreign Currency 214 13.13

*Note: Some amount of exports were made to country Nepal in India currency only.
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ANNEXURE - 4

i.  The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21, the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Finance Officer and Company
Secretary during the financial year 2020-21 are as under:

SL Name of Director/KMP and Designation Remuneration Ratio of % increase in the
No. of Director/KMP remuneration remuneration
for Financial Year | of Each Director | for the Financial
2020-21 to median Year 2020-21
(Rs. In crores) remuneration of
employees
1 | MAHABIR PRASAD AGARWAL - Chairman (Non executive) 0.60 31.25 0%
2 | BRIJ BHUSHAN AGARWAL - VC & Managing Director/KMP 4.13 215.10 0%
3 | SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL - Jt. Managing Director/KMP 0.83 43.23 0%
4 | DEEPAK KUMAR AGARWAL - Whole Time Director/KMP 0.35 18.23 0%
5 | DEVKUMARTIWARI - Whole Time Director 0.18 9.38 0%
6 | BHAGWAN SHAW - Whole Time Director 0.06 3.3 0%
7 | KIRAN AGARWAL - Additional Director * = - =
8 | ASHOK KUMAR JAISWAL - Independent Director - - -
9 | KISHAN GOPAL BALDWA - Independent Director - - -
10 | YUDHVIR SINGH JAIN - Independent Director - - -
11 [ VENKATA KRISHNA NAGESWARA RAO MAJJI - Independent = - =
Director
12 [RAINIMISHRA - Independent Director** = 0 0%
13 [ SHREE KUMAR DUJARI - CFO 0.24 NOT APPLICABLE 0%
14 | BIRENDRA KUMAR JAIN - CS 0.12 NOT APPLICABLE 6%

*Resigned wef, 12/02/2021
** Appointed wef, 12/02/2021

Note:

The Independent Director of the Company had communicated to forego any sitting fees and were not paid fees during the
Financial Year 2020-2021 .

There was 10.70% increase in the median remuneration of employees during 2020-21.
The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year was Rs. 1.92 lakhs.
No. of Permanent Employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2021 were 6,060.

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in thelast financial
yeari.e. 2020-21 was 10.70% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration was 0.00%. The remuneration of Working
Directors is decided based on Industry trend, remuneration package in other comparable Corporates, Job contents, key
performance areas and Company’s performance.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

SDy/-

Place: Kolkata
Date : July 8, 2021 Chairman
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ANNEXURE - 5

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited

83, Topsia Road, “Trinity Tower", 7th Floor
Kolkata - 700046

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Shyam Metalics and Energy Ltd. ("the Company”). The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent and in the manner reported hereinafter.

1. l'have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of -

«  The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made under the Act;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the Rules made under that Act; Not Applicable(The
Company is not a member/registered with any recognized Stock Exchange;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed under that Act;

+  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made under that Act to the extent
applicable to Overseas Direct Investment (ODI), Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and External Commercial Borrowings
(ECB);

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act) to
the extent applicable to unlisted public companies:

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

+  Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and the Rules made thereunder;

«  Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951 and the Rules made thereunder;
«  Labour laws

+  The Memorandum and Articles of Association.

- Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

2. | further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Rules made under that Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

a) maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;
b) closure of the Register of Members / Debenture holders;

c) forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the Central
Government;
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d) service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e) notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

f)  the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resclutions by circulation;
g) the Annual General Meeting;

h)  minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;

i) approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government authorities,
wherever required;

j)  constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and re-appointment of
Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors;

k)l payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors;
) appointment and remuneration of Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors;

m) transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and debentures, and issue and dispatch of duplicate certificates
of shares;

n) borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

o) investment of the Company’s funds including inter-corporate loans and investments and loans to others;
p) giving guarantees in connection with loans taken by subsidiaries;

a) allotment of equity shares of the Company;

1)  Directors'report;

s)  contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and

t)  generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc, mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

3. |further report that:

a) the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholdings / debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in other
entities;

b) the Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment and
compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

¢) the Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and

d) there was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review under the
Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against/on the
Company, its Directors and Officers.

4. |further report that:

a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made under that Act
during the year under review.
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b) As perthe information received and explanation provided by the management, the Company has duly complied with
the provisions of the Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and the Rules made thereunder.

¢) Basedontheinformation received, the Company has duly complied with the provisions of the Industries (Development
and Regulation) Act, 1951 and the Rules made thereunder with regard to licence for industrial undertaking and
approval for level of production and installed capacity.

d) Based on the information received and the explanations provided by the management, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Labour laws viz. Prohibition of Child Labour Act, 1986, The Contract Labour Regulationand
Abolition Act, 1970, Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952, ESI. Minimum Wages Act 1948, Industrial Disputes Act, 1947,
Factories Act, 1948 and other laws as may be applicable.

| further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and processes
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08.07.2021
UDIN: A032664C000592839

N.B: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.
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The Members

ShyamMetalics and Energy Limited
83,Topsia Road, “Trinity Tower”, 7th Floor
Kolkata - 700046

Our report of even date is to be read alongwith this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08.07.2021
UDIN: A032664C000592839
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The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance:

Company'’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to enhance the long-term economic value of the Company at large and
its stake holders. [t emphasizes the need for full transparency, accountability and compliances with laws and regulations in all
its transactions and interactions with its stakeholders, employees, lenders and the Government etc., without compromising the
environment and health of society at large. Your Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as laid
down under SEBI Regulations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (‘Board’) ensures that your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is cascaded across every
aspect of both the businesses in which your Company operates. The Board, comprising of eminent professionals with wide
expertise across a range of necessary domains, ensures holistic discussions to take sound business decisions to enhance long
term value creation for all stakeholders.

OMPOSITION

As on the date of this report, the Board consists of twelve Directors, including and headed by Non Executive Chairman, five
Executive Directors, and six Independent Directors out of which one is women Director. The Board members are expert in
different disciplines of corporate working. The Independent Directors are expert professionals with high credentials and actively
contribute in the deliberations of the Board.

None of the Directors is a member of the Board of more than twenty Companies or a Member of more than ten Board-level
Committees or a Chairman of more than five such Committees. Further, none of the Directors is a member of the Board in more
than seven listed entities and Independent Directors of the Company are not serving as an Independent Director in more than
seven listed entities. None of the Managing Directors of the Company are serving as an Independent Director in not more than
three listed entities.

Mr. Shree Kumar Dujari is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
Mr. BK. Jain is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company.

The Composition is as provided below:

Name of the Director | Designation | Category

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal . Chairman | Promoter - Non Executive
Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal | Vice-Chairman & Managing Director | Promoter - Executive
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal | Joint Managing Director | Promoter - Executive
Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal | Whole Time Director | Executive

Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari . Whole Time Director | Executive

Mr. Bhagwan Shaw ' Whole Time Director ' Executive

Mr. Venkat Krishna Nageshwara Roa Majji | Director | Independent
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal ' Director ' Independent
Mr.Ajay Choudhury | Director | Independent
Mr. Kishan Gopal Balswa ' Director ' Independent
Mr. Yudhvir Singh Jain Director Independent
Mrs Rajni Mishra[] Director Independent

[0 Mrs Rajni Mishra appointed as additional Independent Director
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Directorship, Committee membership and Chairmanship

The details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s) / Committee Membership(s) and Committee
Chairmanship/ name of listed entities where he/she is a Director and category of Directorship as on date of this report are
provided herein below:

Name of the Director Number of Directorship of Number of Membership Name of listed entities where he/
Public Limited Companies including Chairmanship she is a Director and category of
* of Board Committee(s) ** Directorship
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal 3 - -
Mr. BrijBhushan Agarwal 3 - -
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal 4 1 -
MrDeepak Kumar Agarwal 2 - -
Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari 1 - -
Mr. Bhagwan Shaw 1 - -
Mr. Venkat Krishna Nageshwara Roa Majji 2 - -
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal 1 2 -
Mr .Ajay Choudhury 6 2
Mr. Kishan Gopal Baldwa 1 1
Mr.Yudhvir Singh Jain 5 2 -
Mrs Rajni Mishrait 3 4

* |ncludes Private Limited Companies which are subsidiaries of Public Limited Companies, Unlimited Liability Companies,
Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, Membership of Managing Committees of Chambers of
Commerce/Professional Bodies but excludes Foreign Companies.

** Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’Relationship Committee have been considered as per SEBI Regulations.
# Ms Rajni Mishra Deb was appointed as an additional director in independent category w.ef. 12.02.2021.

The list of core skills/ expertise/competencies as identiied by the Board of Directors as required in the context of
business and sector for it to function efectively and those actually available with the Board of Directors:

Industry, Leadership, Accounts & Finance, Taxes, Production, Technical, Logistics, Legal, Sales, Marketing, Branding, Risks,
Administration and General Management, Board procedures and Governance.

List of Directors possessing the skills/expertise and competencies:

Name of Directors Skills/Expertise and Competencies

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal Industry, Leadership, Accounts & Finance, Production, Technical, Logistics, Legal, Sales, Marketing, Branding,
Board procedures and Governance, etc.

Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal Industry, Leadership, Accounts & Finance, Production, Technical, Logistics, Legal, Sales, Marketing, Branding,
Board procedures and Governance, etc.

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Industry, Leadership, Accounts & Finance, Production, Technical, Logistics, Legal, Sales, Marketing, Branding,
Board procedures and Governance, etc.

Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal Accounts & Finance, Treasury and Taxation

Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari Industry, Leadership, Production, Technical,

Mr. Bhagwan Shaw | Inventory Management.

Mr. Venkat Krishna Nageshwara Administration, General management, Board procedures and Governance, etc.
Roa Majji

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal Accounts & Finance and Audit & Internal Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board procedures, Governance  etc.
Mr.Ajay Choudhury Administration and General management, Legal and Board procedures, Governance, etc.
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Name of Directors Skills/Expertise and Competencies
Mr. Kishan Gopal Baldwa Accounts & Finance and Audit & Internal Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board procedures, Governance etc
Mr. Yudhvir Singh Jain Accounts & Finance and Audit & Internal Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board procedures, Governance,  etc.
Mrs Rajni Mishra Secretarial and Compliances

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the listing regulations and
are independent of the management.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the policies and strategies with respect to the business of the
Company apart from normal business. The Board generally meets at least once every quarter to review the Quarterly results .
Additional meetings are held as and when necessary.

All the meetings are scheduled well in advance and notices are sent to all the Directors at their address registered with the
Company. In case a meeting is called at shorter notice to transact urgent business, requirements of Section 173(3) are complied
with. The agenda of the meeting are backed by necessary supporting information and documents to enable the Board to
take informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of the meetings of all the Board Committees and Subsidiaries for the
information of the Board. Additional agenda items in the form of “Other Business” are included with the permission of the
Chairman and consent of the members. Drafts minutes of the proceedings of the Board/Committee Meetings are circulated in
advance and comments, if any, received from the Directors are incorporated in the minutes in consultation with the Chairman.
The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Information about major events/ items
is placed before the Board and approval of the Board is taken on all such matters wherever such approval is required. Senior
executives of the Company are invited as and when required to provide additional inputs or clarifications required on agenda
items being discussed in the Board Meeting

\ ! \ e 4 { M + Al o
NUMbDer and dates Or board vieetings held auring the year

Nine (9) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2020- 21 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120
days. The Meetings were held on 28th May, 2020; 24th July, 2020; 28th September, 2020; 20th December, 2020; 12th Februrary,
2021, 18th February, 2021, 25th Februrary, 2021 and 12th March, 2021. The attendance at the Board Meetings during the financial
year 2020-21 and at the previous Annual General Meeting is as under:

Name of Director No. of Board Meeting Attended Last AGMAttended
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal 9 Yes
Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal 9 Yes
Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 9 Yes
Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal 9 Yes
Mr. DevKumar Tiwari 3 No
Mr. Bhagwan Shaw 2 Yes
Mr. Venkat Krishna Nageshwara Roa Majji 2 No
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal 9 Yes
Mr. Ajay Choudhury 7 No
Mr. Kishan Gopal Balswa 8 Yes
Mr. Yudhvir Singh Jain 5 No
Mrs Rajni Mishra ** 3 No

** Mrs Rajni Mishra was appointed as an additional director in independent category w.ef. 12.02.2021.
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eparate Meeting of Independent Directors
As stipulated by the Code for Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the Independent
Directors of the Company was held on 30th March, 2021 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors (including
the Chairman) and the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the
flow of information between the Management and the Board and Committees, which is necessary to effectively and reasonably
perform and discharge their duties.

As per the Listing Regulations, the Company shall provide suitable training to the Directors to familiarize them with the Company,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates etc. The members of the Board of Directors are well acquainted with
the industry and are provided necessary reports, documents and other presentations including interactive session with the
Chairman, CEO and other heads of the Company. Efforts are made to familiarize the Directors about their roles, rights, and
responsibilities. The Directors are regularly updated on the changes in policies, laws and regulations and other developments
in the business. The details of the Director’s induction and familiarization are available on the Company’s website at http//
shyammetalics.com

FEMNUITTIANCE EValdUiunri

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. A structured questionnaire for evaluation was prepared
after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as
adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors on parameters such as attendance,
contribution and independent judgment. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors and
Board as a whole was also carried out by the Independent Directors.

The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board, Chairman of respective Committees and individual Directors. The
Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation process.

Resume of Directors proposed to be re-appointed/appointed The brief resume of Directors retiring by rotation and seeking re-
appointment/appointment is appended in the notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Currently, the Board has five committees: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Finance Committee. The terms of reference of these Committees are
determined by the Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time. Meetings of each of these Committees are convened
by the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also informs the Board about the summary of discussions held in the
Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors individually and tabled at the Board
Meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Committee is responsible for the effective supervision of the financial reporting
processes to ensure accurate, timely, and proper disclosures and transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the stock exchanges from time to time,
the following:
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Overseeing our Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient, and credible;

Recommending to our Board, the appointment, re-appointment and replacement, remuneration, and terms of appointment
of the internal auditor, cost auditor and statutory auditor and the fixation of the audit fee;

Reviewing and monitoring our auditor’s independence and performance and the effectiveness of audit process;

Approving payments to our statutory, internal and cost auditors for any other services rendered by statutory, internal and
cost auditors;

Reviewing with our management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to our
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

i.  Matters required to be stated in the Director’s responsibility statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of
Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

i.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgments by management;
iv.  Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

v.  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

vii. Qualifications and modified opinions in the draft audit report.

Reviewing with our management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

Scrutiny of our inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of our internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our company with related parties, provided that the Audit
Committee may make omnibus approvals for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company
subject to such conditions as may be prescribed;

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as provided in Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable Accounting Standards and/or the Companies Act, 2013.

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public
or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Evaluating undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever necessary;
Establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances;

Reviewing, with our management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

| Annual Report 2020-21

a)

n

5)

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Report
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to our Board;

Discussing with statutory auditors, internal auditors, secretarial auditors and cost auditors before the audit commences,
about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Approval of appointment of the chief financial officer (i.e, the whole-time finance director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the same is existing;

Carrying out any other function as provided under the Companies Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable
laws; and

To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend our Audit and Risk Management Committee
charter from time to time.

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from /investment by the holding company in the subsidiaries exceeding
¥ 100 crores or 10% of the asset size of the relevant subsidiary, whichever is lower, including existing loans / advances /
investments.

The powers of the Audit Committee include the following:

a) Toinvestigate activity its terms of reference;

b) To seek information from any employees;

¢) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and
e) To have full access to the information contained in the records of the Company.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and result of operations;

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit and Risk Management Committee),
submitted by management;

) Management letter/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor; and

f)  Statement of deviations:

i.  quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and

ii. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four times in a year under the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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ompaosition, numpber of Meetings and Atlendance

The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year 2020-21. The Audit Committee’s composition meets with
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. Members of the Audit Committee possess
financial /accounting expertise/ exposure. The Committee was chaired by Mr. Kishan Gopal Baldwa The meetings were held on
23rd May, 2020, 28th September, 2020, 23rd February, 2021 and 12th March ,2021

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Directors are as under:

Name Category No. of Committee Meetings Attended
Kishan Gopal Baldwa | Chairman — Independent, Non-Executive | 4
Ashok Kumar Jaiswal . Member - Independent, Non-Executive 4
Yudhvir Singh Jain Member - Independent, Non-Executive ” 4
Sanjay Kumar Agarwal Member - Executive H 4

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and representatives of Statutory Auditors
and Internal Auditors, are invitees for the relevant meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines on behalf of the Board and shareholders as per agreed term of
reference, the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director and the Members on the Committee are Non-Executive
Directors.

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:
1. Ajay Choudhury, Chairman;

2. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal, Member; and

3. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal, Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted as the Compensation Committee by a meeting of the Board
of Directors held on December 13, 2014 and was last re-constituted on September 28, 2020. The terms of reference of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were last revised by a meeting of the Board of Directors on February 18, 2021. The
scope and functions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the stock
exchanges from time to time, the following:

a) Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

b) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board;
¢) Devising a policy on Board diversity;

d) Identify persons who are qualified to become directors or who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
director’s performance. Our Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its annual report;

e)  Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;
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f)  Determining our Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages Executive Directors including pension rights and
any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such Directors;

g) Determine compensation levels payable to senior management personnel and other sta fflas deemed necessary), which
shall be market-related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

h)  Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indian market in
accordance with applicable laws;

i) Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, including the following:

i.  administering the employees'stock option plan;

ii. determining the eligibility of employees to participate under the employees’stock option plan;
iii. granting options to eligible employees and determining the date of grant;

iv. determining the number of options to be granted to an employes;

v.  determining the exercise price under the employees’stock option plan;

vi. deciding on matters such as quantum of, and milestones for grant, eligibility of employees who shall be entitled to grant of
options, vesting period and conditions thereof, termination policies, etc.; and

vii. construing and interpreting the employees’'stock option plan and any agreements defining the rights and obligations of the
Company and eligible employees under the employees’ stock option plan, and prescribing, amending and/or rescinding
rules and regulations relating to the administration of such plan;

j)  Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, as amended from time to time, of any securities
law or any other applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

1)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015: or

2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the Securities
Market) Regulations, 2003;

k)  Determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report
of performance evaluation of independent directors; and

)  Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law
to be attended to by such committee.

m) Recommending to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

Further, the quorum of each meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be either two members or one
third of the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, of atleast one shall be an independent director.

The Company has formulated a remuneration policy with a focus on attracting talent and rewarding performance based on
review of achievements.

The remuneration policy provides a framework for remuneration paid to the members of the Board of Directors (“Board”),
Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and the Senior Management Personnel ("SMP") of the Company (collectively referred to as
"Executives”). The expression “senior management”shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core
management team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below
the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Whole time Director/ Manager (including Chief Executive Officer/Manager, in
case they are not part of the board) and shall specifically include Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer.
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The remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee based
on the Net Profits of the Company which are then approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Shareholders
of the Company in their respective meetings. The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors was determined and based on
the industry benchmark, performance of the Company to the industry performance. Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for their performance expertise in their individual capacity as individual Professionals/Business Executives.
Independent Non- Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending each Board and Committee Meetings.

The appointment of the Executive Directors, if any is governed by the resolutions passed by the Board and shareholders. The
service agreement is entered into with them. There is no provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing
appointment of Executive Directors. A notice period of three months is required to be given by the Executive Director seeking to
vacate the office. The Company has no stock option plans and such option is not included in the remuneration package. During
the year under review, none of the Directors was paid any bonus, pension or performance bonus. Formal appointment letter is
issued to the Independent Directors and the terms and conditions of the appointment of Independent Directors are available
on the web site of the Company. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee to recommend all remuneration payable to the
Senior Management.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at: http://shyammetalics.com

LLompaositor L humper or Vieetings and Attendance

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the regulatory requirements specified
by Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee. The Remuneration Committee meetings were held on 28th September, 2020 and 12th March, 2021 during the
Financial Year 2020-21.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Directors are
as under:

Name of the Member | Category | No. of Committee Meetings Attended
1. | Ajay Choudhury | Chairman - Independent, Non-Executive | 2
2. | Ashok Kumar Jaiswal | Member - Independent, Non-Executive | 2
3. | Mahabir Prasad Agarwal | Member - Independent, Non-Executive | 2
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The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was constituted by our Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 15, 2018.The
scope and functions of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee were last
revised by a meeting of the Board of Directors on February 18, 2021.

Terms of reference of the Stakeholders’Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the stock
exchanges from time to time, the following:

a) Redressal of grievances of our shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders, including complaints related to
the transfer of shares, including non-receipt of share certificates and review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of
shares and debentures, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of annual reports, etc,,
and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints;

b) Giving consent to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of shares, debentures or any other securities;

¢) Dematerialisation of shares and re-materialisation of shares, issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/
consolidation/renewal;

d) Overseeing the performance of registrars and transfer agents of our Company and to recommend measures for overall
improvement in the quality of investor services; and

e) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder, each as amended or other applicable law.

f)  To specifically look into various aspects of interests of shareholders, debentures holders and other security holders.

g) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general
meetings, etc.

h)  Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

i) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

j)  Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends
and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company.

The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the members are as
follows:

Name of the Member Category Designation No. of Committee Meetings attended
1. Ashok Kumar Jaiswal Non-Executive, Independent Chairman 1
2. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal Non-Executive, Independent Member 1
3. Yudhvir Singh Jain Executive, Non-Independent Member 1

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings were held on 28th September 2020 during the Financial Year 2020-21.
Status of Pending Complaints:

The Company has not received any complain during the Financial Year 2020-21. Hence, there were no complaints pending at
the beginning and at the end of the Financial Year
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The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by our Board of Directors at their meeting held on December 13,
2014, and last reconstituted on September 28, 2020. The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
our Company, as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules thereunder, include the following:

a) Formulating and recommending to the Board the corporate social responsibility policy of the Company, including any
amendments thereto in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,

b) Identifying corporate social responsibility policy partners and corporate social responsibility policy programmes;

c¢) Recommending the amount of corporate social responsibility policy expenditure for the corporate social responsibility
activities and the distribution of the same to various corporate social responsibility programmes undertaken by the
Company;

d) Identifying and appointing the corporate social responsibility team of the Company including corporate social responsibility
manager, wherever required;

e) Delegating responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper execution of all delegated
responsibilities;

f)  Reviewing and monitoring the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and issuing necessary
directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of corporate social responsibility programmes;
and

g) Performing such other duties and functions as the Board may require the corporate social responsibility committee to
undertake to promote the corporate social responsibility activities of the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following three members and details of the meeting attended
by them are given below:

Name of the Member Category Designation No. of Committee Meetings attended
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal Executive, Non-Independent Chairman 1
Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal Executive, Non-Independent Member 1
Mr. Ajay Choudhury Non-Executive Member 1

Meetings and Attendance:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met once on 28.09.2020 during the Financial Year 2020-21. All the Members of
the Committee attended the meeting.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at: http://shyammetalics .com
There was no instances where recommendations of the Committee were not accepted by the Board of Directors.

None of the Directors of the Company / Key Managerial Personnel had any pecuniary relationship with the Company during the
year.

GENERAL BODY MEETING!

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings:

Financial Year Venue Date and time
2019-20 Trinity Tower, 7th Floor, 83, Topsia Road, Kolkata -700 046 31st December, 2020 at 4.00PM.
2018-19 Trinity Tower, 7th Floor, 83, Topsia Road, Kolkata -700 046 29th September, 2019. at 400 PM
2017-18 Trinity Tower, 7th Floor, 83, Topsia Road, Kolkata -700 046 25th September, 2018 at 4.00 PM
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In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and the Chief
Finance Officer of the Company is required to issue annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board.
The certificate for financial year 2020-21 given by the Managing Director and the Chief Finance Officer is annexed to this Report.
The Managing Director and the Chief Finance Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results to the Board in terms of
Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations

Details of Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot and procedure:
None of the businesses proposed to be transacted requires passing of a special resolution through postal ballot.

Two Extra Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders held on 5th April, 2020 and 19th February 2021 respectively during the
year.

DISCLOSURES
No materially significant related party transactions took place between the Company and its subsidiaries, its Promoters, Directors
orthe Management and their relatives which have a bearing on interests of the Company at large. Other Related Party transactions

as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18 have been reported in Notes to Accounts annexed to the financial statements.
The policy on related party transaction has been placed on the Company’s website at http//www.shyammetalics,com .

Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required in the relevant financial year.

The Company has a well-defined risk management framework and the Board is kept informed about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures. The risk policy provides for identification of risk, its assessments and procedures to minimize risk. The
risk management policy is reviewed periodically to ensure that the executive management controls the risk as per decided

policy.

The Company’s policy on Vigil mechanism is placed on the Company’s website at http.// www.shyammetalics.com. We hereby
affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the audit committee,

The Directors of the Company are not related inter-se.

The Financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards stipulated under the
Companies Act.

During the year under review, the Company has not raised any money through public issue.
During the year under review no instances of sexual harassment reported.
The Company’s policy on “material subsidiary”is placed on the Company's website at http:.//www.shyammetalics.com

A Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of your Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory Authority forms part of this Annual Report.

Total consolidated fees paid for all services rendered by the Statutory Auditors to the Company, its subsidiaries and all other
network entities where Statutory Auditors is a part during the year under review amounting Rs 35.00 Lacs.

The status of compliance with discretionary requirements specified in Part E of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations is provided
below:

Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company along with significant events, if any, are
published in the newspapers and also posted on the Company’s website, the same are not being sent individually to the
shareholders.
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Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The Company has complied with the requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of
regulation 46 of the LODR.

CREDIT RATING
The company has updated the financial credit rating of AA- Stable for long term banking facilities and A1+ for short term

banking facilities by CRISIL. The rating underscores the financial strength of the company in terms of the highest safety with
regard to timely fulfillment of its financial obligations.

The above rating continues to draw strength from promoter’s experience, operational efficiency by virtue of having an integrated
plant, production of value added products fetching higher margins, increasing profit levels and moderate its financial position.

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all employees
in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” against bribery,
corruption and unethical dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to counter such acts. The
code laid down by the Board is known as “code of business conduct”.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the
designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in business
practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on the expected behavior from an
employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All Management
Sta ffwere given appropriate training in this regard.

The audited financial statements form a part of the Annual Report which is sent to the Members well in advance of the Annual
General Meeting. The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly / half yearly and the annual results of the Company are also
placed on the Company’s website; www.shyammetalics.com and can be downloaded.

The Company has designated the following email ID exclusively for investor servicing: icomplance@shyamgroup.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report, forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

Annual General Meeting

Date and Time 18th September, 2021 at 02.00 p.m.
Venue Trinity Tower 7th Floor, 83, Topsia Road, Kolkata-700 046
Dates of Book Closure 8th September, 2021 to 18th September, 2021 (Both days inclusive)
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Proposed date for approval of inancial results

First Quarter ended 30th June, 2021 Within 45 days from the end o f quarter

Second Quarter ended 30th September, 2021 Within 45 days from the end of quarter

Third Quarter ended 31st December, 2021 Within 45 days from the end of quarter

Fourth/Last Quarter ended 31st March, 2022 Within 60 days from the end of guarter

The Company follows financial year starting from 1st of April of the financial year and ending on 31st March of the following year.
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LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Shares of the were listed on the following Stock Exchanges: on 24th June, 2021

a) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra —Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Mumbai- 400 051
NSE SYMBOL: SHYAMMETL

b) BSE Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001
BSE SYMBOL: 543299

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2020-21 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL. Bills for the year 2021-22 is
yet to be received from NSDL and CDSL

ISIN ALLOTTED TO THE COMPANY BY THE DEPOSITORIES:

The Company has signed Depository agreement with both National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited. The ISIN allotted to the Company is INE810G01011

Corporate Identity Number: U40101WB2002PLC095491
MARKET INFORMATION

Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume of shares traded at BSE and NSE, for the financial year
2019-20 are as follows: During the Period under review the Equity Shares of the Company were not listed on any recognised
stock exchange.

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents:
K Fin Technologies Pvt Ltd

Tower B, Plot 31 & 32

Selenium Building Financial Dist
Nanak ramguda, Gochibowli
Telangana -500032

Transfer of Shares in dematerialized form is duly processed by NSDL/CDSL in electronic form through the respective Depository
participants. Dematerialisation is required to be done with a period of 15 days from the date of lodgment of dematerilaisation
request, complete in all respect, with the Depository Participant of the Shareholder.
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Distribution of Shareholding of Ordinary Shares as on 31st March, 2021

Shareholding

Total No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares

1-500

501-1000

1001-5000

5001-10000

10001- 20000 -
20001 and above 15 100 233610100 100
Total 15 100 233610100 100

Category Number of Number of % of total Share Capital
Shareholders Shares

Promoter and Promoter Group 15 233610100 100
Foreign Institutional Investors - - -
Bodies Corporate - - -
Trusts - - -

Clearing Member - - _

NRIs/ Foreign Nationals - - -

Individual - - -

Mutual Funds/Banks/Financial Institutions/ NBFCsregistered with RBI - - -

Domestic Corporate Unclaimed Shares Account - - -

Total 15 233610100 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

233610100 Ordinary Shares of the Company representing 100% of the Company’s share capital are dematerialised as on 31st
March, 2021. The Company has never issued any GDR/ADR/ warrants or any convertible instruments.
COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Commodities form a major part of the raw materials required for Company’s products and hence, commodity price risk is one
of the important market risk for the Company. The Company has mechanism to ensure that the organization is protected from
market volatility in terms of price and availability of raw materials and prefers long term arrangement with the suppliers. The
Company does not hedge its exposure to commaodity price risks.

Plant Locations:

Sambalpur Jamuria Mangalpur
Village: Pandloi. Viilage: Dasna, Jamuria, PO.: Bahadurpur Mangalpur Industrial Estate
PO : Lapanga Dist"Bardhaman, Mangalpur
Dist"Sambalpur, Pin :713362 Raniganj
Pin: 768212 (West Bengal) Burdwan - 713347
(Odisha) (West Bengal)
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Address for Correspondence:

a) Registered Office:

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited,

Trinity Tower, 7th Floor

83, Topsia Road,

Kolkata -700 046

Fax: 033 24015556

Email: compliance @ shyamgroup.com
Website: www.shyammetalics.com

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 08.07.2021

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chéirman
(DIN: 00235780)
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. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICA EROWA CECYCE
> COMPLIANCE CERTIFICA UiV e/ oy

[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India

As provided under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the member of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management for the year ended on March 31,
2021,

The Board of Directors
Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, this is to certify that -

a) We have received the Financial Statement and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and to the best

of our knowledge and belief :
}_'-UIT"'.I Metalics And Ene ay Limited
i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

Place: Kolkata Brii Bhushan Adarwa mlght be miS|eading.

Date: 08/07/2021 Vice Chairrﬁan Cum Managing Director
DIN: 01125056

ii. These statements together present a true and fair value of the Company’s affair and are in compliance with the existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

P L L L L L L L L L L L L T T

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- b) These are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the Company during the years which are
fraudulent, illegal and violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

) Weaccept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the
auditor, deficiencies in the design or operations of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or proposed to take for rectifying these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the auditors
1. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

2. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statement; and

3. Instances of significant fraud of which we become aware and the developments therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over the financial reporting.

SD/- SD/-
Date: 08.07.2021 SK. Dujari Brij Bhushan Agarwal
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer (CFO) VC and Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATIO

N OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] as amended

To,

The Members

Shyam Metalics and Energy Limitec
“Trinity Tower" 83, Topsia Road,

7th Floor, Kolkata -700046

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Shyam Metalics and Energy
Limited (CIN: U40101WB2002PLC095491) and having registered office at “Trinity Tower” 83, Topsia Road, 7th Floor, Kolkata - 700046 (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status
at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its Officers {including by way
of remote audit), we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on
31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr.No. [Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. |MAHABIR PRASAD AGARWAL 00235780 06/04/2018
2. | BRIJ BHUSHAN AGARWAL 01125056 11/12/2002
3 [|SANJAY KUMAR AGARWAL 00232938 11/12/2002
4, | DEEPAK KUMAR AGARWAL 00560010 14/07/2014
5. |DEVKUMARTIWARI 02432511 10/04/2009
6. |BHAGWAN SHAW 03419298 07/03/2013
7. | ASHOK KUMAR JAISWAL 00545574 16/01/2018
8. |AJAY CHOUDHURY 00040825 06/04/2018
9. | YUDHVIR SINGH JAIN 06507365 16/01/2018
10. | VENKATA KRISHNA NAGESWARA RAO MAJJI 07035891 13/12/2014
11. | KISHAN GOPAL BALDWA 01122052 15/05/2018
12. | RAJNI MISHRA[] 07706571 12/02/2021

Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.ef, 12th February, 2021.

Ensuring the eligibility for appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 8th July, 2021
Place: Kolkata
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KPA & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries Firm
Firm Registration No : P2019WB078600
Peer Review No : 1363/2021
FCS No: 10297
CP No: 22698
UDIN : F010297C000680417
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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow ended on that date,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by th&€Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 3flst March, 2021,  the
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs™) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

We draw attention to note 45 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainties and
potential impact of the covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and results as assessed by the management.
The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on future developments. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial

statements.

Re\}enue from Sale of Goods (as described in note 29 to the

staﬁdalbne Ind AS ﬁnanéial statement.

The Company recognizes revenues when control of the
goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods. In determining
the sales price, the Company considers the effects of
rebates and discounts (variable consideration). The terms
of arrangements in case of domestic and exports sales,

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Considered the adequacy of the Company’s
revenue recognition policy and its compliance in
terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’

e Assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls related

including the timing of transfer of control, the nature of to revenue recognition.

discount and rebates arrangements, delivery specifications o DPerformed sample tests of individual sales
including incoterms, create complexity and judgment in transaction and traced to sales invoices and other
determining sales revenues. The risk is, therefore, that related documents. In respect of the samples
revenue is not recognized in accordance with terms of Ind selected, tested that the revenue has been
AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, and recognized in accordance with Ind AS 115.

accordingly, it was determined to be a key audit matter in e Selected sample of sales transactions made pre
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. and post-year end, agreed the period of revenue

recognition to underlying documents.

e Selected samples of rebates and discounts during
the year, compared them with the supporting
documents and performed re-calculation of those
variable considerations as per scheme documents.

e Assessed the relevant disclosures made in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include thestandalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of thestandalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to the preparation ofthese standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing thestandalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thestandalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

o  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
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significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentationstruc ture, and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in thestandalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current periodnd are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

I.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

II.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lossncluding Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d. In our opinion, theforesaid standalone financial statements comply with thdnd AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March 2021, taken on (Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being Members of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited of even date)

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company i
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordancewith Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. ii.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any foreseeable losses.

iii.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

iv
Vivek Agarwal
Partner v
Membership No. 301571
Place: Kolkata vi

Dated: July 8, 2021
UDIN: 21301571AAAAIK3329
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In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all property, plant and equipment at a reasonable interval. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us including
registered title deeds, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and
buildings which are frechold, are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date. In respect
of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as property, plant
and equipment in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories have been physically verified
during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, and no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated. Principal amount of one loan that was due for repayment during the year have
been rolled over/ renewed as fresh loan, the principal amount of the other loan has not fallen due
for repayment yet and party is regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

(c) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans and
investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. Accordingly, Clause (v) of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost recordsunder section 148(1) of the Act and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained
According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:-
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vii

viii.

Xi.

82

(a)

(b)

The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs and other material
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding
as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, details of dues of Customs Duty, Service Tax
and Excise Duty which have not been depositecas on 31 * March, 2021 on account of dispute are given
below:

pnanclalivearto Forum Where Matter is
Name of Statue which the matter . Amount (INR in Crores)
. pending
pertains
2012-13 L 2.45
Commissioner Appeals
The Custom Act. 2013-14 0.46
1962 2013-14 0.02
CESTAT
2016-17 0.21
2014-15 Commissioner Appeals 0.03
Service Tax (The 2014-15 Joint Commissioner 0.06
Finance Act, 1994) 2016-17 Asst. Commissioner 0.03
2014-17 Add. Comm. 0.27
2008-09 High Court 0.04
2008-09 1.93
CESTAT
The C . 2009-10 0.14
e Central Excise
Act, 1994 2009-12 3.52
2012-13 L 0.04
Add. Commissioner
2016-17 0.35
2014-15 1.07

On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institutions.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer and further public offer (including debt
instrument) during the year. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us, term loans availed by the company were applied for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid or provided for
managerial remunerationin accordance with requisite ap provals mandated by section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,
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The Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal

Partner

Membership No. 301571

Place: Kolkata
Dated: July 8, 2021
UDIN: 21301571AAAAIK3329
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofShyam Metalics and Energy Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31% March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaiged is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
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regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance withauthorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ofinauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 301571

Place: Kolkata

Dated: July 8, 2021
UDIN: 21301571AAAAIK3329
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for the period ended 31st March, 2021

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

(R in crore)
Particulars Note  Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
No. 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
| Revenue from operations 29 3,023.74 211203
Il Otherincome 30 50.22 3.68
Il Total Income (I+l1) 3,073.96 2,115.71
IV EXPENSE
Cost of materials consumed 31 1,804.71 1,384.59
Purchases of stock-in-trade 27.02 1430
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 32 3841 (68.22)
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 33 101.89 91.84
Finance costs 34 3872 56.75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 149.66 159.45
Other expenses 36 384.08 376.52
otal Expenses (V) 2,544.49 2,015.23
V  Profit before tax (IlI-IV) 52947 100.48
VI Tax expense: 37
(i) Current tax 115.82 21.00
(i) Deferred tax (25.25) (25.87)
VIl Proit for the year (V-VI) 438.90 105.35
V”l :-.-‘i {'Ii-" COMIC l"-'i'l-':l'. :l"l--3"l'l""'
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.35 (0.48)
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehen- 427 2.6
sive income
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to (1.12) (0.34)
profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes 3.50 1.34
IX  Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VI]) 44240 106.69
X Earnings per equity share (Face value of B 10 each)
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) 39 18.79 451

as at 31st March, 2021
®in crore)
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Non-Current Assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 2 785.82 932.10
b) Right-of-use assets 2A 22.25 22.52
¢) Capital work-in-progress 3 230.22 83.83
d) Intangible assets 4 0.16 0.19
e) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 5 93391 934.24
f) Financial assets
i) Investments S5A 4490 50.94
ii) Other financial assets 6 2257 2643
g) Deferred tax assets (net) 22 4607 4439
h) Other non-current assets 7 4498 20.25
2,130.88 2,114.89
urrent / LS
a) Inventories 8 530.96 775.65
b) Financial assets
i) Investments 9 9.81 4.18
ii) Trade receivables 10 29861 77.38
i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 22.35 3.28
iv) Other bank balances 12 4297 33.97
v) Loans 13 928 16.56
vi) Other financial assets 14 16.88 5.95
¢) Current tax assets {net) 15 146 9.25
d) Other current assets 16 210.74 313.46
1,143.06 1,239.68
3,273.94 3,354.57
| TE
a) Equity share capital 17 23361 233.61
b) Other equity 18 2,123.56 1,724.34
2,357.17 1,957.95
Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 19 077 320.19
ii) Lease Liabilities 23A 3.23 3.15
iii) Other financial liabilities 20 887 18.18
b) Provisions 21 537 387
¢) Other non-current liabilities 23 206.52 173.91
22476 519.30
urrent Liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 24 311.07 339.68
ii) Lease liabilities 23A 0.58 0.45
iii) Trade payables 25
Qutstanding due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0.35 0.96
Qutstanding due to Creditors other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 159.04 401.80
iv) Other financial liabilities 26 13.05 48.68
b) Other current liabilities 27 178.93 66.50
¢) Provisions 28 28.99 19.25
692.01 877.32
tal Eguity and Liabili 3,273.94 335457
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1t056

As per our report of even date attached

FOF : -.‘.:! awal and Lo ( : rtered Accountants |
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Managing .Di.re.c'tor.

DIN 01125056

Chief Financial Officer

Ménaging Director
DIN 00232938

direndra Kun

Company Secretary
A8305

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawa

Chartered'Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

VC & Managing Director
DIN 01125056

1t0 56

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shree Kumar Dujari

Chief Financial Officer

Jt. Managing Director

DIN 00232938

- | - -’
d Aumar Jal

Company Secretary

A8305

Annual Report 2020-21 | 87



SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

for the period ended 31st March 2021

(in crore)
Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
& : | w from opera | 1a acty __‘;_.._I-

Net Profit Before Tax 52947 10048
Non Cash Adjustment for Non cash Non operating items
Depreciation 149.66 15945
Irrecoverable Debts, Claims and Advances Written Off 748 (4.58)
Dividend Received (44.13) (0.06)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (5.69) 10.22
Gain on fair value of mutual fund and Bonds (1.07) 0.51
Provision for Gratuity 1.17 1.05
(Profit)/Loss on sales of Property, Plant and Equipment - (0.34)
Interest Income (4.03) (3.35)
Paymentof Principal portion of Lease Liability 051 035
Payment of Interest Portion of Lease Liability 037 0.38
Interest & Finance charges 38.72 54.50
Operating Proit Before Working Capital Changes 67246 31861
Adjustments for movement in:
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and other payables (95.09) 279.01
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivable (225.17) 10.71
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories 24469 (414.28)
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets 88.05 (158.24)
Cash low from operating activities before taxes 684.94 35.81
Direct Taxes Paid (net) (85.57) (20.00)
Net cash low from operating activities (A)2 599.37 15.81
I ':._-_.-_ | | JIT] Ii|| 1q ’_||| .i:_.-:
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) (174.13) (188.34)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investment (Net) 6.10 (5.27)
Dividend Received 4413 0.06
Loans Refunded/ (Given) 7.28 (16.54)
Interest Received 257 335
Net cash from investing activities (B) (114.05) (206.74)
_. Cash low from inancing activities
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (0.66) (0.73)
Dividend Paid (43.22) -
Repayments/Proceeds from Borrowing (Net) & Current Maturities (380.92) 24642
Interest paid (41.45) (54.50)
Net cash from inancing activities (C) (466.25) 191.19
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C+D) 19.07 0.26
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.28 3.02
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 2235 3.28
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(Rin crore)

1. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind AS) - 7 “Statement of Cash Flow".

2. Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:

Forthe yearended  For the year ended

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balance with banks - in current account 16.96 297
Fixed Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 523 -
Cash on hand 0.16 0.31
Total 2235 3.28

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

1to 56
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

VC & Managiné Director Jt. Managing Director

DIN 01125056 DIN 00232938
ree Kumar |_!- |& | : I'-'I'I'-:'-_T Kl Imar =-‘-i 1
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A8305
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited (‘the company’) is a public limited company incorporated in India in 2002 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is at Trinity Tower, 83 Topsia Road, 7th Floor, Kolkata — 700 046.

The Company is primarily engaged in business of manufacture and sale of Ferro Alloys, Iron & Steel products and power
generation. Currently it has an integrated steel plant in Odisha and has it presence in wind power sector in the state of
Maharashtra.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved for issue by Company’s board ofdirectors on
July 8,2021.

igniicant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.
Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements.

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b.  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest millions,
except otherwise stated.

C. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either, in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
Unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each
case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
o Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

o Investment in quoted and unquoted equity shares

o Financial instruments

Current versus non-current classiication

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
It is expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets,
commitments and contingencies.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components
having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all
direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is
capitalised as part of cost of the qualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On the date of transition to Ind AS that is 01-04-2015 the company had taken fair value for land & building and plant
& equipment as its deemed cost.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Class of assets Years
Computer software 3to 5 years

Depreciation and amortisation property plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a Written down value basis, the cost of property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets to their residual value. These charges are commenced from the dates the
assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives as per the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or, as per technical assessment, or, in the case of leased
assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly
and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
still in use.

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Act in the below mentioned assets. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into
account the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of
obtaining economic benefits from those classes of assets.

Asset Class Company Policy As per Sch. Il
Non Factory Building 5-60Years 60 Years
Office Equipment 3-5Years 5Years
Plant & Machineries 5-40Years 20-40Years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed
in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU)
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when
the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classiication and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") on the basis of following line:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
« the contractual cashflow characteristics of the financial asset.
Amortised Cost
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if both of the
following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of unquoted equity investments which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subseguent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments.
Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of
such equity investments.

Fair Value through Proit or Loss

Afinancial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Company has measured quoted equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
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Classiication and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’
Financial Liabilities at fair value through proit & loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit & loss when the financial liability is held for trading or
are designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit & loss:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade
receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for
recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to
track changes in credit risk. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision
matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee beneits
Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
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months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the balance
sheet.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses
of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service
cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.
Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier. The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair
value plan assets.

Inventories
Raw materials are valued at cost on FIFO basis
Traded goods are valued on FIFO basis.

Work-in-progress and Finished Goods are valued at lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value on weighted average or
FIFO basis, as applicable. Cost is taken as Factory cost of the products.

By products are valued at estimated Net Realizable Value and Stores and Spares on Weighted Average Basis.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that
may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.
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Government grants

The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached
to them shall be complied with and the grants will be received. Grants related to assets are treated as deferred
income and are recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful life of the asset. Grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate and are deducted from the
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying value
and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when the sale is highly probable and the
asset, or disposal group, is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price that
is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The Company must also be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, then it is
treated as a discontinued operation. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation together with the gain
or loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior
periods being presented on this basis.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the period as determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws in the countries
where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except wheretheCompanyis able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set o ffcurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term and the lease term is as follows.
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Class of assets Years
Leasehold land 99 Years
Buildings 2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. Right-of-use assets are
subject to impairment test.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, discounts, volume rebates, and goods and service tax. The Company recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company regardless
of when the payment is being made.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the control of goods to the customer
as per the terms of contract. The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In the context
of the sale of the products, separate performance obligations may arise from freight and transport services as well
as from services directly related to the sale of the products. These services are generally performed at the time that
the control of the products is transferred. In a few exceptional cases, the freight and transport services are performed
after the control of the products has been transferred. In accordance with IND AS 115, the revenue relating to
these freight and transport services is realised later than the corresponding product revenue. In determining the
transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration such as discounts, volume rebates, or
other contractual price reductions, the existence of significant financing component, non-cash considerations and
consideration payable to the customer (if any). However, variable consideration is only included if it is highly probable
that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once the uncertainty related to the variable consideration is
resolved.

In case of domestic sales, the company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on dispatch of
the goods from the factory and in case of exports, revenue is recognised on passage of control as per the terms of
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contract / incoterms. Variable consideration in the form of volume rebates is recognised at the time of sale made to
the customers and are offset against the amounts payable by them.

Conversion Income

Revenue from sale of service is recognised when control has been transferred to the buyer usually when the delivery
of goods after due process of conversion takesplace, revenue is booked when all the performance obligations
aresatisfied. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration such
as discounts, volume rebates, or other contractual price reductions, the existence of significant financing component,
non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any). However, variable consideration is only
included if it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once the uncertainty related to the
variable consideration is resolved.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees &), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the translation or settlement of other monetary items are included in the statement
of profit and loss for the period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest costs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events,
such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the
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weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the
employees.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with the financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less (except the instruments which are pledged) that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.
Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit period allowed. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
Long term trade payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating
decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management
approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic
segments.

Investment in subsidiaries and associates and joint venture

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are shown at deemed cost except investment in one subsidiary.Further
where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or
credited to the Statement of profit and loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Expected Credit Loss

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition.
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(Rin crore)
tal Equity
Particulars Equity Shares Reserves and Surplus Equity Remeasure | Total equity
Numberof | Amount | Securities | Retained Other Capital | Instruments | mentofthe | attributable
Shares Premium | Eamings | Reserves | Reseve [throughother |netdeined | toequity

comprehen - |beneit plans | shareholders of

sive income the company
Balance at 1st April, 2019 233,610,100 23361 178.15 1,341.29 1.10 7218 2493 1,851.26
Profit for the year - 105.35 - - 105.35
Income tax effect (034) - (034)
Other comprehensive income - 216 (048) 168
Transfer to Retained Farnings (048) 048 -
Balance at 31st March, 2020 233,610,100 23361 17815 1446.16 1.10 7218 2675 - 1.957.95
Balance at 1st April, 2020 233,610,100 23361 17815 1446.16 1.10 7218 26.75 1957.95
Profit for the year - 43890 - 43890
Profit on sale of Investment 003 0.03
Dividend Paid (4322) (4322)
Income tax effect - {099) (0.12) (1.11)
Other comprehensive income - - 427 035 462
Transfer to Retained Farnings 023 0.23) -
Balance at 31st March, 2021 233,610,100 23361 17815 1,842.07 1.10 7218 3006 2,357.17

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata

Date : 8th July 2021
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Jt.
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DIN 01125056 DIN 00232938
f-i'il'i' e Kumar DI ljal | endra Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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& in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
Tst April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st [ 1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustments  March March
2021 2021 2021
Freehold Land 4953 - - 4953 - - - - 4953
Buildings 28861 - - 28861 84.32 1944 - 10376| 18485
Plant and Equipment 1,147.08 092 - 1,4800] 4114 12841 - 59982| 54818
Furniture and Fixtures 061 0.59 - 1.20 0.30 0.16 - 046 0.74
Vehicles 292 0.73 - 365 0.90 048 - 138 227
Office Equipment 0.69 009 - 0.78 042 0.11 - 0.53 0.25
Total 148944 233 - 149177 | 557.35 14860 - 70595 | 78582
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
TstApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st  [1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ st 31st
2019 Adjustment  March 2019 Adjustments  March March
2020 2020 2020
Freehold Land 4750 203 - 49,53 - - - - 4953
Buildings 24447 4419 - 28861 64.02 20.30 - 8432 204.29
Plant and Equipment 85748 293.28 368  1,14708| 33733 137.58 350 47141 67567
Furniture and Fixtures 054 0.07 - 061 0.21 0.09 - 0.30 031
Vehicles 2.29 0.99 0.36 2.92 1.00 024 034 0.90 202
Office Equipment 053 0.16 - 0.69 0.27 0.15 - 042 0.27
Total 115276 340.72 404 148944 | 40283 158.36 384 55735 | 93209
(X in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
IstApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustments  March March
2021 2021 2021
Building 333 071 - 404 064 0.73 - 137 267
Land 21.04 - - 21.04 121 0.25 - 146 19.58
Total 2437 0.71 - 2508 1.85 0.98 - 283 | 2225
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
IstApril  Additions  Disposals/ ~ Transferon  31st Ist ~ Additions  Disposals/  Transfer on 31st 31st
2019 Adjustments  Accountof ~ March | April Adjustments  Accountof  March  March
Transitionto 2020 | 2019 Transitionto 2020 2020
Ind AS 116 Ind AS 116-
- April 01, April 01,2019
2019
Building - 333 - - 333 - 064 - - 064 269
Land - 0.63 - 2041 2104 - 0.25 - 096 121 1983
Total - 3.96 - 2041 2437 - 089 - 0.96 185 2252
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(R incrore)
Description 1st April 2020 Additions  Disposals/Adjustment  31st March 2021
Buildings 6.00 2543 - 3143
Plant and equipment 77.83 120.96 - 198.79
Total 83.83 146.39 - 230.22
(% in crore)
Description 1st April 2019 Additions  Disposals/ Adjustment  31st March 2020
Buildings 12.27 37.33 4360 6.00
Plant and equipment 227.53 13838 28808 77.83
Total 239.80 175.71 331.68 83.83
(% in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
Ist April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustment  March March
2021 2021 2021
Softwares 1.20 0.06 - 1.26 101 0.09 - 110/ 0.16
Total 1.20 0.06 - 1.26 1.0 0.09 - 110 | 0.16
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
1st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st IstApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2019 Adjustment  March 2019 Adjustment  March March
2020 2020 2020
Softwares 1.04 0.16 - 120 0.80 0.21 - 101 0.19
Total 1.04 0.16 - 1.20 0.80 0.21 - 101 0.19

(@) Individual assets of property, plant and equipment has been reclassified wherever necessary.
(b) Refer note 40(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(c) Refer note 19 & 24 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.
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(T in crore)
Description Face Value Number of shares Value of Shares
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March 2021 March 2020 March 2021 March 2020
Investments measured at cost/deemed cost
Unquoted
Investment in Subsidiaries
Shyam Sel & Power Limited 10 44,127,840 44,125,644 923.00 923.00
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited 10 96,000 96,000 0.10 0.10
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited 10 107,000 107,000 0.11 0.11
Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited 10 9,980 9,980 0.01 0.01
Meadow Housing Private Limited 10 290,000 290,000 029 0.29
Shyam QOres({Jharkhand) Private Limited 10 - 26,400 - 033
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited 10 45,000 45,000 0.05 0.05
923.56 923.89
Investments in Associates
Meghana Vyapaar Private Limited 10 100,000 100,000 0.10 0.10
Kolhan Complex Private Limited 10 27,800 27,800 0.25 0.25
Kecons Tradecare Private Limited 10 7,407,500 7,407,500 10.00 10.00
10.35 10.35
Investment in Joint Venture
MJSJ Coal Limited 10 8,559,000 8,559,000 - -
Total 93391 934.24

Details of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures in accordance with Ind AS 112 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”:

Description Country of Proportion of ownership interest/voting
Incorporation rights held by the Company
As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Subsidiary
Shyam Sel & Power Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited India 54.15% 54.15%
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited India 91.45% 91.45%
Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Meadow Housing Private Limited India 27.62% 27.62%
Shyam Qres(Jharkhand) Private Limited India 0.00% 99.99%
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited India 90.00% 90.00%
Associates
Meghana Vyapaar Private Limited India 3351% 3351%
Kolhan Complex Private Limited India 8.60% 8.60%
Kecons Tradecare Private Limited India 47.32% 47.32%
Joint venture
MJSJ Coal Limited India 9.00% 9.00%
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Description Face Value
Investments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Unquoted

Investment in equity instruments

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited 10
Hrashva Storage and Warehouse Private Limited* 10
Dorite Tracon Private Limited 10
Narantak Dealcomm Limited 10
Platinum Minmet Private Limited 10
Subhlabh Commercials Private Limited 10
Shubham Capital Private Limited 10
Sri Sikhar Iron and Steel Private Limited 10
Sunglow Complex Private Limited 10
Shyam Ores(Jharkhand) Private Limited 10
Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited 10
Investment in Joint Venture

MJSJ Coal Limited

Investment in Bonds

8.09% PFC Ltd 100000

Investment in Government Securities at amortised cost

National Saving Certificate (VIl Issug)

Total

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

(X in crore)
Number of shares Value of Shares
Asat 31st As at 31st Asat 31st Asat 31st
March 2021 March 2020 March 2021 March 2020
- 490,000 - 575
98,804 197,608 0.57 0.85
730,000 730,000 1062 1001
1,641,088 1,641,088 27.18 23.11
9,800 9,800 0.09 0.09
101,350 101,350 1.72 172
357,000 357,000 4,09 421
500 500 0.00 0.00
9,800 9,800 0.08 0.08
26400 - 033 -
9,800 9,800 0.14 0.14
4487 4596
- 500.000 - 490
- - 0.08 008
4490 5094

4490 50.94

* Persuant to the scheme of amalgamation between Hrashva Storage and Warehouse Private Limited and Shyam Sel and Power Limited

®in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Bank deposits with maturity more than 12 months 19.90 23.78
Security deposits (Long Term) 267 265
Total 22.57 2643

(@) Fixed Deposits amounting to ¥ 17.4 Crores (31st March 2020 : 21.14 Crores) are held as margin money
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(X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances (Long Term) 43.92 19.26
Deposits against demands under dispute 1.06 0.99
Total 4498 20.25
&in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value
Raw Materials 365.76 575.01
Work-in-Progress 253 249
Finished Goods 94.76 129.21
Stores and Spares 40.23 37.26
Traded Goods 2.14 0.01
By-Products 2554 31.67
Total 530.96 77565

Inventories are hypothecated to bank against working capital facility.

(% in crore, except number of units)

Description

Face Number of units Value
Value As at As at Asat As at
31stMarch 2021 31stMarch 2020  31stMarch 2021 31st March 2020

Investments measured at fair value through proit and loss

Quoted

Investment in Mutual Funds

SBI Debt Fund Series 2978,711.96 2978,711.96 BY5 353
HDFC Housing Opportunities Fund Series 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 110 0.65
Investment in Bonds - -
8.09% PFC Ltd 500.000 - 496 -
Total 981 418
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 9.81 48
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 9.81 418
(% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Trade receivables considered good (Unsecured) 29861 77.38
Trade receivables - credit impaired 1.38 397
299.99 81.35
Less: Allowances for credit losses (1.38) (3.97)
Total 29861 77.38
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Expected Credit Loss - In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The expected

credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

{in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
0-30days 23998 40.29
31-60days 46.06 2436
61 -90 days 759 4.56
More than 90 days 6.36 12.15
Total 299.99 81.36
X incrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balance with banks:
Current account 16.96 297
Cash on hand 0.16 0.31
Fixed Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 523 -
Total 22.35 3.28
&in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Fixed Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 6.31 6.09
Fixed Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 36.66 27.88
Total 4297 33,97
(a) Fixed Deposits amounting to Rs. 13.47 Crores (31st March 2020 : Rs. 2847 Crores) are held as margin money
R incrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loan to related parties 0.32 0.03
Loans receivable considered good 8.96 16.53
Total 9.28 16.56
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(X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits (Short Term) 737 0.55
Interest accrued and due on fixed deposits 2.77 1.56
Interest accrued on Bond 0.14 0.14
Interest accrued on Deposits 0.25 -
Insurance Claim Receivable 0.27 -
Incentive receivable 6.08 3.70
Total 16.88 595
X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Advance tax (net of provisions) 146 9.25
Total 146 9.25
(X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Advances other than capital advances:
Advances against goods and expenses 198.88 304.79
Advances for IPO 2.89 -
Advances to employees 0.87 1.96
Balances with statutory authorities 8.10 6.71
Total 210.74 31346
&in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
a) Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
Authorised Capital
290,000,000 (March 31, 2020 - 290,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 290.00 290.00
Total 290.00 290.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
233,610,100 (March 31,2020 - 233,610,100 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 23361 23361
Total 233.61 233,61
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 in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
No of shares ®in Crores) No of shares ®in Crores)
b) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 233,610,100 23361 233,610,100 2336101
Equity shares at the end of the year 233,610,100 23361 233,610,100 23361

¢) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of B 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts,

if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements
for the period ended 31st March 2021
(X in crore)
Particulars Securities Retained Capital Other Equity Remeasurements  Total Other
Premium Eamings  Reserves  Reserves instruments  of the net deined Equity
through other  beneit plans
comprehensive
income

Balance at 1st April, 2019 17815 134129 7218 1.10 2493 - 1,617.65
Income tax effect - - - - (0.34) - (0.34)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 216 (048) 168
Transfer to Retained Earnings - (048) - - - 048 -
Profit for the year - 10535 - - - - 105.35
Balance at 31st March, 2020 17815 144616 7218 1.10 26.75 - 172434
Balance at 1st April, 2020 17815 1/446.16 7218 110 26.75 - 172434
Profit on sale of Investment - - - - 003 - 003
Dividend Paid - (43.22) - - - - (43.22)

Income tax effect - - - - (0.99) 0.12) (1171
Other comprehensive income - - - - 427 035 462
Transfer to Retained Earnings - 023 - - - (0.23) -

Profit for the year - 43890 - - - - 43890
Balance at 31st March, 2021 17815 184207 7218 110 30,06 - 212356

Description Asat31st As at 31st Asat31st Asat31st Asat31st
March 2021 March2020  March2019  March 2018  March 2017
d) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration
other than cash during the period of 5 years immedialtely
preceding the reporting date
Opening 8,729,028 8,729,028 8,729,028 5,643,236
Add: Equity Share allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract - - 3,085,792
for consideration other than cash
Total 8,729,028 8,729,028 8,729,028 8,729,028 8,729,028
Description As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March 2021 March2020  March2019  March 2018 March 2017
e) Aggregate number of bonus shares allotted as fully paid
up during the period of 5 years immedialtely preceding the
reporting date
Opening - - - -
Add: Fully paid up bonus shares issued during the year - 186,888,080 - -
Total - 186,888,080 - -
R in crore)

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares Holding No. of shares Holding
f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Subham Buildwell Private Limited 72,597,250 31.08% 72,597,250 31.08%
Narantak Dealcomm Limited 54,063,340 23.14% 54,063,340 23.14%
Subham Capital Private Limited 41,994,770 17.98% 41,994,770 17.98%
Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal 23,284,820 9.97% 23,284,820 9.97%
Kalpataru Housfin & Trading Private Limited 22,219,150 951% 22,219,150 951%
Dorite Tracon Private Limited 15,196,665 6.51% 15,196,665 6.51%
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Securities Premium : Securities Premium Reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act., 2013.

Amalgamation Reserve : Amalgamation Reserve represents reserve created on amalgamation of Companies.

General Reserve: General Reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits for appropriation purposes. General
Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other Comprehensive income.

Other Comprehensive Income: Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted
under OCl and comprises of the following:

i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

a. The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of non-current investments (other than in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) in OCL. This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
equity instruments measured at fair value. The company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the
relevant equity securities are disposed.

b. The actuarial gains and losses arising on defined benefit obligations have been recognised in OCI.

iy Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss. a. This Reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of changes in
fair value of currency swap that are designated as cash flow hedge are recognised in OCl. This is reclassified to statement of
Profit and Loss.

Retained Farnings: Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings of the
company.
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Pre-payment terms

Subject to the prevailing guidelines issued by RBI in respect of ECB’s, the Borrower may prepay in whole or in part (if in part,
minimum amound of USD 1 million, or a higher amount, which is in integral multiples of USD 1 million or if lesse than the entire
outstanding facility) upon 15 business days prior written notice to the Lender along with the prepayment premium of 0.20% of

Rincrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Secured
Term Loans:
Indian Rupee loan - 298.79
Foreign currency loan 4.05 58.85
Long term maturities of finance lease obligations: - -
Commercial Vehicle Loan 114 035

5.19 357.99
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (4.42) (37.80)
Total 0.77 32019

Repayment terms and security disclosure for the outstanding long-term borrowings (excluding current maturities) as

on 31st March 2021 :

Hire Purchase Finance and commercial vehicle loan is secured against hypothecation of respective assets

Repayment Terms for Secured Borrowings X in crore)
Name of Bank TypeoflLoan  Rate of Interest (%) PA. Loan Amount Repayment Schedule Security,
Asat3ist  Asat3ist Pre-payment
March 2021 March 2020 and Penalty
State Bank of India, South ~ Term Loan - 94.14 Fully repaid
India Bank, Union Bank of during the period
India and Allahabad Bank
CICI Bank ECB 6 MUSD LIBOR +4.25 % 406 767 2 Half Yearly installments Refer Note - 19.1
remain balance on
31st March 2021
ICICI Bank(New Loan) Term Loan - 75.00 Fully repaid
during the period
ICICI Bank, Axis &Bank of ~ Term Loan - 18048 Fully repaid
Baroda (Phase V) during the period
Total 406 357.29
Unamortized upfront fees (0.01) 035
and reinstatement of loan
Total 405 35764

Security

i) First charge by way of Equitable Mortgage/Registered Mortgage/ English mortgage over all the moveable properties
including the land (pertaining to the project) situated at Sangli in the state of Maharashtra.

ii)  First charge by way of hypothecation over all moveable fixed assets of the Project, both present and future.

i) Assignments of rights, interest and obligations of the Borrower under the Project Documents, including insurance policies
relating to the Project, permits/approvals, clearances related to the Project, both present and future.

iv)  Second charge over all the current assets of the Project, both present and future.
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the amount to be prepaid.

(Rin crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Security deposits received - 10.75
Retention money 887 743
Total 8.87 18.18
in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity (Refer Note 42) 449 3.87
Provision for employee benefits - Leave' 0.88 -
Total 537 3.87
(T in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Difference in value of assets as per books and as per tax 7283 102.95
Fair valuation of mutual funds and investments 9.71 8.58
Deferred tax assets arising on account of : = -
Lease Liabilities 1.33 1.26
Provision on Receivables 048 1.39
Provison for Employee Benefit 2.71 2.11
Others = 357
Amortisation of upfront fees (net) (0.00) (0.10)
78.01 103.30
Less: MAT credit entitlement (124.08) (147.69)
Total {46.07) {44.39)
(R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Creditors for capital goods 389 16.80
Liability for water charges & Electricity Duty 202.63 157.11
Total 206.52 17391
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R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Non Current Lease Liability 323 3.15
Current Lease Liability 0.58 045
Total 381 360
®in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Secured
Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks:
Working Capital - Foreign Currency Loan 10943 -
Working capital - Demand Loan 171.12 158.66
Working capital - Cash Credit 19.50 164.98
Unsecured - -
From Body Corporate 11.02 16.04
Total 311.07 339.68

Security disclosure for outstanding current borrowings:

Borrowing from banks are secured, in respect of respective facilities, by way of hypothecation of entire current assets of the
Company and further secured by second charge on fixed assets of the Company.

R in crore)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises|] 0.35 0.96
Due to others 159.04 401.80
Total 159.39 402.76
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Principal amount outstanding as at end of year 035 0.96
Principal amount overdue more than 45 days - 0.72
Interest due and unpaid as at end of year = 0.02

Interest paid to the Supplier - -
Payment made to the supplier beyond the appointment date during the year - -
Interest due and payable for the year of delay - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year = 0.02
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year = -

[JUnder the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the information
and records available with the management, the amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,(including interest on
outstanding dues) which are outstanding as at balance sheet date is Rs. 0.35 Crores and interest on amount due for more than
45 days is NIL.
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(R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current maturities of long term debts 442 37.80
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.14 2.87
Employee related payables 849 8.01
Total 13.05 4868
&in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Statutory dues 25.16 12.88
Advance from customers 2279 9.65
Other payables 130.98 4397
Total 178.93 66.50
(F in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity (Refer Note 41) 034 0.30
Provision for Employee Benefits - Leave 0.09 -
Provision for Renewable Energy Cess 28.56 18.95
Total 2899 19.25
& incrore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Operating revenue
Sale of Manufactured Products 2,907.31 1,984.63
Sale of Services 79.46 102.78
Sale of Traded Goods 2495 15.23
Sale of Power 335 438
Sale of Miscellaneous items 1.92 1.87
3,016.99 2,108.89
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentive 6.45 275
Other Incentive & Subsidy 0.30 039
Total 3,02374 211203
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The disaggregation of the company’s revenue from contracts with customers is as under:-

(i) Geographic market R in crore) (
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
India 263520 2,072.37
Outside India 381.79 36.52
Total 3,016.99 2,108.89

(i) The following table provides information about receivables, contract asset and contract liabilities from contracts
with customers:-

Particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Receivable which are inclued in Trade and other receivables 29861 7738

Contract assets - -

Contract liabilities 22.79 9.65

(iii) Perfomance Obligation

The company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customers, generally on delivery of the goods and the perfomance obligation of the company is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods to the customers.

R in crore)

Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Deposits 262 2.64
Loans 1.01 0.71
Bonds 040 -
Gain from fair valuation of investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss:
Mutual Funds 1.01 (0.51)
Gain from fair valuation of investments carried at fair value through Amortised cost:
Bonds 0.06 -
Dividend received on Shares 4413 0.06
Insurance claim received 035 041
Others 0.64 037
Total 50.22 3.68
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(R in crore)
Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening stock 575.01 242.89
Add: Purchases 1,693.14 1,758.83
2,268.15 2,001.72
Less: Sales 97.68 4212
Less: Closing Stock 365.76 575.01
Total 1,804.71 1,384.59
in crore)
Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 129.21 79.21
Work-in-Progress 248 2.92
Traded Goods 0.01 -
By-Products 31.67 13.02
163.37 95.15
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 94.76 129.21
Work-in-Progress 2.53 248
Traded Goods 2.14 0.01
By-Products 25.53 31.67
124.96 163.37
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 3841 (68.22)
& incrore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Salaries and wages 97.52 86.93
Contribution to provident and other funds 404 448
Sta ffwelfare expenses 033 043
Total 101.89 91.84

(@) During the period the Company recognised an amount of ¥3.65 Crores (2019-20: ¥4.10 Crores ) as remuneration to Key
Managerial Personnel. The details of such remuneration is as below:

Payment to Key Managerial Personnel in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(i) Short-term employee benefits 3.20 345
(i) Post-employment benefits 045 0.65
(iii) Other long-term benefits - -
Total 365 410
(b) For descriptive notes on disclosure of defined benefit obligation refer note 41.
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 in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Interest on borrowings 2634 4214
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs 0.24 342
Other borrowing costs 12.14 11.19
Total 38.72 56.75
®&in crore)
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 149.57 159.24
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.09 0.21
Total 149.66 15945
(T in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Rent & Hire charges 16.03 18.09
Rates and taxes 90.33 74.28
Power, fuel and electricity expenses 32.30 43.60
Consumption of stores and spares parts 150.76 146.58
Repairs and maintenance charges:
Building 157 323
Machinery 543 9.58
Other repair charges 423 7.31
Insurance 1.68 329
Commission and brokerage 8.19 9.62
Advertisement and publicity expenses 262 3.26
Legal and professional fees 264 6.50
Labour charges 3135 24.31
Freight and forwarding expenses 2848 3.36
Auditors' fees 0.18 0.14
Allowances for credit losses (2.59) 250
Corporate Social Responsibility 6.23 234
Sundry Balances written off 748 {4.58)
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - (0.34)
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net of gain) (14.89) 12.77
Miscellaneous expenses 12.06 10.68
Total 384,08 376,52
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(®in crore)

Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

i) Current tax
Current tax 115.82 21.00
Total 115.82 21.00
i) Deferred tax
Deferred tax (Liability Reversal) (26.41) 0.02)
Less: MAT Credit (1.16) 25.85
Total (25.25) (25.87)

The Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit / (loss) attributable to the shareholders of the
company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent
shares outstanding during that particular year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the year 438.90 105.35
Nominal value of equity shares () 10.00 10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & Diluted EPS 233,610,100 233,610,100
Basic & Diluted earnings per share () 18.79 451

The preparation of the Company'’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Useful Life

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. Significant judgments and estimates relating to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions,
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

Fair value measurement of inancial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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Impairment of non-inancial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm'’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

for the period ended 31st March 2021
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligations at the end of the reporting period is 7.02 years (31st
March 2020 - 5.59 years)

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the year are as
follows:

X in crore)
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(a) Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 152.25 103.03
not provided for (net of advances)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(b) Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:
Excise Duty 7.09 9.39
Service Tax 0.39 0.14
Customs Duty 3.14 3.38
Other money for which the company is contingently liable:
Unredeemed bank guarantees on behalf of the joint venture company 0.65 2.00
Other unredeemed bank guarantees 47.61 41.54
Bills discounted with banks 4158 19.55
Total 10046 76.00

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings , it is not practicale for the company to estimate the timing of cash
outflows, if any in respect of the above as it is determindable only in receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various
forums/authorities

(i) Based on discussion with the solicitors / favourable decisions in similar cases / legal opinion taken by the Company, the
management believes that the Company has good chance of success in above mentioned cases and hence no provision there
against is considered necessary.

& in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 034 449 030 387
Total 0.34 449 030 387

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is
the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied with the number of
years of service.
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Changes in deined beneit obligation T incrore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 417 296
Interest cost 0.29 020
Current service cost 0.88 0.85
Benefits paid (0.15) (032)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations (0.35) 048
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 4.83 417
Breakup of actuarial gain/loss: (T in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumption 0.06 036
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustment (047) 0.12
Reconciliation of present value of deined beneit obligation and the fair value of plan assets (Fin crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 483 417
Net asset recognized in balance sheet (4.83) 4.17)
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss (Zin crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current service cost 0.88 0.85
Interest cost 0.29 020
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss 117 1.05
Amount recognized in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (Tincrore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Actuarial gain/(loss) for the year on planned benefit obligations (0.35) 048
Actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year (0.35) 048
Actuarial assumptions (Tin crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Discount rate 6.90% p.a. 7.00% p.a.
Future salary increase 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors
are determined close to each year end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms
of maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical
experience.
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Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability R in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 483 417
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 442 3.80
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 532 459
Impact of Change in Withdrawal Rate -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 483 417
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 487 420
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 480 413
Impact of the change in salary increase -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 483 417
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 533 4.60
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 441 3.79
Leave
Changes in deined beneit obligation ®in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year - -
Interest cost = -
Current service cost 0.30 -
Past Service Cost 0.66 -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations = -
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 0.96 -
Reconciliation of present value of deined beneit obligation and the fair value of plan assets ®in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 0.96 -
Net asset recognized in balance sheet (0.96) -
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss R in crore)
Particulars As at As at

37st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current service cost 0.30 -
Past Service Cost 0.66 -
Interest cost = -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss 0.96 -
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Actuarial assumptionsr (R in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Discount rate 6.90% p.a. -
Disability rate 5% of Mortality rate -
Retirement Age 58Years -
Future salary increase 5.50% p.a. -

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors
are determined close to each year end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms
of maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical
experience.

& incrore)

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 Total
FVTPL Fvodl Amortised Total FVTPL Fvodl Amortised
cost Cost

Financial Assets
Investment in equity instruments = 4482 = 4482 - 4596 - 4596
Investment in mutual funds 485 = = 485 418 - - 418
Investment in Bonds - - 496 496 - - 490 490
Investment in government securities » > 008 008 - - 0.08 008
Trade receivables - - 29861 29861 - - 7738 7738
Loans - - 928 928 - - 16.56 16.56
Security deposit ° ° 10.04 10.04 - - 3.20 320
Cash and cash equivalents - - 2235 2235 - - 328 328
Other financial asset - - 951 951 - - 540 540
Margin money z 7 62.87 6287 - - 57.75 57.75
Total 485 4482 417.70 46737 418 4596 168.55 21869
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings = = 316.26 316.26 - - 697.67 697.67
Lease Liabilities 381 381 360 360
Trade payable - - 159.39 159.39 - - 402.76 40276
Security deposit - = = - - - 10.75 10.75
QOther financial liabilities > = 1750 17.50 - - 1831 1831
Total - - 496.96 496.96 - - 1,13309 1,133.09
(a) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurement T incrore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Financial Assets
Financial investments at FVOCI

Unquoted equity instruments 4482 4596
Financial investments at FVTPL
Mutual Fund 4.85 418
Total 4967 50.14
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed &in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Mutual funds 4.85 - - 418 - -
Bonds - 4.96 - - 4.90 -
Unquoted equity instruments - 4482 - - 4596 -
Investment in Government Securities 0.08 0.08
Total 485 49.86 - 418 50.94 -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings = 316.26 - 697.67
Lease Liabilities 3.81 360
Total - - 320.07 - - 701.27

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments,
mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued
using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

{b) Fair value of inancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and FVTOC| & in crore)

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial Assets

Carried at FVOC!

Investments in equity instruments 4482 44 82 4596 4596

Carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables 29861 29861 77.38 77.38

Loans 9.28 9.28 16.56 16.56

Security deposit 10.04 10.04 320 3.20

Cash and cash equivalents 22.35 22.35 3.28 3.28

Other financial asset 9.51 9.51 540 540

Margin money 62.87 62.87 5775 57.75

Investment in Bonds 496 496 490 490

Investment in Government Securities 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08

Carried at FVTPL

Investments in mutual funds 4385 485 418 418

Total 46737 46737 21869 218.69
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(R in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
Financial Liabilities
Carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 316.26 316.26 697.67 697.67
Lease Liabilities 381 381 360 3.60
Trade payable 159.39 159.39 402.76 402.76
Security deposit - - 10.75 10.75
Other financial liabilities 17.50 17.50 18.31 18.31
Total 496.96 496.96 1,133.09 1,133.09

(o) Fair value measurements
(i) Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(i) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. Costs of unquoted equity instruments
has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements
and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

(i) Fair value of borrowings which have a quoted market price in an active market is based on its market price which is
categorized as level 1. Fair value of borrowings which do not have an active market or are unquoted is estimated by
discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return adjusted for
credit spread considered by lenders for instruments of similar maturities which is categorized as level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

(iv) Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates
presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

(v) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the period ended March 31,2021 and period ended March
31, 2020.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s financial
assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:
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(AY Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings in foreign currencies.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company is carrying its
borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company
is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Particulars Effect on Profit before tax
As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Variable rate borrowings 304.10 681.28
Fixed rate borrowings 12.16 16.39

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variable held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact
on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2021: 50 bps) (152) (341)
Decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2021: 50 bps) 152 341

b) Foreign currency risks

The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR). The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies; consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue
from export markets and the costs of imports, primarily in relation to raw materials. The Company is exposed to exchange rate
risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result’s in increase in the
Company's overall debt position in Rupee terms without the Company having incurred additional debt and favorable movements
in the exchange rates will conversely result in reduction in the Company's receivables in foreign currency.

Description Currency As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Creditors UsD ($) 149 108.87 1.72 129.65

Working Capital Demand Loan / Packing Credit UsD (%) 149 10943 - -

Debtors usD ($) 250 183.92 0.01 0.67

Term Loan UsD (8) 0.06 4.06 0.78 58.85

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities.
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& in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
USD Sensitivity
Increase by 5% (31st March 2020 - 5%) (1.92) (9.39)
Decrease by 5% (31st March 2020 - 5%) 1.92 9.39
B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms
or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration risks.

he Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk
and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents,
derivatives and financial guarantees provided by the Company. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in
material concentration of credit risk.

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was ¥ 467.37 Crores
and ¥ 218,69 Crores as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables,
balances with bank, bank deposits, investments in debt securities and other financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

CustomercreditriskismanagedbyeachbusinesslocationsubjecttotheCompany’sestablished policy, proceduresandcontrolrelating
to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with the assessment both in terms of number of days and amount. Any Credit risk is curtailed with arrangements with third parties .
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number
of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Company does
not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties . The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is the carrying amount
as illustrated in Note 43.

(Q) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management
is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company monitors its
risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access
to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company
has access to funds from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures and other debt
instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments -  in crore)
Particulars Upto 1year 1to2years 3to5years Morethan Total

5 years
Period ended 31st March 2021
Contractual maturities of borrowings 31549 026 0.51 - 316.26
Contractual maturities of trade payables 159.39 - - - 159.39
Particulars Upto 1year 1to2years 3to5years Morethan Total

5 years
Period ended 31st March 2020
Contractual maturities of borrowings 37749 47.20 139.68 133.31 697.68
Contractual maturities of trade payables 402.75 - - - 402.75

()  Carrying value of Right-of-use assets by class:

The Company has lease contracts for land and buildings used in its operations. For Buildings the lease term generally varies
between 2 to 5 years and for land it can extend upto 90 years.The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the

lessor’s title to the leased assets.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movement during the period:

(¥ in crore)

Particulars As at
31st March 2021
As at Tst April 2020 22.52
Addition during the year
Leasehold Land -
Leasehold Building 0.71
Depreciation Expense
Leasehold Land 0.25
Leasehold Building 0.73
As at 31st March 2021 22.25
Particulars As at
31st March 2020

Initial recognition on adoption of Ind AS 116 =
Reclassified from Leasehold Land to ROU asset on adoption of Ind AS 116 19.45
As at 1st April 2019
Addition during the year
Leasehold Land 0.63
Leasehold Building 333
Depreciation Expense
Leasehold Land 0.25
Leasehold Building 064
As at 31st March 2020 22.52
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year: (X in crore)
Particulars As at
31st March 2021
As at 1st April 2020 3.60
Add: Additions during the year 0.71
Add: Finance Cost 037
Less: Rent 0.87
381
Particulars As at
31st March 2020
As at 1st April 2019 -
Add: Additions during the year 3.96
Add: Finance Cost 037
Less: Rent 0.73
360

The Company has not applied Ind As 116 on low value assets and short term leases.

The outbreak of corona virus (COVID -19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and dowdown of
economic activity.

Due to the lockdown announced by the Government, the Company’s operations were suspended/slowed down during the
lockdown period. The operations and economic activities have gradually resumed with requisite precautions and expected to
return to normalcy in due course of time.

The Company has taken into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the financial results, including its
assessment of its liquidity position and recoverable value of its assets based on internal and external information up to the date
of approval of these financial results and current indicators of future economic conditions.

The Company will continue to closely observe the evolving scenario and take into account any future developments arising out
of the same.
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Subsidiary Company

for the period ended 31st March 2021

As at 31st March 2021
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited

Particulars

As at 31st March 2020

Damodar Aluminium Private Limited

Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited

Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited

Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited

Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited

Kalinga Infra Projects Ltd.

Kalinga Infra Projects Ltd. (w.ef. 19/8/19)

Shyam Sel and Power Limited

Shyam Sel and Power Limited

Shyam Qres (Jharkhand) Private Limited

Step-down Subsidiary Company

Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private
Limited.

Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private
Limited (w.ef. 11-04-2019)

Shyam Energy Limited

Shyam Energy Limited

Taurus Estates Private Limited

Taurus Estates Private Limited

Whispering Developers Private Limited

Whispering Developers Private Limited

Meadow Housing Private Limited

Meadow Housing Private Limited

Nirjhar Commercials Pvt, Ltd.

Nirjhar Commercials Pvt. Ltd. {6-9-19)

Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Private Limited

Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Private Limited (28-6-19)

Key Management Personnel:

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports Financial Statements

for the period ended 31st March 2021

As at 31st March 2021
Shri Brij Bhushan Agarwal
(Managing Director)

As at 31st March 2020

Shri Brij Bhushan Agarwal
{Managing Director)

Shri Sanjay Kumar Agarwal (Joint Managing
Director)

Shri Sanjay Kumar Agarwal
{Joint Managing Director)

Shri Bhagwan Shaw (Director)

Shri Bhagwan Shaw (Director)

Shri Dev Kumar Tiwari (Director)

Shri Dev Kumar Tiwari (Director)

Shri Deepak Kumar Agarwal (Director)

Shri Deepak Kumar Agarwal (Director)

Shri Birendra Kumar Jain(Company Secretary)

Shri Birendra Kumar Jain(Company Secretary)

Shri Shree Kumar Dujari (Chief Financial Officer)

Shri Shree Kumar Dujari (Chief Financial Officer)

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal (Director)

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal (Director)

Shri Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji
(Director)

ShriVenkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji
{Director)

Shri Ashok Kumar Jaiswal (Director)

Shri Ashok Kumar Jaiswal (Director)

Shri Yudhvir Singh Jain (Director)

Shri Yudhvir Singh Jain (Director)

Kishan Gopal Baldwa (Director)

Kishan Gopal Baldwa (Director)

Ajay Choudhury (Director)

Ajay Choudhury (Director)

Kiran Vimal Agarwal (Director) (upto 12.02.2021)

Rajni Mishra (Additional Director)
(wef 12.02.2021)

Kiran Vimal Agarwal {Director) (w.e.f. 05.03.2020)

Associates Meghana Vyapar Private Limited Meghana Vyapar Private Limited
Kecons Tradecare Private Limited Kecons Tradecare Private Limited
Kolhan Complex Private Limited Kolhan Complex Private Limited
Joint Venture MJSJ Coal Limited MJSJ Coal Limited

Enterprises over which Key
Management Personnel (KMP) are
able to exercise control /signiicant
inluence with whom there were
transactions/ balance during the
year:

Platinum Minmet Private Limited

Platinum Minmet Private Limited

Dorite Tracon Private Limited

Dorite Tracon Private Limited

Shyam Solar Appliance Private Limited

Shyam Solar Appliance Private Limited

Narantak Dealcomm Limited

Narantak Dealcomm Limited

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited

Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited

Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited

Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd.

Sunglow Complex Private Limited

Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF

Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd.

Toplight Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd.

Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF

Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Private Limited

Toplight Mercantiles Pvt, Ltd.

Sunglow Complex Private Limited

Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Private Limited

Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd

Subham Capital Private Limited

Subham Capital Private Limited

Subhlabh Commercials Private Limited

Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private
Limited (upto 11.04.2019)
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Relative's Name - Relation

Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal- Wife of Shri Mahabir
Prasad Agarwal

Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal- Wife of Shri Mahabir
Prasad Agarwal

Mrs. Mittu Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Brij Bhushan
Agarwal

Mrs. Mittu Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Brij Bhushan
Agarwal

Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - Sister of Mr. Brij Bhusan
Agarwal

Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - Sister of Mr. Brij Bhusan
Agarwal

Mrs. Anita Jhunjhunwala - Daughter of Mr.
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal

Mrs. Anita Jhunjhunwala - Daughter of Mr.
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal

Mrs. Bina Devi Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Bajrang Lal
Agarwal

Mrs. Bina Devi Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Bajrang Lal
Agarwal

Mrs. Pooja Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agarwal

Mrs. Pooja Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Agarwal

Mr. Shubham Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhusan
Agarwal

Mr. Shubham Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhusan
Agarwal

Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal - Father of Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal - Father of Mr. Sanjay
Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - Father of Mr. Brij
Bhushan Agarwal

Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - Father of Mr. Brij
Bhushan Agarwal

Mr. Sheetij Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhushan
Agarwal

Mr. Sheetij Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhushan
Agarwal

Disclosure of Related Party Transactions provides information about the Company’s structure. The following tables provide the
total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

for the period ended 31st March 2021

The sales and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
Outstanding balance at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the period ended 31st
March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31st
March 2020: NIL). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party
and the market in which the related party operates.

(Zin crore)

Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and JointVenture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1. Sale of Goods
Shyam Sel & Power Limited 122,91 71.59 . 12291 71.59
Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited 163 . 1.63 -
2, Commission (Expense)
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 3 186 i § 1.86
3. Sale of Licence
Shyam Sel & Power Limited 0.21 . - 0.21 -
4, Purchase of Licence
Shyam Sel & Power Limited 0.15 367 . 0.15 367
5. Purchase of Goods
Shyam Sel & Power Limited 4488 6049 - 4488 60.49
6. Rent Paid
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 002 002 - 0.02 002
Private Limited
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

7. Remuneration to KMP
Mr. Brij Bhusan Agarwal - - 1.88 206 1.88 2.06
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal - - 0.38 041 0.38 041
Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari - - 0.18 017 018 017
Mr. Bhagwan Shaw - - 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.06
Mr. Birendra Kumar Jain - - 0.12 0.13 0.12 0.13
Mr. Shree Kumar Dujari - - 0.24 0.25 0.24 0.25
Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal - - 035 036 0.35 036
8. Purchase of Investments
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - 001 = - = 001
Sanjay Kumar Agarwal - 0.01 - - = 001
Mittu Agarwal - 0.01 ° - = 001
Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF - 001 - - - 001
Sheetij Agarwal - 0.01 - - - 0.01
Shubham Agarwal - 0.02 - - = 0.02
Bajrang Lal Agarwal - 0.0 - - - 001
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X in crore)
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
9. Sale of Investments
Shyam Sel & Power Limited = 0.00 = - - 0.00
10. Advances Given/Refunded
Shyam Sel and Power Limited 49854 89.82 - - 49854 89.82
Kalinga Infra Projects Ltd 0.00 403 = - 0.00 403
Damodar Aluminum Pvt Ltd = 403 = - = 403
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 000
Private Limited (Formerly Uttar Purva
Hydro Power Private Limited)
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd - - 0.03 - 003 -
Shyam Ores {Jharkhand) Private - 55.07 0.1 - 0N 55.07
Limited
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 265 - = - 265 -
Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited = - 038 001 038 0.01
Shyam Energy Limited 0.03 003 - - 0.03 0.03
11, Advances Received back/taken
Shyam Sel and Power Limited 53063 79.64 - - 53063 79.64
Kalinga Infra Projects Ltd 001 403 - - 0.01 403
Damodar Aluminum Pvt Ltd - 403 - - - 403
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 0.00 - - - 000 -
Private Limited (Formerly Uttar Purva
Hydro Power Private Limited)
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd - - 0.01 - 0.01 -
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 1.00 - - - 1.00 -
Shyam Energy Limited - 001 = - - 001
Shyam Qres (Jharkhand) Private - 3902 867 - 867 39.02
Limited
Swarnrekha Abasan Pvt Ltd - - = - - -
Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited - - 0.06 0.35 0.06 0.35
Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
12. Loans Received
Narantak Dealcomm Limited = - 49.11 7560 49.11 7560
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited ° - 9.13 36.19 9.13 36.19
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 6.00 - 6.00 -
Subham Capital Private Limited - - 11.00 64.50 11.00 64.50
13. Loans Repaid
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - 4993 7560 4993 7560
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 6.02 - 6.02 -
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

X in crore)

Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Subham Capital Private Limited - - 1131 64.50 1131 64.50
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited = - 940 36.19 940 3619
14. Loans Given
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd = - 250 - 250 -
15. Interest on Loan Taken
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - 0.82 - 0.82 -
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 0.02 - 0.02 -
Subham Capital Private Limited - - 031 - 031 -
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited ° - 027 - 027 -
16. Dividend Received
Shyam Sel and Power Limited 4413 4413
17. Dividend Paid
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - 1000 - 10.00 -
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Brij Bhushan Agarwal - - 431 - 431 -
Mittu Agarwal - - 021 - 021 -
Kirandevi Vimal Agrawal - - 0.01 - 0.01 -
Sangeeta Agarwal - - 0.01 - 0.01 -
Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF - - 042 - 042 -
Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. = - 1343 - 1343 -
Toplight Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd. = - 0.13 - 0.13 -
Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Pvt. Ltd. - - 411 - 411 -
Anita Jhunjhunwala - - 001 - 0.01 -
Bajrang Lal Agarwal = - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Sanjay Agarwal - - 0.01 - 001 -
Subham Capital Private Limited - - 7.77 - 7.77 -
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited ° - 281 - 281 -
18, Balances outstanding on
account of Receivables/(Payable)
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private - - 011 011 0.1 0.1
Limited
Shyam Sel and Power Limited - (46.00) - - - (46.00)
Damodar Aluminum Pvt Ltd. 0.10 0.10 - - 0.10 0.10
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd = - 0.27 - 0.27 -
Shyam Energy Limited 0.05 0.02 = - 0.05 0.02
Shyam Ores (Jharkhand) Private - 16.49 793 - 793 16.49
Limited
Meadow Housing Private Limited 029 029 ° - 029 029
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing (0.00) 073 - - (0.00) 073
Private Limited
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(X in crore)

Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
inluence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited = - 161 (0.34) 161 {0.34)
Narantak Dealcomm Limited = - (0.01) (0.01) (0.01) {0.01)
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited - (1.65) - - - (1.65)

* 0.00 Figure represents value less than ¥ 1 Lakh.

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and
short term goals of the Company. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan
coupled with long term and short term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity,
cash generated from operations, long term and short term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible debt securities. The
Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio
of the Company.

(in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Borrowings (Note - 19, 24 and 26) 316.26 697.67
Trade payables (Note-25) 159.39 402.75
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note-11) 2235 328
Less: Current investments (Note - 9) 981 418
Net debt 44349 1,092.96
Equity 23361 233.61
Other Equity 2,123.56 1,72434
2,357.17 1,957.95
Capital and net debt 532 1.79
Gearing ratio 15.84% 35.82%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,2021 and
year ended March 31, 2020.
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(& in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Statutory Audit Fees 0.13 0.13
Tax Audit Fees 0.03 0.01
Fees for Other Services 0.02 0.00
Total 0.18 0.14
% in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)
Travelling expenses - 0.15
Demurrage Charges on Import of Raw Materials 0.21 433
Raw Materials 54.16 27754
Interest on Loan 0.01 1.16
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
ii) Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)
Exports (FO.B. value) 27592 45.03
Efective Tax Reconciliation (% in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Accounting profit before income tax 52947 10048
Enacted tax rate in India 34.94% 34.94%
Computed expected tax expenses 185.02 35.11
Tax holidays (193.18) (158.32)
Income exempted from tax (44.13) (0.06)
Other Adjustments 142.86 118.40
Income Tax recognised in Proit and Loss account 90.57 (4.87)

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules and Regulations thereof is

treated as an appropriation of profit.
For The Year Ended 31st March 2021

& in Crores)

Particulars Amount In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period - 418

Amount Spent during the year towards activities specified 6.23 6.23 - 6.23

i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - - -

ii) On purpose other than (i) above 6.23 6.23 - 6.23
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores)

Particulars Amount In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period - 3.75
Amount Spent during the year towards activities specified 234 234 - 234
i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - - -
i) On purpose other than (i) above 234 234 - 234
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Raw Materials 54.16 277.54

As per Ind AS 108 “operating segments”, specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is predominantly

engaged in a single reportable segment of Iron and Steel.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable

losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Figures of previous years have been regrouped / rearranged / rectified wherever necessary to make them comparable with

the current periods figures

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

1to 56

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

VC& Managing. Director Jt. Managing Director
DIN 01125056 DIN 00232938

Shree Kumar -.'I-_|-".'I Birendra Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
A8305
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We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company’’) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), its associates and jointly controlled entities which comprises of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash
Flows Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant
records. (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities
as at March 31, 2021, its consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising profit and other comprehensive
income), its consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group,
its associates and jointly controlled entities in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the
relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We draw attention to note 46 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainties
and potential impact of the covid-19 pandemic on the Group’s operations and results as assessed by the
management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on future developments. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters
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were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Revenue from Sale of Goods (as described in note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statement.

The Group recognizes revenues when control of the | Our audit procedures included the following:
goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that e Considered the adequacy of the Group’s

reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods. In
determining the sales price, the Group considers the
effects of rebates and discounts (variable
consideration). The terms of arrangements in case of
domestic and exports sales, including the timing of
transfer of control, the nature of discount and rebates
arrangements, delivery specifications including
incoterms, create complexity and judgment in
determining sales revenues. The risk is, therefore,
that revenue is not recognized in accordance with
terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’, and accordingly, it was determined to be
a key audit matter in our audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

revenue recognition policy and its compliance
in terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’

e Assessed the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of internal financial controls
related to revenue recognition.

e Performed sample tests of individual sales
transaction and traced to sales invoices and
other related documents. In respect of the
samples selected, tested that the revenue has
been recognized in accordance with Ind AS
115.

e Sclected sample of sales transactions made
pre and post-year end, agreed the period of
revenue recognition to underlying documents.

o Sclected samples of rebates and discounts
during the year, compared them with the
supporting documents and performed re-
calculation of those variable considerations as
per scheme documents.

o Assessed the relevant disclosures made in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of theseconsolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of theconsolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for assessingits ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and joint ventures.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and its associates and joint ventures ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in theonsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

2 Associates, whose financial statements and other financial information include Group’s share of net
profit of Rs 0.00 crores and Rs 0.01 crores and Group’s share of total comprehensive profit of Rs 0.00
crores and Rs 0.01 crores, for the quarter and for the year ended March 31, 2021 respectively, as
considered in the Statement, whose financial statements and other financial information have been audited
by their respective independent auditors.

3 joint ventures, whose financial statements and other financial information include Group’s share of net
profit of Rs 0.00 crores and Rs 0.01 crores and Group’s share of total comprehensive profit of Rs 0.00
crores and Rs 0.01 crores, for the quarter and for the year ended March 31, 2021, respectively, as
considered in the Statement, whose financial statements and other financial information have been audited
by their respective independent auditors.

date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in theonsolidated financial statements that, individually or in

The independent auditor’s report on the financial statements and other financial information of these entities have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Statement in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is based solely on the reports of
such auditors and the procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph above.

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management.

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The accompanying Statement includes the audited financial statements and other financial information, in respect

of:

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March 2021,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of

142

o 11 subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries, whose financial statements and other financial

information include total assets of Rs 44.72 crores as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of Rs 11.33 crores
and Rs 12.65 crores and total net profit after tax of Rs 2.84 crores and Rs 3.17 crores for the quarter and
the year ended on that date respectively, and net cash outflows of Rs 33.18 crores for the year ended
March 31, 2021, as considered in the Statement, whose financial statements and other financial
information have been audited by their respective independent auditors.
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the Group’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group and its joint venture and associates has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its consolidated financial position in its consolidated financial
statements.

ii, The Group and its joint venture and associates did not have any long term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group and its joint venture and associates.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Group for the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 301571

Place: Kolkata

Dated: July 8, 2021
UDIN: 21301571AAAATIJ7079
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Shyam Metalics and Energy
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 203ve have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company’)
its joint venture and associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate companies and joint venture,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
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statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audiévidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflet the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation ofonsolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Holding company, its associates and joint ventures has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to its associate companies and joint ventures, which are companies
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incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditors of such associate companies
incorporated in India.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

Vivek Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. 301571

Place: Kolkata

Dated: July 8, 2021
UDIN: 21301571AAAATI7079
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as at 31st March, 2021
(Rin crore)
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1,758.87 1,968.52
b) Right-of-use assets 2A 4269 43.16
¢) Capital work-in-progress 3 50640 23545
d) Intangible Assets 4 065 0.79
e) Investments in associates and joint ventures 5 11.95 11.70
f) Financial Assets
i) Investments 5a 5463 60.73
ii) Other Financial Assets 6 39.76 40.76
g) Other Non-current Assets 7 25247 140.32
h) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 22 6.76 29.02
267418 2,53045
Current Asset
a) Inventories 8 1,030.23 1,486.71
b) Financial Assets
i) Investments 9 21524 71.59
ii) Trade Receivables 10 53354 159.02
iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 11 163.84 29.70
iv) Other Bank Balances 12 159.94 91.54
v) Loans 13 16.18 8.95
vi) Other Financial Assets 14 87.38 61.40
¢) Current tax assets (net) 15 0.15 4.79
d) Other Current Assets 16 539.22 618.02
2,745.72 2,531.72
Total Assets 5,419.90 5,062.17
Ec W ar Liabilities
a) Equity Share Capital 17 23361 23361
b) Other Equity 18 3,400.44 2,592.84
Total Equity 3,634.05 2,826.45
Non Controlling Interest 435 415
Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 19 120.18 351.31
i) Lease Liabilities 24 A 6.01 593
iii) Others Financial Liabilities 20 973 19.88
b) Provisions 21 10.59 2718
¢) Other Non-current Liabilities 23 206.93 262.69
35344 666.99
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 24 664.78 698.61
ii) Lease Liabilities 24 A 058 045
i) Trade Payables
Qutstanding due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 25 220 335
Qutstanding due to Creditors other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 364.86 579.43
iv) Other Financial Liabilities 26 63.79 154,55
b) Other Current Liabilities 27 295.51 127.64
¢) Provisions 28 29.28 0.55
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 29 7.06 -
1,428.06 1,564.58
Total Equ ty and Liag lities 5,41990 5,06217
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1t056

As per our report of even date attached
For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272
Vivek

Partner

Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021
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Financial Statements

(Rin crore)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
| Revenue from operations 30 6,297.07 437635
Il Otherincome 31 2372 1183
IIl otal Income (1) 6,320.79 4,388.18
IV EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed 32 371674 271823
Purchase of stock-in-trade 67.58 6325
Change in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and 33 4899 (103.50)
work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 34 188.14 168.36
Finance costs 35 62.46 8589
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 30036 296.68
Other expenses 37 881.83 863.92
otal Expense {IV) 5,266.10 409283
vV Profit/(loss) before Share in Profit/(Loss) of Associate and Joint Venture and tax (lIHV) 1,054.69 29535
VI Sharein Profit/(Loss) of Associate and Joint Venture 027 0.02
Proit/(Loss) before tax (V4VI) 1,054.96 29537
VIl Taxexpense: 38
(i) Current tax 266.56 5745
(i) Deferred tax (55.16) (10231)
(iii) Earlier year tax
VIl Proit/(loss) for the period (VI-VII) 84356 34023
IX  Transfer to General Reserve - -
IX  Profit for the Year (VIll+IX+X) 84356 34023
Profit / Loss attributable to Non Controlling Interest 0.20 0.01)
Profit / Loss attributable to owners of the Parent 84336 34024
VIl Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 068 (0.65)
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 589 163
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.42) (0.55)
Other comprehensive income for the year 5.15 043
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI+XII) 84871 340.66
Comprehensive Income attributable to Non Controlling Interest 020 (0.01)
Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the Parent 84851 34067
Xl Earning per Equity Share of @ 10 each (in §) 41 3610 14.56
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S KK A

. g - 1 | / . » - 1
jrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLI

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

11056

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

VC & Managing Diréctor

DIN 01125056 DIN 00560010
Shree Kumar Dt jari Birendra Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A8305
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

R in crore)
Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
A. Cashflow from operating activities:
Net Profit Before Tax 1,054.96 29537
Non Cash Adjustment for Non cash Non operating items
Depreciation 30036 296.70
Provision for Gratuity 1.78 021
Dividend Received (0.08) (0.60)
Unspent Liabilities written back and Unclaimed Balances adjusted (11.61) (4.64)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (12.74) 1.45
Gain on fair value of mutual fund investment (1.01) (132
Gain on derivative contracts (including provision for mark-to-market losses) - (0.06)
Gain in fair value of equity instrumenits through Profit and loss (8.53) -
Profit on Sale of Investments (133) (1.84)
(Profit)/Loss on sales of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.17
Interest Income (11.50) (5.96)
Interest & Finance charges 6246 85.89
Operating Proit Before Working Capital Changes 1,372.76 665.37
Adjustments for movement in:
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and other payables (213.30) (81.16)
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivable (364.69) (41.24)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories 45648 (754.58)
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets (12.88) 175.11
Cash low from operating activities before taxes 1,23837 (36.50)
Direct Taxes Paid (net) (188.58) (54.50)
Net cash low from operating activities (A) 1,049.80 (91.00)
 Cashflow from investing activitie

Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (Net) (361.05) (563.70)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investment (Net) (126.92) 133.03
Dividend Received 0.08 0.60
Loans Refunded/ (Given) (9.76) 341
Interest Received 538 6.75
Net cash from investing activities (B) (492.27) (419.91)
C. Cashflow from financing activities:
Repayments/Proceeds from Borrowing (Net) & Current Maturities (31791) 616.88
Acquisition of Non Controlling Interest 0.20 (0.28)
Dividend Paid (4322 -
Interest paid (62.46) (85.89)
Net cash from inancing activities (C) (423.39) 53071
Efect of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (D) -
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C+D) 134.14 19.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 29.70 9.90
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 163.84 2970
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X in crore)
Notes to the cash low statement

1. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind AS) - 7”Statement of Cash  Flow”.
2. Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:

Fortheyearended  For the year ended

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balance with banks - in current account 163.84 2146
Cash credit account (0.56)
Cheques/ DD on Hand 1.35
Cash on hand 745
Total 163.84 29.70

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal al 'd Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

11056

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

El F e e A= TRl
Shyam Metalics and E ergy Limited

VC & Managing_;. Director Whole Time Director

DIN 01125056 DIN 00560010
I-ii.ll'.'.:.':'l-l.'.l--.l )| i-.?l -.l a ._I..I.._ "-.'I.-."'I. l'_.l.l
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
A8305
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

ShyamMetalics and Energy Limited (‘the company’) is a public limited company incorporated in India in 2002 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is at Trinity Tower, 83 Topsia Road, 7th Floor, Kolkata — 700 046.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the Group') have a presence across the entire value chain of
manufacture and sale of ferro alloys, iron &steel products and power generation.

The consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2021 present the financial position of the Group as well as its interests
in associate companies and joint arrangements.

Signiicant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements are
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial
statements.

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b.  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair values by Ind AS.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest crores,
except otherwise stated.

¢ Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying value of assets and liabilities include useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, investments and goodwill, provision for employee benefits and
other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

d.  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company i.e. its subsidiaries. It also includes the Group’s share of profits, net assets and retained post acquisition
reserves of associates that are consolidated using the equity method of consolidation.

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to or has rights to the variable returns of the entity and the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed o ffduring the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Wherever necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identifiedseparately
from the Group's equity. The interest of noncontrolling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.The choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying value
of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if
it results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the consideration transferred in the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and contingent liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition.Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at
cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit’s value may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying value of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit in proportion to the carrying value of each asset in the
unit.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal.

Investment in associates
Associates are those enterprises in which the Group has significant influencebut does not have control.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost, from the
date significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. Subsequent changes in the
carrying value reflect the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate and impairment
charges, if any.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds the carrying value of the associate, the carrying value is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect
of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates, unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred and where material, the results of associates are modified to confirm to the
Group’s accounting policies.

Clarification that measuring investment at fair value through profit or loss is an investment by investment choice:

i) An entity that is a Venture capital organisation or other qualifying entity, may elect at initial recognition on an
investment by investment basis, to measure its investment in associates and joint ventureat fair value through
profit or loss.
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i) If an entity, that is not itself an investment entity, has an interest in an associates or joint venture that is an
investment entity may, when applying the equity method, elect or retain the fair value measurement applied by
that investment entity, associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture's interest in
subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associates or joint venture, at the later
of the date on which: (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognised; (b) the associates
or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associates or joint venture first
becomes a parent.

Interest in joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity where the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities of the joint arrangement
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Where Group entity undertakes its activities under joint arrangements directly, the Group's share of jointly controlled
assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with other parties are recognised in its financial statements and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled assets
are accounted for on the accrual basis. Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of jointly
controlled assets, and its share of joint arrangements expenses, are recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions will flow to the Group and their amount can be measured reliably.

Joint arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest are
referred to as joint ventures. The Group reports its interests in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting
whereby an interest in joint venture is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture. The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the
Group's share of the results of operations of the joint venture,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either, in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable
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Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
Unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each
case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
o Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

o Investment in quoted and unquoted equity shares

o Financial instruments

Current versus non-current classiication

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting
period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits
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associated with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is
applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components
having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all
direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is
capitalised as part of cost of the qualifying assets.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to take fair value as deemed cost for land, building and
plant &quipments.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets (excluding goodwill)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
Class of assets Years

Computer software 3to 5years

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible assets
recognised as of 1st April, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost.

Depreciation and amortisation of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a written down value basis, the cost of property, plant
and equipment and other intangible assets, including those held under finance leases to their residual value. These
charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their
estimated useful economic lives as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, oras
per technical assessment, or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period, if shorter. The estimated useful lives
of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in
respect of assets that are fully written down but are still in use.
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In case of certain classes of PPE, the Group uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act.
The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the PPE and the
estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from
those classes of assets.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable
through continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to
determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when
the carrying value of an asset exceed:s its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying value of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

Leases

The Group determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction
is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the
Group in return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for
either as finance or operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

() Operating lease — Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

(i) Finance lease — Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
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liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

The Group as lessor

(i) Operating lease — Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the statement of consolidated profit
and loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance lease — When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classiication and Subsequent Measurement:; Financial Assets

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI") or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") on the basis of following:

« the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
« the contractual cashflow characteristics of the financial asset.
Amortised Cost
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cashflows and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Afinancial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCl if both of the following conditions are met:
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- the financial asset is held withina business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cashflows and selling financial assets and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group in respect of unquoted equity investments which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an
election is made by the Group on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity
investments.

Fair Value through Proit or Loss

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through OCl.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

The Group has measured quoted equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
Classiication and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities:
Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit and loss when the financial liability is held for trading or
are designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit and loss:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial asset. In case of trade receivables,
the Group follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for recognition of
impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. The Group calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis
of its historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
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recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee beneits
Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the balance
sheet.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Group's
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement schemes the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses
of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service
cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.
Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier. The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair
value plan assets.

Inventories

Raw materials, stores and spares & traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
material and other items held for use in the production of finished goods are not written down below cost if the
finished products, in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of
finished goods includes excise duty and is determined on weighted average basis.

By-products are valued at estimated net realizable value.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that
may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

Government grants

The Group recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to
them shall be complied with and the grants will be received. Grants related to assets are treated as deferred income
and are recognized as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful life of the asset. Grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate and are deducted from the expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying value
and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when the sale is highly probable and the
asset, or disposal group, is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price
that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. The Group must also be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, then it is
treated as a discontinued operation. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation together with the gain
or loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior
periods being presented on this basis.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the period as determined in accordance with
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws in the countries
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where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except wheretheGroup is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Group will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Group.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set o ffcurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Adoption of new Indian Accounting Standards and interpretations
Revenue from Contracts with Customers: -

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue
and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes
a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. It focuses on the identification of performance obligations in a contract
and requires revenue to be recognised when or as those performance obligations are satisfied.
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Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 April 2018,

Interms of the requirement of the new standard, revenue is recognised net of trade schemes, discounts and incentives
payable to distributors/dealers and retailers.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms
and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government like GST.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements of the Group are presented in Indian rupees (), which is the functional currency of the
Group and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Nonmonetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the translation or settlement of other monetary items are included in the statement
of profit and loss for the period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest costs.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares including the treasury shares held by the Group to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with the financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less (except the instruments which are pledged) that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

ab. Trade and other payables

ac.

ad.

ae.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit period allowed. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
Long term trade payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision
maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as
defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Expected Credit Loss

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition.
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Revenue from contract with customer (Pending)

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with
customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach — Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application
(Cumulative catch-up approach). The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or
after April 1,2018.

The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and
accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect
on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.

Investment Property (Pending)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or
development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.
A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification
of property held at the date and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date.
Retrospective application in accordance with Ind AS 8 is only permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight

Recent accounting pronouncements
« IndAS116Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing
leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e, the lessee and the lessor. Ind
AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease
expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements
for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. The effective
date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition:

« Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying IndAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors

+ Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized
at the date of initial application. Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use
asset either as:
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« Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s «  Amendment to IndAS 103, Business Combinations and IndAS 111 Joint Arrangement

incremental borrowing r. h f initial lication or o ) . ) ) N ) . )
cremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application o This interpretation clarifies how an entity accounts for increasing its interest in a joint operation that meets the

« An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to definition of business. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impactof such amendment.
that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients

. Amendments to IndAS 23, Borrowing Costs
are available under both the methods. g

The amendment clarifies that the general borrowings pool used to calculate eligible borrowing costs excludesonly
borrowings that specifically finance qualifying assets that are still under development or construction. The Company
is in the process of evaluating the impactof such amendment.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified
Retrospective Approach’for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on
the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be
retrospectively adjusted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impactof such amendment. + Amendments to IndAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

-IndAS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments When applying the equity method, a non-investment entity that has an interest in an investment entity associate or
joint venture can elect to retain the fair value accounting applied by the associate or joint venture to its subsidiaries.
Venture capital and other qualifying organizations can elect to measure investments in associates or joint ventures
at fair value through profit or loss instead of applying the equity method. The amendments clarify that both these
elections applyfor each investment entity associate or joint venture separately. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impactof such amendment.

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12.
According to the appendix, compani es need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting
each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing
which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when
determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard
permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be
applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and i) Retrospectively with cumulative effect
of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.
The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on
the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives. The Company is in the process of
evaluating the impactof such amendment.

« Amendment to IndAS 12 — Income taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company is in the process of evaluating
the impactof such amendment.

« Amendment to IndAS 19 plan amendment, curtailment or settlement-

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits; in connection
with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

- to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after
a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

- to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus,
even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The Company is in the
process of evaluating the impactof such amendment.
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Total Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total Attrib - | Attributa Total Other
Securities Retained | Capital Other FVTOC | Remeasure -| utableto | bletoNon Equity
Premium Earnings | Reserves | Reserves Equity | mentofthe [Ownersofthe | Controling
Instruments | netdeined | Company | Interest
beneit plans

Balance at 1st April 2019 178.15 1,666.12 38833 110 2285 008 2,25663 443 2,261.06
Profit / (Loss) for the year 340.24 340.24 34024
Income tax effect (0.55) (0.55) (0.55)
Adjustment in Non Controlling - (0.28) (0.28)
Interest during the year
Acquisition of subsidiary (4.46) (4.46) (4.46)
Other Comprehensive Income 163 (0.65) 098 098
Balance at 31st March 2020 178.15 2,006.36 38387 110 2393 {0.57) 2,592.84 415 2,596.99
Balance at 1st April 2020 178.15 2,006.25 38387 110 2393 (0.46) 259284 415 2,596.99
Profit / (Loss) for the year 84336 84336 84336
Income Tax Effect 112 0.12) 099 099
Adjustment in Non Controlling - - 020 0.20
Interest during the year
Profit on sale of Investment - 003 0.03 003
Disposal of Subsidiary 0.01 0.01 0.01
Merger Impact - 0.74 0.74 0.74
Dividend Paid 43.22) - (43.22) 4322)
Transferred to Demerged Division (0.89) (0.89) (0.89)
Transfer to Retained eamnings 044 (044) - -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 589 068 6.57 - 657
Balance at 31st March 2021 178.15 2,805.95 384.61 110 3097 (0.35) 340044 435 3404.78
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 306033E / E300272

Vivek Agarwa
Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021
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R in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
Tst April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st [ 1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustments  March March
2021 2021 2021
Freehold Land 21331 222 157 21397 - - - 21397
Buildings 531.04 16.84 124 54665| 16768 4163 055  20877| 33788
Plant and Equipment 2326.10 7049 - 239659| 93892 255.83 - 1,19475] 120184
Furniture and Fixture 1.63 0.70 - 232 1.07 027 - 134 0.98
Vehicles 5.05 0.73 - 578 1.25 0.60 - 185 393
Office Equipment 400 061 - 461 369 0.64 - 434 0.27
Total 3,081.13 9159 281 316992 111261 29897 055 141105 | 1,75887
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
TstApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st  [1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ st 31st
2019 Adjustment  March 2019 Adjustments  March March
2020 2020 2020
Freehold Land 204.87 845 - 21331 - - - = 21331
Buildings 45242 7863 - 531.04| 12887 3881 - 16768 36336
Plant and Equipment 1,883.86 44592 368 232610 68631 25478 217 93892( 1,387.18
Furniture and Fixtures 1.5 0.08 - 163 0.86 0.21 - 1.07 0.56
Vehicles 384 2.21 101 5.05 0.78 0.82 034 125 380
Office Equipment 317 0.84 - 400 3.09 060 - 369 031
Total 2,549.71 536.13 469 3,081.13 | 81991 29522 251 111261 | 196852
(X in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustments  March March
2021 2021 2021
Leasehold Building 333 0.71 - 404 064 0.73 - 137 267
Leasehold Land 4190 - - 4190 142 045 - 1.88 40.02
Total 4523 0.71 - 4594 2.06 1.18 - 3.25 | 4269
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st st April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2019 Adjustment  March 2019 Adjustments  March March
2020 2020 2020
Leasehold Building - 333 - 333 - 064 - 064 269
Leasehold Land 4127 0.63 - 4190 097 045 - 142 4047
Total 4127 3.96 - 4523 0.97 1.09 - 2.06 4316
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R in crore)
Description 1st April 2020 Additions  Disposals/Adjustment  31st March 2021
Buildings 48.58 91.24 4461 95.21
Plant & equipments 137.21 27492 55.71 356.42
Land 49.66 2260 1749 54.77
Total 235.45 388.76 117.81 506.40
{in crore)
Description 1st April 2019 Additions  Disposals/ Adjustment  31st March 2020
Buildings 14.62 101.07 67.11 4858
Plant & equipments 29342 285.87 44207 137.21
Land 49.66 - - 4966
Total 357.70 386.94 509.18 23545
®in crore)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
Ist April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st | 1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2020 Adjustment  March 2020 Adjustment  March March
2021 2021 2021
Softwares 212 0.06 - 219 1.34 0.21 - 1.54 | 0.65
Total 212 0.06 - 219 1.34 0.21 - 1.54 | 0.65
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
Ist April  Additions  Disposals/ 31st | 1stApril  Additions  Disposals/ 31st 31st
2019 Adjustment  March 2019 Adjustment  March March
2020 2020 2020
Softwares 1.79 0.34 - 212 0.95 0.39 - 1.34 0.79
Total 1.79 0.34 - 212 0.95 0.39 - 1.34 0.79
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Description Number of shares Face Value For the year ended
Asat31st Asat31st Asat31st Asat31st
March 2021 March 2020 March 2021 March 2020
Investments measured at cost/deemed cost
Unquoted
Investment in Associates
Kolhan Complex Private Limited 161,200.00 161,200.00 10.00 145 145
Add: Share in Profit / (Loss) - 0.01)
145 144
Kecons Trade Care Private Limited 7,407,500.00 7,407,500.00 1000 10.00 10.00
Add: Share in Profit/(Loss) 001 001
10.01 1001
Meghana Vyapaar Private Limited 100,000.00 100,000.00 1000 0.10 0.10
Add: Share in Profit/(Loss) 0.26 002
036 012
Sub - Total 11.82 ns57
Investment in Joint Ventures ]
Kalinga Energy & power ltd 125,000.00 125,000.00 10.00 0.13 013
Add: Share in Profit/{Loss) (0.00) 000
0.12 013
Karo River Pellets Private Limited 5,000.00 5,000.00 10.00 0.01 001
Add: Share in Profit/(Loss) - -
0.01 001
Sub -Total 0.13 013
TOTAL 11.95 11.70
(F in crore)
Description Number of shares Face Value For the year ended
As at As at As at Asat
31stMarch 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Investments measured at fair value through proit and
loss
Unquoted
Investment in equity instruments
Glowing Realty Private Limited 150,000.00 150,000.00 10 0.15 0.15
150,000.00 150,000.00 10 0.15 0.15
Investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Unquoted
Investment in equity instruments
Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited - 450,000.00 10.00 ° 575
Dorite Tracon Private Limited 730,000.00 730,000.00 200 1062 1001
Narantak Dealcomm Limited 2,728,088.00 2,728,088.00 10.00 3738 3331
Platinum Minmet Private Limited 9,800.00 9,800.00 10.00 0.09 009
Subhlabh Commercials Private Limited 101,350.00 101,350.00 10.00 172 172
Shubham Capital Private Limited 357,000.00 357,000.00 10.00 409 421

Annual Report 2020-21 | 171



SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

for the period ended 31st March 2021

Description Number of shares Face Value For the year ended
Asat Asat Asat Asat
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Sunglow Complex Private Limited 9,800.00 980000 10.00 008 008
Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited 9,800.00 980000 10.00 014 014
Karva Automart Limited 10,000.00 10,000.00 10.00 003 003

5415 5534
Investment In Land 0.23 0.24
Investment in Bond
8.09% PFC Ltd 500.00 490
Investment in Government Securities
National Saving Certificate (VIl Issue) 0.10 0.10
Total 5463 60.73
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 5463 60.73
Aggregate amount of quoted investments = -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 5463 60.73

(X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
37st March 2021 31st March 2020

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 273 11.79
Bank deposits for maturity more than 12 months 37.03 2897
Total 39.76 40.76

(a) Fixed Deposits amounting to Rs. 31.85 Crores (31st March 2020 : 26.21 Crores) are held as margin money

(% in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Capital advances 246.67 52.16
Advances recoverable - 77.46
Employees Advance - 467
Deposits against demands under dispute 534 5.20
Prepaid expenses 046 0381
Advance Tax - 0.02
Total 25247 140.32
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(X in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(Valued at lower of cost and Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 726.12 1,138.74
Work in progress 253 249
Finished Goods 198.56 23527
Stores and Spares 63.80 63.58
Fuel 0.90 1.09
Traded Goods 6.24 844
By Products 32,08 37.12
Total 1,030.23 1,486.71

(X in crore)
Description Number of units Face Value Value

Asat As at Asat Asat
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31stMarch 2021 31st March 2020
(i) Inventories have been pledged as security for liabilities
Investment in Bond
8.09% PFC Ltd 500.00 496 -
Investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Quoted
Investment in equity instruments
Bajaj Finance Itd 6,547.00 654700 200 337 145
Investment in preference shares
Zee Entertainment (Redemable Preference Share) 2,097.00 209700 200 - 0.00
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust Reit 58400.00 - 130
SUB-TOTAL 467 145
Investment in Non- Convertible Debenture
Miraya Reality Private Limited NCD Fv 1 Lac 56.00 5600 100,000 070 091
Comerview Constructions & Developers Private Limited 80.00 8000 50,000 0.03 0.14
Shriprop Dwellers Private Limited 5400 5400 100,000 0.08 0.25
Shriprop Dwellers Private Limited 31.00 31.00 100,000 0.77 065
NCD Sterling Habitats Private Limited 400 400 100,000 0.06 0.05
Miraya Reality Private Limited NCD FCV 1.03Lac 94.00 9400 100,000 112 130
Genie Commercial Ventures Pvt. Ltd 7700 7700 100,000 093 095
NCD Cornerview Constructions Pvt Ltd 72.00 7200 50,000 0.05 0.15
Sterling Habitats Pvt Ltd 2800 2800 100,000 035 030
Genie Commercial Ventures Pvt. Ltd. 5 5 100,000 0.05 0.05
Embassy Office Parks Reit Sr| 1000 10,00 1,000,000 m 1.00
ICICI Home Finance Co. Ltd- Bond Issuance 80.00 80.00 500,000 460 400
SUB-TOTAL 9.85 9.75
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R in crore)
Description Number of units Face Value Value
Asat Asat Asat Asat
31stMarch 2021 31st March 2020 31stMarch 2021 31st March 2020
Quoted
Investment in Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life Infrastructure Fund -Plan Dividend 52,060 - 0.06
Aditya Birla Sun Life Index Fund - Growth 28,207 - 024
DSP Equity Fund Direct Plan - Growth 80,621 - 0.28
DSP Blackrock Natural Resources And New Energy Fund- 70,554 - 0.08
Dividend
Kotak Infrastructure And Economic Reform Fund Direct 50,236.79 - 0.08
Dividend
ICICI Prudenctial Value Fund Series 20 Direct Plan 500,000.00 500,000 062 038
Franklin India Smaller Companies Fund -Direct - Growth 78,356.27 - 029
HDFC Housing Opportunities Fund- Direct Growth 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.10 065
HSBC Small Cap Equity Fund - Growth Direct Plan 18,039.28 - 0.06
Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund 9,126,119 15,554,844 16,00 1519
Edelweiss Real Estate Opportunities Fund. 20530 29,520 2374 3450
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan - Fortnight Dividend 19,905,932.31 60.28 -
SBI Debt Fund Series - C- 7 (1190 Days) - Direct Growth 5.966,496 2987,784 752 354
L&T Infrastructure Fund Direct Plan -Dividend 68,558.89 - 0.08
L&T India Large Cap Fund - Growth 114,64893 = 0.26
HSBC Large Cap Equity Fund - Growth 14678.79 - 0.26
TATA ARBITRAGE FUND- DIRECT PLAN- GROWTH 30,701,551.44 3522 -
Nippon India Arbitrage Fund- Growth 22,990,227.33 50.18 -
HDFC Housing Opportunities Fund Series 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 - 1.10 0.65
Kotak Blue Chip Fund - Growth 13027.52 - 0.26
SBI Magnum Instacash Fund = 8,174.61 - = 353
SUB-TOTAL 195.76 6039
TOTAL 215.24 7159
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 21524 7159
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 215.24 7159
Rin crore)
Particulars As at As at
37st March 2021 31st March 2020
Trade receivables considered good (Unsecured) 37545 144.38
Trade receivables considered good (Secured) 158.10 14.64
Trade receivables - credit impaired 1.61 453
535.15 163.55
Less: Allowances for credit losses (1.61) (4.53)
Total 53354 159.02

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements
for the period ended 31st March 2021
(R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
0-30days 40040 81.35
31-60days 100.62 37.70
61 - 90 days 945 9.25
More than 90 days 2468 3525
Total 535.15 163.55
(R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Balance with banks:
Current account 15441 28.87
Cash credit account - (0.06)
Cheques/ DD on Hand 346 0.14
Fixed Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5.23 -
Cash in hand 0.74 0.75
Total 163.84 29.70
®incrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Fixed Deposits held as margin with maturity less than 3 months 18.18 3646
Fixed deposits maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 141.76 55.08
Total 159.94 91.54
(a) Fixed Deposits amounting to Rs. 26.49 Crores (31st March 2020 : Rs. 51.63 Crores) are held as margin money
(R in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits = 476
Loan to related parties 032 0.03
Loan to body corporates - Considered Good 7.66 446
Loans receivable considered good 896 046
Less: Provision for Doubtful Loans (0.76) (0.76)
Total 16.18 895

Expected Credit Loss -  In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.
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Rincrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued and due on fixed deposits 6.93 1.21
Interest accrued and due on bonds 0.14 -
Interest accrued on Deposits 0.25 -
Earnest money deposit 5.00 5.00
Incentive Receivable 58.95 5464
Insurance Claim Receivable 027 -
MTM receivables 3.1 -
Security deposits 12.73 0.55
Total 87.38 61.40
R incrore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Advance tax (net of provisions) 0.15 479
Total 0.15 479
®in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Advances against goods and expenses
i. Considered Good 505.51 486.72
ii. Considered doubtful - 0.52
Capital Advances - 88.94
Prepaid Expenses 040 0.39
Advances to employees 1.29 456
Advances for IPO 2.89 0.00
Balances with statutory authorities 29.10 3739
Less: Provision for advances to suppliers 0.03 -0.50
Total 539.22 618.02
in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Authorised Capital
290,000,000 (March 31, 2020 - 290,000,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 290.00 290.00
Total 290.00 290.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
233,610,100 (March 31,2020 - 233,610,100 ) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 23361 23361
Total 23361 23361
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(% in Crores)

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No of shares (% in Crores) No of shares & in Crores)
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the year
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 233,610,100 23361 233,610,100 23361
Equity shares at the end of the year 233,610,100 23361 233,610,100 23361

b) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The Company Declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

Description Asat 31st Asat31st Asat31st Asat 31st Asat31st
March 2021 March 2020 March2019 ~ March 2018 March 2017

c) Aggregate no. of shares issued for consideration other

than cash during the period of ive years immediately

preceding the reporting date

Opening 872,903 872,903 872,903 872,903 564,324

Add: Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract - - - - 308,579

for consideration other than cash.

Total 872,903 872,903 872,903 872,903 872,903

Description Asat31st Asat31st Asat 31st Asat 31st Asat31st
March 2021 March 2020 March2019  March 2018 March 2017

d) Aggregate number of bonus shares allotted as fully paid

up during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the

reporting date

Opening - - -

Add: Fully paid up bonus shares issued during the year - - 18,688,808 - -

Total - - 18,688,808 - -

& in Crores)
Equity shares of ¥10 each fully paid up As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

No. of shares

e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group

Subham Buildwell Private Limited

72,597,250

Narantak Dealcomm Limited

54,063,340

Subham Capital Private Limited

41,994,770

Mr. Brij Bhushan Agarwal

23,284,820

Kalpataru Housfin & Trading Private Limited

22,219,150

Dorite Tracon Private Limited

15,196,665

Holding No. of shares Holding

31.08% 72,597,250 31.08%
23.14% 54,063,340 23.14%
17.98% 41,994,770 17.98%
9.97% 23,284,820 9.97%
951% 222219150 951%
6.51% 15,196,665 6.51%
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(F in crore)

Particulars Reserve and surplus Total Other

Securities  Retained  Capital Other FVTOCI  Remeasure- Total Attributable AttributabletoNon  Equity
Premium  Earnings  Reserves  Reserves Equity =~ mentofthe toOwnersofthe Controlling Interest

Instruments  net deined Company
beneit plans

Balance at 1st April 2019 178.15  1,666.12 388.33 1.10 22.85 - 2,256.55 443 2,260.98
Proit / (Loss) for the year - 340.24 - - - - 34024 340.24
Income tax efect - - - - (0.55) - (0.55) (0.55)
Adjustment in Non Controlling - - - - - - - {0.28) (0.28)
Interest during the year

Acquisition/Merger of subsidiary - - (4.46) - - - (4.46) (4.46)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 117 (0.59) 0.58 0.58
Transfer to Retained earnings - (0.11) - - - 0.59 048 048
Balance at 31st March, 2020 178.15  2,006.25 383.87 1.10 2347 - 2,592.84 415 2,596.99
Balance at 1st April 2020 178.15  2,006.25 383.87 1.10 2347 - 2,592.84 415 2,596.99
Proit / (Loss) for the year - 843.36 - - - - 84336 843.36
Adjustment in Non Controlling - - - - - - - 0.20 0.20
Interest during the year

Income tax efect - - 0 - 112 (0.12) 0.99 0.99
Proit on sale of Investment - - - - 0.03 - 0.03 0.03
Disposal of Subsidiary - 0.01 - - - - 0.01 0.01
Merger Impact - - 0.74 - - - 0.74 0.74
Dividend Paid - 43.22) - - - - (43.22) (43.22)
Transferred to Demerged - (0.89) - - - - (0.89) (0.89)
Division

Transfer to Retained earnings - 044 - - - (0.44) - -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 6.00 0.56 6.57 6.57
Balance at 31st March, 2021 178.15 2,805.95 384.61 1.10 30.62 - 3,400.44 435 3,404.78

Securities Premium : Securities Premium Reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act., 2013.

Amalgamation Reserve : Amalgamation Reserve represents reserve created on amalgamation of Companies.

General Reserve: General Reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits for appropriation purposes. General
Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other Comprehensive income.

Other Comprehensive Income:  Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted
under OCl and comprises of the following:

i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

a. The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of non-current investments (other than in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) in OCl. This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
equity instruments measured at fair value. The company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the
relevant equity securities are disposed.

b. The actuarial gains and losses arising on defined benefit obligations have been recognised in OCl.
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i) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss. a. This Reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of changes in
fair value of currency swap that are designated as cash flow hedge are recognised in OCl. This is reclassified to statement of
Profit and Loss.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings of the
company.

(X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Secured
Term Loans:
Indian Rupee loan = 298.79
Foreign currency loan 123.12 10947
Long term maturities of inance lease obligations:
Commercial Vehicle Loan 1.19 045
124.32 408.71
Less: Current maturities of long term debt 446 58.04
119.86 35067
Unsecured
Loan from related parties 0.32 064
Total 120.18 351.31
(a) Details of terms and Condition of Foreign Currency Loan from banks:
(i) Repayment Terms for Secured Borrowings
Name of Bank Typeof  Rate of Interest (%) PA. Loan Amount Repayment Schedule
Loan Asat3lst  Asat3lst
March 2021 March 2020
State Bank of India, South India Bank, Union Bank of ~ Term Loan 10.65% to 11.8% - 94.14 Fully repaid
India and Allahabad Bank during the period
ICICI Bank ECB 6MUSDLIBOR+4.25% 406 767 2 HalfYearly installments remain balance on 31st
March 2021
ICICI Bank (New Loan} Term Loan - 75.00 Fully repaid
during the period
Axis Bank ECB 591% - 1974 External Commercial Borrowing of USD 15 million
(USD NIL outstanding) is repayable in 28 (unequal)
quarterly installments beginning from April 2014 and
ending on January 2021
Oldenburgische Landesbank AG, Germany ECB 6 M Euribor +125% pa. 119.07 3087 External Commercial Borrowing of EURO 1861 million
sanctioned amount and disbursed up to 31.03.2021
EURO 13.83 million (EURO 13.83 million outstanding}
is repayable in 17 {equal) half yearly installments
beginning from 30.06.2022 and ending on 30.06.2030
ICICI Bank, Axis & Bank of Baroda (Phase V) Term Loan 9.00% - 18048 Fully repaid during the period
Less : Unamortized upfront fees and reinstatement (0.01) 035
of loan
Total 123,12 408.25
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Exclusive first charge on the equipment (universal rolling mill, separator, universal grinder, Spare part for stock of plant &

machinery procured from Achenbach, Germany).
Pre-payment terms & Penalty Clause

Breakage cost.

Hire Purchase Loan is repayable in monthly installments and secured by assets purchased there against.

(& in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Security deposits received 0.86 1245
Retention Money 8.87 743
Total 973 19.88
 in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratuity 942 803
Provision for Employee Benefits -Leave 117 19.15
Total 10.59 27.18
& in Crores)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Fixed assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ 147.67 207.27
amortization charged for the financial reporting
Others 049 061
Fair valuation of mutual funds and investments 9.71 8.58
Deferred tax assets arising on account of :
Provision on receivables (1.01) (0.64)
Provison for Employee Benefit (4.64) -
Lease Liabilities (2.30) (1.26)
Expenditure allowed for tax purpose on payment basis (43B) - (7.07)
Amortisation of upfront fees (net) 0.00 0.10
Others (12.66) (15.26)
137.26 19233
Less: MAT credit Entitlement (144.02) (221.35)
Total (6.76) (29.02)

* 0.00 Figure represents value less than ¥ 1 Lakh.
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(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Liability for water charges 202.63 157.11
Deffered revenue grant 041 048
Creditors for capital goods 3.89 105.10
Total 206.93 262.69

X in Crores)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Non Current Lease Liability 6.01 593
Current Lease Liability[] 0.58 045
Total 6.59 6.38

& in Crores)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Secured
Loans Repayable on Demand
From Banks:
Working Capital- Foreign Currency loan 21593 16.04
Working capital - Demand loan 321.23 320.20
Working capital - Cash credit 68.29 362.37
Unsecured
Borrowing from Body corporates 5933 -
Total 664.78 698.61

Security disclosure for outstanding current borrowings:

Primary Security

st Charge on stock and receivables of the company along with other current assets on pari passu basis with working

capital bankers

Collateral Security

a) First charge on entire moveable fixed assets of the Company (Mangalpur unit) other than vehicles and other moveable fixed
assets specifically charged, on pari-passu basis with other working capital lenders

b) 2nd charge on Fixed assets of the Company other than Mangalpur unit.

c) st pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage of factory Land & Building of Mangalpur unit admeasuring 10 acres.
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(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 2.20 335
Due to others 364.86 57943
Total 367.06 582.78
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Principal amount outstanding as at end of year 2.20 2.58
Principal amount overdue more than 45 days = 0.72
Interest due and unpaid as at end of year = 0.02

Interest paid to the Supplier - -
Payment made to the supplier beyond the appointment date during the year - -
Interest due and payable for the year of delay - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of year - 0.02
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year = -

2.20 335

*Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the information
and records available with the management, the amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,(including interest on
outstanding dues) which are outstanding as at balance sheet date is Rs. 2.20 Million and interest on amount due for more than

45 days is Nil.

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Current maturities of long term debts 447 58.04
Retention money- Current 6.73 486
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.23 273
Accrued Expenses 0.07 -
Creditors for capital goods 13.61 56.16
MTM payables - 1.42
Employee related payables 2347 16.14
Trade Deposits 15.21 15.20
Total 63.79 154.55

¥ in Crores)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Statutory dues 50.76 17.57
Advance from customers 5597 3993
Advance from related parties - 027
Audit fee payable 0.01 -
Other payable 188.70 69.79
Deferred revenue grant 0.07 0.08
Total 295,51 127.64
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(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Provision for Employee Benefits 061 0.54
Provision for Renewable Energy Cess 28.56 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.11 0.01
Total 29.28 0.55
(X in Crores)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Provision for tax (Net of provisions) 7.06 -
Total 7.06 -
Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Operating revenue
- Sale of manufactured products 6,137.56 4,183.88
- Sale of services 7946 102.78
- Sale of Traded Goods 5491 60.81
- Sale of Power 335 438
- Sale of Miscellaneous items 374 11.04
3,016.99 2,108.89
Other Operating Revenues
- Export Incentive received 17.65 13.08
- Other Incentive & Subsidy Received 040 0.38
Total 6,297.07 4,376.35
The disaggregaion of the company’s revenue from contracts with customers is as under:-
(i) Geographic market (& in Crores)
Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
India 5,270.48 3,930.61
Qutside India 1,008.54 432.28
Total 6,279.01 4,362.89
(ii) The following table provides informaion about receivables, contract asset and contract liabiliies from contracts with
customers:-
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Receivable which are inclued in Trade and other receivables 53354 159.02
Contract liabilities 55.97 39.93
Total 589.50 198.95
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(iii) Perfomance Obligaion

The company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in ime when control of the goods is transferred to the
customers, generally on delivery of the goods and the perfomance obligaion of the company is saisied upon delivery of the

goods to the customers.

(% in Crores)

Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Non- operating Income
Recurring Income
Interest received on financial assets carried at amortised cost
- Deposits 8.06 5.16
- Loans 1.01 0.80
- Bond 040 -
- Others - 0.04
Interest from AIF/ Bond 2.02 -
"Net Gain on sale of Investments measured at cost 1.33 1.84
through Profit and Loss"
Gain from fair valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value through profit
and loss
- Derivative Instruments - 0.06
- Mutual Fund 1.01 1.06
- Bond 0.06 -
"Net Gain/ (Loss) on reinstatement of Investments measured at
fair value through Profit and Loss"
- Mutual Fund and Non Convertible debentures/Bond 853 -
Dividend received on Shares 0.08 0.60
Profit on sales of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.26
Insurance claim received 0.50 1.40
Others 0.72 061
Total 23.72 11.83
% in Crores)
Particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening stock 1,133.70 492 68
Add: Purchases 3,327.52 3,524.26
446122 4,016.94
Less: Sales 18.36 165.01
Less: Closing Stock 726.12 1,133.70
Total 3,716.74 2,718.23
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(% in Crores)

Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 240.30 145.87
Work-in-Progress 249 292
Traded Goods 844 4.07
By-Products 37.12 3447
288.35 187.33
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 198.56 240.30
Work-in-progress 253 249
Traded Goods 6.20 844
By-Products 32.08 37.12
239.37 28835
Add: Finished Goods transfer to Projects - 248
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 4899 {103.50)
(% in Crores)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Salaries and Wages 175.66 155.84
Contribution to provident and other funds** 784 844
Sta ffwelfare 464 408
Total 188.14 168.36

(@) During the period the Company recognised an amount of ¥7.73 Crores (2019-20: ¥8.18 Crores ) as remuneration to Key
Managerial Personnel. The details of such remuneration is as below:

(in crore)
Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
(a) Short -term employees Benefits 7.28 7.53
(b) Post- employment benefits 045 0.65
Total 7.73 8.18
(b) For descriptive notes on disclosure of defined benefit obligation refer note 42.
% in Crores)
Particulars Fortheyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Interest Expense
- On Borrowings 4364 60.90
- Interest Expenses for lease liability 0.19 -
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs 0.24 342
Other Borrowing Costs 18.39 21.57
Total 62.46 85.89
Annual Report 2020-21 | 185




SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

for the period ended 31st March 2021

R in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Depreciation 298.97 29522
Depreciation on Right of use assets 1.18 1.09
Amortisation 0.21 039
Total 300.36 296.68
R in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Rent 2755 31.63
Rates and taxes 93.14 77.86
Power, fuel and electricity 252.17 247.14
Consumption of stores and spares parts 292.03 286.08
Repairs

Building 2.78 895

Machinery 10.39 16.09

Others 562 8.76
Insurance 5.86 427
Brokerage and commission on sales 13.34 17.00
Advertisement and publicity expenses 10.18 6.99
Legal and professional 8.04 1242
Charity and donations - 0.12
Labour charges 84.94 7030
Freight and Forwarding expenses 64.63 16.51
Payment to auditor 0.35 0.31
Corporate Social Responsibility 13.96 6.67
"Loss on sale of Investments measured at fair value = 0.29
through Profit and Loss(Net)"
Loss on Forward Contracts(Net) (8.08) 1.42
Allowances for credit losses (3.45) 252
Sundry Balances written off 748 -
Irrecoverable Debts, Claims and Advances Written Off (11.61) (4.64)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation loss (net of gain) (29.96) 1343
Miscellaneous expenses 4250 39.80
Total 881.83 863.92
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(F in crore)

Particulars For theyearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

i) Current tax
Current tax 266.56 5745
Total 266.56 5745
i) Deferred tax
Deferred tax (Liability Reversal) (56.32) (76.46)
Less: MAT Credit (1.16) (25.85)
Total (55.16) (50.61)

The Company’s Earnings Per Share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit / (loss) attributable to the shareholders of the
company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent
shares outstanding during that particular year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the year 843.36 340.24
Nominal value of equity shares () 10.00 10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & Diluted EPS 233,610,100 233,610,100
Basic & Diluted earnings per share () 36.10 1456

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Useful Life

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. Significant judgments and estimates relating to the
carrying values of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions,
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

Fair value measurement of inancial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
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values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of non-inancial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

R in crore)
Particulars Fortheyearended  Forthe year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(a) Capital commitmenits

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 315.63 17747
not provided for (net of advances)

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements
for the period ended 31st March 2021
(X in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 0.61 9.42 054 8.03
Total 061 942 0.54 803

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is
the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied with the number of
years of service.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligations at the end of the reporting period is 7.02 years (31st
March 2020 - 5.59 years)

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the year are as
follows:

Particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(b) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

Excise Duty 111.81 111.98

Service Tax 0.39 0.14

Customs Duty 469 493

Sales Tax/VAT 2434 2434

ESI 0.14 0.01

Other money for which the company is contingently liable:

Unredeemed bank guarantees on behalf of the joint venture company 94.76 200

Other unredeemed bank guarantees 4761 4154

Bills discounted with banks 106.37 19.55

Total 390.11 204.49

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings , it is not practicale for the company to estimate the timing of cash
outflows, if any in respect of the above as it is determindable only in receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various
forums/authorities

(i) Based on discussion with the solicitors / favourable decisions in similar cases / legal opinion taken by the Company, the

management believes that the Company has good chance of success in above mentioned cases and hence no provision there
against is considered necessary.
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Changes in deined beneit obligation (X in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 858 6.32
Interest cost 0.60 046
Current service cost 1.84 1.69
Benefits paid (0.31) (0.54)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations (0.68) 0.65
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 10.03 8.58
Breakup of actuarial gain/loss: (X in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumption 0.15 0.77
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustment (0.81) (0.13)
Reconciliation of present value of deined beneit obligation and the fair value of plan assets (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 10.03 8.58
Net asset recognized in balance sheet (10.03) (8.58)
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss (Zin crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current service cost 1.84 1.69
Interest cost 0.60 046
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss 244 2.15
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Amount recognized in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (Tincrore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Actuarial gain/(loss) for the year on planned benefit obligations (0.68) 065
Actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year (0.68) 0.65
Actuarial assumptions (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Discount rate 6.90% p.a. 7.70% p.a
Future salary increase 5.50% p.a. 5.50% p.a.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors
are determined close to each year end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms
of maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical

experience.
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability in crore)
Particulars As at As at

37st March 2021 31st March 2020
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 10.03 8.58
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 9.12 849
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 11.09 8.66
Impact of Change in Withdrawal Rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 10.03 858
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 10.07 420
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 9.98 413
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 10.03 858
a) Impact due to increase of 1.00 % 11.12 8.66
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 9.08 8.49
Leave
Changes in defined benefit obligation & in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 0.21 0.15
Interest cost 0.02 0.01
Current service cost 0.39 0.07
Past Service Cost 0.66 -
Benefits paid (0.09) (0.06)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligations 0.09 0.04
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 1.28 0.21
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Reconciliation of present value of deined beneit obligation and the fair value of plan assets (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 1.28 0.21
Net asset recognized in balance sheet 1.28 0.21
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss (X incrore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current service cost 0.39 0.07
Past Service Cost 0.66 -
Interest cost 0.02 0.01
Expected return on plan assets . -
Amount recognized in the statement of proit and loss 1.06 0.08
Actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Discount rate 6.90% p.a. 7.00%
Disability rate 5% of Mortality rate 5% of Mortality rate
Retirement Age 58Years 58 Years
Future salary increase 5.50% p.a. 6% p.a

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors
are determined close to each year end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms
of maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical

experience.

(®in crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 Total

FVTPL FvVod Amortised Total FVTPL Fvod Amortised
cost Cost

Financial Assets
Investment in equity instruments 0.15 5882 - 5896 0.15 56.80 - 56.95
Investment in mutual funds 195.76 - - 195.76 60.39 - 6039
Investment in Bonds/Debenture 9.85 - 496 1481 9.75 - 490 1465
Investment in government securities - - 010 0.10 - - 0.10 0.10
Trade receivables - - 53354 53354 - - 159.02 159.02
Loans - - 16.18 16.18 - - 419 419
Security deposit - - 1546 1546 - - 1710 1710
Cash and cash equivalents - - 16384 163.84 - 29.70 29.70
Other financial asset - - 74.65 7465 - - 60.85 60.85
Margin money - - 196.96 196.96 - - 12050 12050
Total 205.76 5882 1,005.69 1,270.26 70.29 56.80 39635 52345
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(Xin crore)
Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 Total
FVTPL FVodl Amortised Total FVTPL Fvodl Amortised
cost cost

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 78943 78943 - - 1,107.96 1,107.96
Trade payable - - 367.06 367.06 - - 582.78 582.78
Security deposit = = 9.73 9.73 - - 19.88 19.88
QOther financial liabilities - - 59.30 59.30 - - 96.51 96.51
Total - - 1,22552 1,22552 - - 1807.12 1807.12
(a) Fair value hierarchy X in crore)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurement
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Financial Assets

Financial investments at FVOCI

Unquoted equity instruments 58.82 56.80
Financial investments at FVTPL

Mutual Fund 195.76 60.39
Total 25458 117.19

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Mutual funds 195.76 - - 60.39 - -
Bonds - 496 - - 4.90 -
Unquoted equity instruments - 58.96 - - 56.95 -
Investment in Government Securities 0.10 0.10
Total 195.76 64.03 - 60.39 61.95 -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - 78943 - 1,107.96
Total - - 78943 - - 1,107.96

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments,
mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued
using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.
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(b) Fair value of inancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and FVTOC! R in crore)

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial Assets

Carried at FVOC!

Investments in equity instruments 58.96 58.96 56.95 56.95

Carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables 533.54 53354 159.02 159.02

Loans 16.18 16.18 419 419

Security deposit 1546 1546 17.10 17.10

Cash and cash equivalents 163.84 163.84 29.70 29.70

Other financial asset 7465 7465 60.85 60.85

Margin money 196.96 196.96 120.50 120.50

Investment in Bonds 14.81 14.81 14.65 14.65

Investment in Government Securities 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Carried at FVTPL

Investments in mutual funds 195.76 195.76 60.39 60.39

Total 1,270.26 1,270.26 523.45 52345

(in crore)

Description As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial Liabilities

Carried at amortised cost

Borrowings 78943 78943 1,107.96 1,107.96

Trade payable 367.06 367.06 582.78 582.78

Security deposit 9.73 9.73 19.88 19.88

Other financial liabilities 59.30 59.30 96.51 96.51

Total 1,225.52 1,225.52 1,807.12 1,807.12

(€) Fair value measurements

(i) Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their fair value.

(i) Derivatives are fair valued using market observable rates and published prices together with forecasted cash flow

information where applicable.

(i) Investments carried at fair value are generally based on market price quotations. Costs of unquoted equity instruments
has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value measurements
and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

(iv) Fair value of borrowings which have a quoted market price in an active market is based on its market price which is
categorized as level 1. Fair value of borrowings which do not have an active market or are unquoted is estimated by
discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return adjusted for
credit spread considered by lenders for instruments of similar maturities which is categorized as level 2 in the fair value

hierarchy.

Annual Report 2020-21 |

193



SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

for the period ended 31st March 2021

(v) Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates
presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realised or paid in sale
transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

(vi) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the period ended March 2021 and period ended March
2020.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s financial
assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are
summarised as below:

(A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings in foreign currencies.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company is carrying its
borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company

is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates. @ in crore)
As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Variable rate borrowings 47196 965.58
Fixed rate borrowings 31746 14237

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variable held constant, the Company'’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected through the impact
on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2021: 50 bps) (2.36) (4.83)
Decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2021 50 bps) 2.36 483
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b) Foreign currency risks

The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR). The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies; conseguently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates affects the Company’s revenue
from export markets and the costs of imports, primarily in relation to raw materials. The Company is exposed to exchange rate
risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result’s in increase in the

Company’s overall debt position in Rupee terms without the Company having incurred additional debt and favorable movements
in the exchange rates will conversely result in reduction in the Company’s receivables in foreign currency.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (% in crore)
Nature of ltem Currency As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
ValueInForeign ~ ValueInINR  ValuelnForeign  ValueInINR
Currency Currency

Buyer’s Credit UsD (%) - - 0.03 259
Creditors UsD (%) 149 108.87 279 21004
Supplier's Credit UsD (5) 067 4901 - -
Supplier's Credit EURO 0.07 6.39 - -
Debtors UsD (%) 507 33140 027 2041
Debtors EURO 001 115 - -
Term Loan UsD (5) 0.06 406 0.79 5949
Term Loan EURO 1.38 11907 - -
Working Capital Demand Loan / Packing Credit UsD (%) 294 21593 - -
Interest Accrued but not due EURO 000 0.02 - -
Interest Accrued but not due usD (%) 000 0.07 - -

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities. in crore)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
USD Sensitivity
Increase by 5% (31st March 2021 - 5%) (2.33) 0.17)
Decrease by 5% (31st Mar 2021 - 5%) 233 0.17
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
EURO Sensitivity
Increase by 5% (31st March 2020 - 5%) (6.22) -
Decrease by 5% (31st March 2020 - 5%) 6.22 -
B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual
terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness
as well as concentration risks. The Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Financial instruments that

Annual Report 2020-21 | 195



SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

for the period ended 31st March 2021

are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, investments, cash
and cash equivalents, derivatives and financial guarantees provided by the Company. None of the financial instruments of the
Company result in material concentration of credit risk.

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was ¥ 1270.49
Crores and ¥523.67 Crores as at March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivables,
balances with bank, bank deposits, investments in debt securities and other financial assets.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management
is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company monitors its
risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access
to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company
has access to funds from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures and other debt
instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk.

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in
accordance with the assessment both in terms of number of days and amount. Any Credit risk is curtailed with arrangements
with third parties .

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number
of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Company does
not hold collateral as security.

(i) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties . The Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is the carrying amount
as illustrated in Note 43.

(Q) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management
is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.The Company monitors its risk
of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company
has access to funds from debt markets through commercial paper programs, non-convertible debentures and other debt
instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk.

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain
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a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank
loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The
Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with
existing lenders.The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments -

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments -

Particulars Uptolyear 1to2years 3to5years Morethan Total

5 years
Period ended 31st March 2021
Contractual maturities of borrowings 669.56 19.12 57.06 43.68 78942
Contractual maturities of trade payables 367.06 - - - 367.06
Particulars Uptolyear 1to2years 3to5years More than Total

5 years
Period ended 31st March 2020
Contractual maturities of borrowings 814.69 47.70 140.18 156.21 1,158.77
Contractual maturities of trade payables 582.78 - - - 582.78

Company as a Lessee

The Company has lease contracts for land and buildings used in its operations. For Buildings the lease term generally varies
between 2 to 5 years and for land it can extend upto 90 years.The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased assets.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movement during the period:

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Initial recognition on adoption of Ind AS 116
Reclassified from Leasehold Land to ROU asset on adoption of Ind AS 116

Opening balance 43.16 4030
Addition during the year

Leasehold Land = 063
Leasehold Building 0.71 333
Depreciation Expense

Leasehold Land 045 0.64
Leasehold Building 0.73 045
Closing balance 4269 43.16
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year: & in crore)
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Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Opening Balance 6.38 277
Addition during the year 0.71 396
Add: Finance Cost 037 038
Less: Rent 0.87 073
6.59 6.38

The Company has not applied Ind As 116 on low value assets and short term leases.

The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity.

Due to the lockdown announced by the Government, the Company’s operations were suspended/slowed down during the
lockdown period. The operations and economic activities have gradually resumed with requisite precautions and expected to
return to normalcy in due course of time.

The Company has taken into account the possible impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the financial results, including its
assessment of its liquidity position and recoverable value of its assets based on internal and external information up to the date
of approval of these financial results and current indicators of future economic conditions.

The Company will continue to closely observe the evolving scenario and take into account any future developments arising out
of the same.

31st March 2020
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited

Particulars 31st March 2021
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited

Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited

Kalinga Infra Projects Limited (w.ef 19.8.19) Kalinga Infra Projects Limited (w.ef19.8.19)

Shyam Sel and Power Limited Shyam Sel and Power Limited
Shyam Ores (Jharkhand) Private Limited

Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private Limited  Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private Limited
(wef 11-04-2019) (wef 11-04-2019)

Shyam Energy Limited Shyam Energy Limited

Step-down Subsidiary Company

Taurus Estates Private Limited Taurus Estates Private Limited

Whispering Developers Private Limited Whispering Developers Private Limited

Meadow Housing Private Limited Meadow Housing Private Limited
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Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Nirjhar Commercials Pvt. Ltd. (6-9-19) Nirjhar Commercials Pvt. Ltd. (6-9-19)

Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Private Limited (28-6-19)  Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Private Limited (28-6-19)
Associates Meghana Vyapar Private Limited Meghana Vyapar Private Limited

Kecons Tradecare Private Limited Kecons Tradecare Private Limited

Kolhan Complex Private Limited Kolhan Complex Private Limited
JointVenture MJSJ Coal Limited MJSJ Coal Limited

Kalinga Energy Private Limited

Kalinga Energy Private Limited

Enterprises over which Key
Management Personnel (KMP) are
able to exercise control /signiicant
inluence with whom there were
transactions/ balance during the
year:

Platinum Minmet Private Limited

Platinum Minmet Private Limited

Dorite Tracon Private Limited

Dorite Tracon Private Limited

Shyam Sclar Appliance Private Limited

Shyam Solar Appliance Private Limited

Narantak Dealcomm Limited

Narantak Dealcomm Limited

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited

Shyam Ferro Alloys Limited

Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited

Swarnrekha Abasan Private Limited

Shyam Emco Infrastructure Limited

Shyam Emco Infrastructure Limited

Sunglow Complex Private Limited

Sunglow Complex Private Limited

Subham Capital Private Limited

Subham Capital Private Limited

Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF

Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF

Toplight Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd.

Toplight Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd.

Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Private Limited

Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Private Limited

Subham Capital Private Limited

Subham Capital Private Limited

Subhlabh Commercials Private Limited

Subhlabh Commercials Private Limited

Britasia Hydro Power Private Limited

Britasia Hydro Power Private Limited

Essel Plywood Private Limited

Essel Plywood Private Limited

Shyam Century Multiprojects Private Limited

Shyam Century Multiprojects Private Limited

Shyam Greenfield Developers Private Limited

Shyam Greenfield Developers Private Limited

Sindbad Hydro Power Limited

Sindbad Hydro Power Limited

S.S. Natural Resources Private Limited

S.S. Natural Resources Private Limited

Improved Realtors Private Limited

Elysian Beautification Private Limited

Improved Realtors Private Limited

Key Management Personnel:

Shri Brij Bhushan Agarwal (Managing Director cum
vice Chairman)

Shri Brij Bhushan Agarwal (Managing Director cum
vice Chairman)

Shri Sanjay Kumar Agarwal (Joint Managing Director)

Shri Sanjay Kumar Agarwal (Joint Managing Director)

Shri Bhagwan Shaw (Director)

Shri Bhagwan Shaw (Director)

Shri Dev Kumar Tiwari (Director)

Shri Dev Kumar Tiwari (Director)

Shri Deepak Kumar Agarwal (Director)

Shri Deepak Kumar Agarwal (Director)

Shri Birendra Kumar Jain(Company Secretary)

Shri Birendra Kumar Jain(Company Secretary)

Shrri Shree Kumar Dujari (Chief Financial Officer)

Shri Shree Kumar Dujari (Chief Financial Officer)

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal (Director)

Mahabir Prasad Agarwal (Director)

Shri Venkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji (Director)

ShriVenkata Krishna Nageswara Rao Majji (Director)

Shri Ashok Kumar Jaiswal (Director)

Shri Ashok Kumar Jaiswal (Director)
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Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020 Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
Shri Yudhvir Singh Jain (Director) Shri Yudhvir Singh Jain (Director) and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
Kishan Gopal Baldwa (Director) Kishan Gopal Baldwa (Director) their relat|v$nsﬂr;ae\:rcse|gnncant
Ajay Choudhury (Director) Ajay Choudhury (Director) For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
Kiran Vimal Agarwal (Director) (w.e.f. 05.03.2020) Kiran Vimal Agarwal (Director) (w.e.f. 05.03.2020) 31032021 31032020 31032021 31032020 31032021 31032020
Rajni Mishra (Additional Director) (w.ef. 12.02.2021) 1. Sale of Goods ] ] -
Relatives to Key Management Relative's Name - Relation Relative's Name - Relation Shyam Sel and Power Limited 122.92 7159 . 122.92 7159
Personnel: Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal- Wife of Shri Mahabir Mrs. Sumitra Devi Agarwal- Wife of Shri Mahabir Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 448 10.11 - 448 1011
Prasad Agarwal Prasad Agarwal Private Limited (w.ef. 11.04.2019)
Mrs. Mittu Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Brij Bhushan Mrs. Mittu Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Brij Bhushan Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 17.71 2394 17.71 2394
Agarwal Agarwal 2. Commission (Expense)
Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - Sister of Mr. Brij Bhusan Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal - Sister of Mr. Brij Bhusan Meghana Viyaapar Private Limited 186 8 1.86
Agarwal Agarwal 3. Purchase of Licence
Mrs. Anita Jhunjhunwala - Daughter of Mr. Mahabir  Mrs. Anita Jhunjhunwala - Daughter of Mr. Mahabir Shyam Sel and Power Limited 0.15 367 0.15 367
Prasad Agarwal Prasad Agarwal 4. Sale of Licence
Mrs. Bina Devi Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Bajrang Lal Mrs. Bina Devi Agarwal - Wife of Mr, Bajrang Lal Shyam Sel and Power Limited 021 021
Agarwall . . Agarwall . . 5.0ffice Maintenance (Expense})
,,Z\A(_;Z:\Z?Ja Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Sanjay Kumar ’I;/lgr:rs\zﬁja Agarwal - Wife of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Improved Realtors Py, Ltd, 0.04 004
= - 6. Purchase of Goods
,,Z\A(_;a Srcvtg?ham Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhusan Xga Srcvti?ham Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij Bhusan Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd, 082 03 084 03
Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal - Father of Mr. Sanjay Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal - Father of Mr. Sanjay Snyam Sel and Power Limited . 1488 6049 188 0049
Kumar Agarwal Kumar Agarwal Hr.ashva stgrage and Warehousing 003 - 003
: = - — Private Limited (wef. 11.04.2019)
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - Father of Mr. Brij Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal - Father of Mr. Brij Shyam Solar Appliance PV Ltd. 1876 717 1876 517
Bhushan Agarwal Bhushan Agarwal = -
Mr. Sheetij Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij bhushan Mr. Sheetij Agarwal - Son of Mr. Brij bhushan 7. Dividend Received —
Agarwal Agarwel Shyam Sel and Power Limited 4413 4413
8. Dividend Paid
Disclosure of Related Par.ty Transactions provides info.rmatio.n about the Cc?mpany's structure. The fF)IIowing tables provide the Narantak Dealcomnm Limited 1000 1000
total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal 000 000
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: Brij Bhushan Agarwal 431 431
The sales and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Mittu Agarwal 021 021
Outstanding balance at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the period ended March KirandeviVimal Agrawal 0.01 0.01 -
31,2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March Sangeeta Agarwal 001 0.01 -
31,2021.: NIL). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party Brij Bhusan Agarwal & Sons HUF 042 042 -
and the market in which the related party operates. Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. 1343 1343 -
Toplight Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd. 0.13 0.13 -
Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Pvt. Ltd. 411 411 -
Anita Jhunjhunwala 001 0.01 -
Bajrang Lal Agarwal 000 000 -
Sanjay Agarwal 0.0 001 -
Subham Capital Private Limited 7.77 7.77 -
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited 281 281 -
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Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and JointVenture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
9. Rent Received (Net of TDS)
Narantak Dealcomm Ltd. 0.04 004 -
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private 001 001 -
Limited
Subham Capital Pvt. Ltd. 0.05 0.05 -
10. Rent Paid (Net of TDS)
Toplight Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. 0.06 0.06 -
Improved Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 002 006 0.02 0.06
Hrashva Storage & Warehousing 003 003 003 003
Private Limited
11. Remuneration to KMP
Mr. Brij Bhusan Agarwal ° - 413 431 413 431
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal = - 083 086 083 086
Mr. Bajrang Lal Agarwal - - 060 060 0.60 060
Mr. Mahabir Prasad Agarwal ° - 060 060 060 060
Mr. Bikram Munka - - 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18
Mr. Susmit Changia - - 017 017 0.17 017
Mr. Raj Prakash Verma - - 0.04 0.04 0.04 004
Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari = - 0.18 0.17 0.18 017
Mr. Bhagwan Shaw - - 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.06
Mr. Birendra Kumar Jain - - 0.12 013 0.12 0.13
Mr. Shree Kumar Dujari = - 024 025 0.24 025
Mr. Deepak Kumar Agarwal - - 035 036 035 036
12, Purchase of Investments
Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Private - 001 - - - 001
Limited
Dorite Tracon Pyt Ltd - - - 314 - 3.14
Kolhan Complex Private Limited = 000 = - = 000
Meghana Vyapaar Private Limited - 0.02 - - - 0.02
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - = 3.66 = 366
Shyam Solar Appliance Private Limited - - - 000 - 000
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private - 001 - - = 001
Limited
Shyam Greenfield Developers Private - - - 001 = 001
Limited
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited - 000 - - - 0.00
Subham Capital Private Limited - - - 008 - 008
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited - 0.05 - - - 005

202 | Annual Report 2020-21

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

for the period ended 31st March 2021

Financial Statements

Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
13. Sale of Investments
Nirjhar Commaodities Private Limited = 0.00 = - ° 0.00
Shyam Sel and Power Limited = 0.00 = - = 0.00
14. Advances Given/Refunded
Shyam Sel and Power Limited 498,54 89.82 - 49854 89.82
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited 18.39 533 - 1839 533
(wef198.19)
Damodar Aluminum Pvt Ltd 0.00 404 - 0.00 404
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 4394 61.86 - 4394 61.86
Private Limited (w.ef. 11.04.2019)
Shyam Ores (Jharkhand) Private 0.12 65.07 - 0.12 65.07
Limited
Britasia Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. - 0.02 - 0.02 -
Shyam Century Multiprojects Private - 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Limited
Dorite Tracon Pvt Ltd - 34.17 - 3417 -
Meadow Housing Private Limited 0.00 - - 0.00 -
Renaissance Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. 000 - - 0.00 -
Kalpataru House Fin & Trading Pvt Ltd - 200 - 2.00 -
Essel Plywood Pvt Ltd - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Kalpataru Housefin &Trading Pvt Ltd - 254 - 2.54
Shyam Energy Limited 263 267 - 263 267
Kolhan Complex Pvt. Ltd. 037 - - 0.37 -
Meghana Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd. 17.83 11.06 - 17.83 11.06
Narantak Dealcomm Ltd. - 7823 - 7823 -
Nirjhar commodities Pvt. Ltd 0.00 - - 0.00 -
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. - 04 - 041 -
Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 21.12 0.01 2112 001
Whispering Developers Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Shyam Solar Appliance Pvt. Ltd. - 2027 - 2027 -
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private 0.02 - - 002 -
Limited
Sindbad Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. - 3268 - 3268 -
Subham Capital Pvt. Ltd. - 73.89 - 7389 -
Suhag Overseas Trading Pvt. Ltd. - 1.05 - 1.05 -
Taurus Estate Pvt. Ltd. 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
Toplight Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. - 860 - 8.60 -
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd 003 - 003 -
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Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and Joint Venture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Shyam Emco Infrastructure Limited - 335 - 335
17. Loans Repaid
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - 4993 75.60 4993 75.60
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 6.02 - 6.02 -
Subham Capital Private Limited 1131 64.50 1131 64.50
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited = - 940 36.19 940 36.19
Shyam Emco Infrastructure Limited 335 = 335
18. Loans Given
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd - - 2.50 - 250 -
19. Interest on Loan Taken
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - - 173 - 173 -
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 0.27 0.27 -
Subham Capital Private Limited 041 - 041 -
Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd 0.03 0.03 -
Toplight Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. (0.09) (0.09) -
Dorite Tracon Private.Limited ° - 048 - 048 -
20. Balances outstanding on
account of Receivables/(Payable)
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited 0.10 0.10 - 0.10 0.10
Shyam Sel and Power Limited (46.00) - - (46.00)
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private - 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Limited
Kalinga Infra-Projects Ltd. - 139 - 1.39 -
Shyam Ores (Jharkhand) Private 1649 793 - 793 1649
Limited ( Upto 18.06.2020)
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. - 500 - 500
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing (0.00) 89.03 - (0.00) 89.03
Private Limited (w.ef 11.04.2019)
Meadow Housing Private Limited 0.29 029 - 0.29 0.29
Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 240 (20.35) 240 (20.35)
Shyam Energy Limited 0.05 002 - 0.05 0.02
Shyam Solar Appliances Pvt. Ltd. - 051 - 0.51 -
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd - 0.27 - 0.27 -
Narantak Dealcomm Limited - (0.01) (0.01) {0.01) (0.01)
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited (1.65) - (1.65)

Type of Tranactions Subsidiary, Associates Enterprises over which Key TOTAL
and JointVenture Management Personnel and / or
their relatives have signiicant
influence
For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
15. Advances Received back/taken
Shyam Sel and Power Limited 53063 7964 - 530.63 79.64
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 136.71 199 - 136.71 199
Private Limited (w.ef 11.04.2019).
Britasia Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. - 0.02 0.00 0.02 0.00
Dorite Tracon Pvt Ltd - 3397 - 3397 -
Damodar Aluminum Pvt Ltd 0.00 403 - 0.00 403
Essel Plywood Pvt Ltd - 0.00 2213 0.00 2213
Kalinga Energy & Power Ltd. - 199 - 199
Kalinga Infra-Projects Ltd. 13.80 457 - 13.80 457
Kalpataru HouseFin & Trading Pvt. Ltd. - 200 2.54 2.00 2.54
Kolhan Complex Pvt. Ltd. - 037 - 037 -
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private 0.02 002 -
Limited
Meghana Vyapaar Pvt. Ltd. 1.00 11.05 - 1.00 11.05
Narantak Dealcomm Ltd. - 7744 - 7744 -
Shyam Greenfield Developers Private - 001 = 0.01
Limited;
Nirjhar commodities Pvt. Ltd 0.00 0.00 -
Shyam Energy Limited 260 265 - 260 265
Renaissance Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. 0.00 0.00 -
S S Natural Resources Pvt. Ltd. - 041 230.76 041 230.76
Shyam Ores (Jharkhand) Private 49,03 868 - 868 49.03
Limited
Shyam Century Multi Projects Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Shyam Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 35.24 - 35.24 -
Shyam Greenfield Developer Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00 - 0.00 -
Shyam Solar Appliance Pvt. Ltd. - 1.00 - 1.00 -
Sindbad Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subham Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. - 32,65 - 32.65 -
Subham Capital Pvt. Ltd. - 73.94 - 73.94 -
Suhag Overseas Trading Pvt. Ltd. - 1.05 1.11 1.05 1.1
Taurus Estate Pvt. Ltd. 000 - - 0.00 -
Toplight Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. - 853 - 853 -
Whispering Developers Pvt. Ltd. - 000 - 0.00 -
Elysian Beautification Pvt Ltd - 0.01 - 001 -
16. Loans Received
Narantak Dealcomm Limited = - 49.11 7560 49.11 7560
Dorite Tracon Private Limited 5 - 9.13 36.19 9.13 36.19
Meghana Vyaapar Private Limited 6.00 - 6.00 -
Subham Capital Private Limited 11.00 64.50 11.00 64.50
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The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and
short term goals of the Company. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan
coupled with long term and short term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity,
cash generated from operations, long term and short term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible debt securities. The
Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio
of the Company.
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(®in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Borrowings (Note - 19, 24 and 26) 78943 1,107.96
Trade payables (Note-25) 367.06 582.78
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note-11) 163.84 29.70
Less: Current investments (Note - 9) 215.24 71.59
Net debt 77741 1,589.45
Equity 23361 23361
Other Equity 3,40044 259284

3,634.05 2,826.45
Capital and net debt 46746 177.83
Gearing ratio 17.62% 35.99%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended March 31,2021.

and years ended March 31, 2020.

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Statutory Audit Fees 0.26 0.25
Tax Audit Fees 0.05 0.02
Fees for Other Services 0.04 0.04
Total 035 0.31

& in Crores)

Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)
Travelling expenses 0.00 0.15
Demurrage Charges on Import of Raw Materials 2.98 433
Raw Materials 31742 27754
Interest on Loan 226 1.16
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
ii) Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)
Exports (FO.B. value) 806.48 421114

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate

of at 34.94% and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows :-
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Accounting profit before income tax 1,054.96 295.37
Enacted tax rate in India 34.94% 34.94%
Computed expected tax expenses 368.65 103.21
Tax holidays (247.05) (158.30)
Income exempted from tax (44.13) (0.06)
Other Adjustments 133.93 10.28
Income Tax recognised in Proit and Loss account 21140 (44.87)

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules and Regulations thereof is

treated as an appropriation of profit.

For The Year Ended 31st March 2021

(% in Crores)

Particulars Amount In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period - 10.78
Amount Spent during the year towards activities specified 13.96 13.96 - 13.96
i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above 13.96 13.96 - 13.96
For The Year Ended 31st March 2020 % in Crores)
Particulars Amount In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period - 894
Amount Spent during the year towards activities specified 6.67 6.67 - 6.67
i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - - - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above 6.67 6.67 - 6.67

Particulars

Raw Materials

& in Crores)

As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

31742 520.24

As per Ind AS 108 “operating segments”, specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is predominantly

engaged in a single reportable segment of Iron and Steel.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable

losses.
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There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Figures of previous years have been regrouped / rearranged / rectified wherever necessary to make them comparable

with the current periods figures.

for the period ended 31st March 2021

List of Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as under:

Name of Companies Country of Incorporation 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Subsidiary

Shyam Sel and Power Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited India 54.15% 54.15%
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private Limited India 91.45% 91.45%
Shyam Ores (Jharkand) Private Limited India 0.00% 100.00%
Renaissance Hydro Power Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited India 90.00% 90.00%
Step Down Subsidiary

Whispering Developers Private Limited India 67.57% 67.57%
Taurus Estates Private Limited India 89.29% 89.29%
Shyam Energy Limited India 86.46% 86.46%
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Meadows Housing Private Limited India 99.05% 99.05%
Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Pvt Ltd India 100.00% 100.00%
Nirjhar Commodities Pvt Ltd India 58.00% 58.00%
Associate

Meghana Vyapaar Private Limited India 3351% 3351%
Kecons Tradecare Private Limited India 47.32% 47.32%
Kolhan Complex Private Limited India 49.88% 49.88%
Joint Venture

MJSJ Coal Limited India 9% 9%
Kalinga Energy and Power Limited India 50% 50%
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for the period ended 31st March 2021

(X in crore)
Name of the entity in the group 31st March 2021
Net Assets ie. total assets Share in proit and loss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comprehensive
minus Liabilities income
As % of (Amount in As % of (Amountin As% of (Amount As % of (Amount in
Consolidated ~ Rs.Crores) ~ Consolidated  Rs. Crores) Consolidated  in Rs. Crores) Consolidated Total ~ Rs. Crores)
Net Assets Proit & Loss Other Comprehensive
Comprehensive Income
Income

Parent
Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited 37.84% 137668 4901% 43888 68.04% 350 49.11% 44238
Subsidiaries
Shyam Sel & power Limited 60.03% 2,184.05 49.74% 44543 32% 164 49.64% 44707
Damodar Aluminium Private Limited 0.06% 211 0.00% (0.00) - - 0.00% (0.00)
Singhbhum Steel & Power Private 0.07% 263 0.00% (0.01) - - 0.00% (0.01)
Limited
Rennaisance Hydropower Private 0.00% (0.02) 0.00% (0.02) - - 0.00% (0.02)
Limited
Kalinga Infra Projects Limited 0.09% 314 031% 276 - - 031% 276
Step down subsidiaries - - - - - -
Whispering Developers Private 0.02% 072 0.00% - - - 0.00%
Limited
Taurus Estates Private Limited 0.02% 082 0.00% - - - 0.00% -
Shyam Energy Limited 0.52% 19.08 0.00% (0.04) - - 0.00% (0.04)
Meadow Housing Private Limited 0.03% 1.02 0.00% = = = 0.00% =
Hrashva Storage and Warehousing 0.06% 218 0.06% 052 = = 0.06% 052
Private Limited
Shree Sikhar Iron & Steel Pvt Ltd 0.11% 396 0.00% (0.03) - - 0.00% (0.03)
Nirjhar Commodities Pvt Ltd 0.00% (0.16) 0.00% (0.01) - - 0.00% (0.01)
Non controlling Interest in all 0.12% 435 020 - ° 0.02% 020
Subsidiaries
Associates - -
Kecons Tradecare Private Limited 0.58% 2113 0.02% 021 - - 0.02% 021
Meghana Vyapar Private Limited 0.38% 1368 0.86% 771 - - 0.86% 771
Kolhan Complex Private Limited 0.11% 382 0.00% ° ° ° 0.00%
Joint Venture 0.00% 7
Kalinga Energy & power Itd -002% {0.78) 0.00% (0.02) - - 0.00% (0.02)
Total 100% 363839 100% 895,57 100% 5.15 100% 90071

As per our report of even date attached

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accou

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 306033E

Partner
Membership No: 301571

Place : Kolkata
Date : 8th July 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

VC & Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN 01125056 DIN 00560010
Shree Kumar Dujari Birendra Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
A8305
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Shyam Metalics And
Energy Limited will be held on Satur day, 18th September, 2021, at2.00 P.M,, through Video Conferencing / Other
Audio- Visual Means in conformity with the regulatory provisions and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, to transact the following business:

210

iy

2)

3)

4)

5)

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial S tatement s of the Company for the Financial Y ear ended 31st
March, 2021, including Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on that date
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To declare Final Dividend @27% (Rs 2.70/- per Share) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal ( DIN: 00232938) who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 02423511) who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditor for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that, in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of M/s Abhimanyu Nayak & Associates,
Cost Accountants, Kolkata, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost Auditors to
conduct audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, be paid remuneration to be
fixed by the Board at the recommendation of the Audit Committee.”

By Order of the Board

Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited
SD/-

Birendra Kumar Jain

Company Secretary

Place Kolkata
Dated: 08t July, 2021.
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In view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the need for ensuring social distancing, the Government of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) allowed conducting Annual General Meeting through video
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (QOAVM) without the physical presence of Members at a
common venue. Accordingly, MCA issued Circular No. 14/2021 dated April 08,2021, Circular No. 17/2021
dated April 13, 2021, Circular No. 20/2021 dated May 052021 (“MCA Circulars”), prescribing the
procedures and manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM. MCA vide its
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 extended the time line for holding of Annual General
Meetings through VC/OAVM till December 31, 2021. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") also
vide its Circular dated May 12021 , permitted holding of Annual General Meetings through VC/OAVM
which was further extended by its circular datgd anuary 15, 2021 (“SEBI Circulars”) till December 31,
2021. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, MCA Circulars and
applicable provisions of the SEBI Circulars, the 19th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members will be
held through VC/ OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only.

b) Since this AGM will be held through Video Conferencing (‘VC') / other Audio-Visual means

d)

g)

(‘0OAVM"),
Members will not be able to appoint proxies for the meeting, and (b) Attendance Slip & Route Map are not
being annexed to this Notice.

No attendance slip/route maphas been sent along with this Notice of the Meeting as the meeting is held
through VC/OAVM.

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors
etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

Members attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purposes of reckoning of Quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has designated an exclusive e-mail id viz. compliance@shyammetalics.com to enable
Investors to register their complaints, if any.

Pursuant to the Income-tax Act, 1961, as amended, dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Members
with effect from 1st April, 2021 and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from such dividend at
theprescribed rates. A communication providing information and detailed instructions with respect to tax
on the Final Dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is being sent separately to the Members.

Resident Shareholders: For Resident Shareholders, who have provided PAN, tax shall be deducted at source
under Section 194 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 at 10% on the amount of dividend.

Tax shall be deducted at source at 20% wherein-

(a) Shareholders do not have PAN / have not registered their valid PAN details in their account/ with the
Company/NSDL),

(b) Shareholders are classified as specified persons under section 206AB.

No tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual if the total dividend to be received

by the resident Shareholders during Financial Year 2021-22 does not exceed R 5,000. In cases where the
Shareholder provides Form 15G / Form 15H and meets all the required eligibility conditions, no tax will be
deducted at source. Apart from above cases, following categories of Shareholders are exempt from tax
deduction at source:

(a) Life Insurance Corporation of India [clause (a} to 2nd proviso to section 194]

(b) General Insurance Corporation of India/ The New India Assurance Company Ltd / United India
Insurance Company Ltd / The Oriental Insurance Company Ltd / National Insurance Company Ltd [clause
(b) to 2nd proviso to section 194]
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(c) Any other Insurer in respect of any shares owned by it or in which it has full beneficial interest [clause
(c) to 2nd proviso to section 194]

(d) Dividend income credited/paid to a “business trust”, as defined in clause (13A) of section 2, by a special
purpose vehicle referred to in the Explanation to clause (23FC) of section 10; [clause (d) to 2nd proviso to
section 194]

The following payees are also not subject to TDS in view of the provisions of sections 196, 197A of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and CBDT notification:

(a) Government [section 196(i)]

(b) Reserve Bank of India [section 196(ii)]

(c) a corporationest ablished by or under a Central Act which is, under any law for the time being in force,
exempt from income-tax on its income [section 196(iii)]

(d) Mutual Fund [section 196(iv]]

(e) any person for, or on behalf of, the New Pension System Trust referred to in section 10(44) [subsection
1E to section 197A]

(f) Category I or a Category II Alternative Investment Fund (registered with SEBI as per section 19th UB) as
per Notification 51/2015.

Non-resident Shareholders:

For Foreign Portfolio Investor (FPI) category Shareholders, taxes shall be deducted at source under Section
196D of the Act at 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess).

For other Non-resident Shareholders, taxes are required to be deducted in accordance with the provisions
of Section 195 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, at the rates in force. As per the relevant provisions of the Income
tax Act, 1961, the tax shall be deducted at the rate of 20% (plus appl cable surcharge and cess) on the
amount of dividend payable to them.

FPI and the non resident Shareholder have the option to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax
Avoidance Agreement (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the Shareholder, if they are
more beneficial to them.

To avail benefit of rate of deduction oftax at source under DTAA, such non-resident Shareholders/FPI will
have to provide the following:
1. Self-attested copy of the PAN allotted by the Indian Income Tax authorities;

2. Tax residency certificate from the jurisdictional tax authorities confirming residential status for FY
2021-22

3. Declaration by the non- resident in prescribed form 10F
4. Self-declaration by the non-resident Shareholder as to:

o Eligibility to claim tax treaty benefits based on the tax residential status of the Shareholder,
including having regard to the Principal Purpose Test (if any), introduced in the applicable tax
treaty with India;

e No Permanent Establishment / fixed base in India in accordance with the applicable tax treaty;

e Shareholder being the beneficial owner of the dividend income to be received on the equity
shares. In case of non-resident Shareholder, having permanent establishment in India, if they
are classified as “specified person”a s per the provision of section 206AB, tax will be deducted
at rate higher of (a) twice therat e as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961; or (b) twice
the rate in force; or (c) 5%.

General:

In order to enable us to determine the appropriate tax rate at which tax has to be deducted at source under
the respective provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, we request Resident Shareholders and Non-Resident
Shareholders to upload the details and documents referred to in this Notice in the format provided by s
and as applicable to you on the link https://nsdl.com/form15/. No communication on the tax determination
/ deduction shall be entertained beyond 5.00 p.m on Wednesday, September 8, 2021.
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Deduction of tax at a rate lower than statutory rate or no deduction of tax shall depend upon the
completeness of the documents and the sats factory review of the forms and the documents, submitted by
Resident Shareholders, to the Company/NSDL. Please note that the Company is not obligated to apply the
beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction/withholding on dividend amounts. Application of
beneficial DTAA Rate shall depend upon the completeness and satisfactory review of the documents
submitted, by Non- Resident Shareholder/ FP], to the Company/NSDL.

Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), relating to the Special Business
to be transacted at this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’), is annexed.

Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (in PDF / JPG format) of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representatives to attend this AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, through e-mail at
mplian hyamgroup.com

In terms of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Resolutions for consideration at this AGM will be transacted through remote e-voting (i.e. facility to
cast vote prior to the AGM) and also e-voting during the AGM, for which p urpose the Board of Directors
of the Company (‘the Board’) have engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL').
The Board has appointed Mr Koushal Agarwal, Partner, KPA & CO,Practicing Company Secretary, as
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the process of e-voting.

Remote e-voting will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Wednesday , 15t September, 2021 and will end at 5.00 p.m. on
Friday, 17t September, 2021, when remote e-voting will be blocked by NSDL

Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the Members on
Saturday, 11" September, 2021 (cut-off date) Only those Members whose names are recorded in the
Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories
ason the cut-offda te will be entitled to cast their votes by remote e- voting or e- voting during the
AGM. Those who are not Members on the cut-off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for information
purposes only.

In view of the prevailing circumstances due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and also in conformity with the
applicable regulatory requirements, theNotice of this AGM and the Report and Accounts 2021 are being
sentonly through electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e- mail addresses with the
Companyor with the Depositories.

Members who hold shares in the certificate form or who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the
Company or with the Depositories and wish to receive the AGM Notice and the Report and Accounts for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021, or participate in the AGM, or cast their vo tes through remote e-
voting or e- voting during the meeting are required to register their e-mail addresses on the Company’s
corporate website under the section ‘Investor Relations’. Alternatively, Members may send a letter
requesting for registration of their email addresses, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID
/ folio number, by post to Shyam Metalics And Energy Limited at Trinity Tower, 7t Floor, 83,
Topsia Road, Kolkata-700046, or scanned copy  thereof  through e-mail at
compliance@shyamgroup.com

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions with respect to the agenda items of the
meeting will be required to register themselves as speaker by sending e-mail to the Company Secretary at
compliance@shyamgroup.com from their registered e-mail address, mentioning their name, DP ID & Client
ID / folio number and mobile number. Only those Members who have registered themselves as speaker
between Tuesday, September 14, 2021 to Thursday, September 16, 2021 will be able to speakta the
meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of the AGM.

Annual Report 2020-21 |

213



™
S I-IYAM Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

Further, Members who would like to have their questions / queries responded to during the AGM are
requested to send such questions / queries in advance within the aforesaid time period.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section 170

of the Act, the Register of contracts with related party, and contracts and bodies etc. in which The remote e-voting period begins on Wednes day, 15% September, 2021 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Friday,
Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act will remain available for inspection through 17t% September, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
electronic mode during the AGM, for which purpose Members are required to send ane- mail to the thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the
Company Secretary at compliance@shyamgroup.com record date (cut-off date) i.e. Saturday, 11t September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The voting
right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
The Company, in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Company as on the cut-off date, being Saturday, 11* September, 2021.
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, will be webcasting the proceedings of the AGM on its
corporate website. How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated Decembe 9, 2021 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through t heir demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
Type of shareholders |Login Method

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL
Shareholders holding Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
securities in demat Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click
mode with NSDL. on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is

available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see € Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2. If youare not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https: ices.nsdl.com I | DirectReg.j

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
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section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown onthe screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can
see e- Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provideri.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting websiteof NSDLfor casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store B Google Play

Individual

mode with CDSL

Shareholders holding
securities in demat

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can
login through their user id and password. Option will be
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for wsers to login to Easi / Easiest
are  https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login ~ or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links ofe -
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast
your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion

Alternatively, theuser can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.
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Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders (holding | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
securities in demat | e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to ee e Voting
mode) login through | option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
their depository | NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
participants you can see e Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provideri.e. NSDL. and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting you v ote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Financial Statements

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Ind1v1_d.u al .Shareholders hOIdl_n & | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
;escllszltles in demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in demat mode with [ CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Annual Report 2020-21

217



SHYAM
METALICS

ORE TO METAL

218

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical

mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

2.

1.
a)

b)

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password /OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat |Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

ii.

d)

3.

4,
5

the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

If your email ID is not registeredplease follow steps mentioned below in process for
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

a) For Members who hold shares in
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12***** then your user ID is
lN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is

1 2¥wdxickackiikack*  then your user ID is
12**************

c¢) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Physical Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to
login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

| Annual Report 2020-21

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companie§E VEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Castyour vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who ae authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e -mail
to compliance@kpasecretarial.com/ koshalagarwal@kpasecretarial.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquies shares of
the Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Satur day, 11th September, 2021, may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already
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registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for
casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User
Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or
call on toll free no. 1800 1020990 and 1800 22 44 30. In case of Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the
Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off datei.e. Friday, 27" August,
2021 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under Step 1: “Access to NSDL e-Voting
system” (Above).

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password ” or “Physical User Reset Password ” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a
request to to Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager and /or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email idsare not registered with th e depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode pleasegr ovide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (compliance@shyamgroup.com).
In case shares are heldn demat mode, plea se provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID orl6 -
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card}p
(compliance@shyamgroup.com). If you are anIndividual shareholder holding securities in demat
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e, Login method
for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.

Alternatively, shareholder/ members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2021 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders hidi ng securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile mmber and email ID correct ly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: -

220

1.

2.

The procedure fore -Voting on the day of the EGM/AGMis same as the instructionsmentioned
above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions throughr emote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e- Voting system in the
EGM/AGM.
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Members who have voted through Remote e -Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for
e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided witha faci lity to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under
“Join General meeting” menu against comp any name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The linkfor VC/OAVMwill be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note thatthe
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have fago tten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same byfollowing the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in
the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Videolo ss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or L AN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at( compliance@shyamgroup.com) from Tuesday,
14th September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. to Thursday, 16t September, 2021 till 5.00 p.m. (IST).

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
at (compliance@shyamgroup.com) from Tuesday, 14t September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. to Thursday,
16th September, 2021 till 5.00 p.m. (IST).The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

When a pre registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond,
the next speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected
to a device with a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

The Company reservest he right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as
appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager, NSDL and / or

Ms.

Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 990/1800 22 4430.
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Annexed to the Notice convening the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting to be held on Saturday, 18th
September, 2021 at 2.00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) at the meeting held on 8 th July, 2021, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment and r emuneration of Messrs.A S &
Associates, Cost Accountants,to conduct audit of cost records maintaned by the Company, for the financial
year 2021-22.

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, remuneration of the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, is interested in these
Resolutions.

The Board recommends these Resolutions for your approval.
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BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Name Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Mr. Dev Kumar Tiwari
Din 00232938 02432511
DOB & Age 27-03-1976 01-01-1971
Date of Appointment 11-12-2002 10-04-2009
Brief Resume He is the Joint Managing Director of our Company. He has | He is a Whole-Time Director of our Company. He

been a Director of our Company since its inception in
December, 2002. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce, with honours, from the University of Calcutta.
He has over 17 years of experience in the steel and ferro
alloys industry. He is primarily responsible for the
operations of our manufacturing plants at Sambalpur,
Jamuria and Mangalpur, with focus on cost control,
production efficiency and competitive procurement of
raw material.

has been a Director of our Company since April

10, 2009. He holds a bachelor’s degree in arts

(honours) from Bihar University, Muzaffarpur.
Prior to his appointment as Director, he was a
mechanical engineer in our Subsidiary, SSPL for
7 years. He has over 23 years of experience in the
steel and ferro alloys industry. He is responsible
for project implementation and operations of our

Sambalpur manufacturing plant.

Terms and Conditions of
Appointment/Re-appointment

As disclosed in the Corporate Governance report

As disclosed in the Corporate Governance report

Remuneration Last Drawn
(Including sitting Fees, if any)

Rs. 0.83 crore

Rs. 0.18 crore

Remuneration proposed to be paid

As per the existing terms and conditions

As per the existing terms and conditions

Shareholding in the listed entity,
including shareholding as a
beneficial owner in the Company
as on March 31, 2021

Direct - 31,580 Equity Shares being 0.01%,

With beneficial interest - 2,1,40,2,157 Equity Shares
being 8.39%

Total - 8.40%

Relationship with other
Directors/Key managerial
personnel/Managers

Cousin Brother - Mr. Brij Bhusan Agarwal, Nephew - Mr.
Mahabir Prasad Agarwal

No. of Board Meetings Attended
during the Year

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance report

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance
report

Directorship of other Board
during the Year

1. Shyam Sel And Power Limited

2. Kalpataru Housefin & Trading Pvt Ltd
3. Shyam Century Metallic Limited

4. Shyam Energy Limited

Shyam Greenfield Developer Private Limited

Membership/Chairmanship of
Committees of the other Board as
on March 31, 2021

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance report

As mentioned in the Corporate Governance
report

By Order of the Board

Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited

SD/-
Birendra Kumar Jain
Company Secretary

Dated: 8th July, 2021.
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